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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board [the "Board] of directors (“Directors”) of TS
Wonders Holding Llimited ("Company” or ‘TS Wonders"), it is my
pleasure to present fo you the annual report of the Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively, “"Group”) for the financial year ended

31 December 2023 ("FY2023").

As | reflect on 2023, | am proud that the Group had adapted fo the
challenges of economic uncertainty and the Group had demonstrated
its resilience and maintained our profitobihf\/ We remain committed
fo the safefty of our workers, quality of our snack products and to
delivering value to our stakeholders.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2023, the Singapore economy expanded by 1.1%, moderating
from the 3.8% growth in 2022. The Group's gross profits for both nuts
and chips had also improved, and gross profits increased by S$1.8
million or 10.0% to $$19.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, despite a decrease in revenue.

The Group's fotal revenue decreased by approximately S$4.7 million
or 6.3% from approximately $$74.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately $$70.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2023, mainly due to lower sales for nuts in Singapore,
Malaysia and the PRC (including Hong Kong). The Group's total
gross profit increased by approximately $S$1.8 million or 10.0% from
approximately $$18.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately S$19.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 despite the decrease in revenue. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 24.0% for the year ended 31 December
2022 to 28.2% for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group's
profit for the year decreased by approximately $$0.4 million or 6.2%
from approximately $$5.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately $$5.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Further explanation of the Group's financial performance for FY2023 is
provided in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis' section of this
annual report.
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Chairlady’s Statement
EBRE

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Overall, the Group expects that demand for snack products to remain
strong, in particular those with less sugar, arfificial sweefeners and
flavourings as health awareness is increasing among consumers. For
Singapore where the majority of the Group's snack products are sold,
it is forecasted a gross domestic product growth (“GDP”) for 2024 of
between 1.0% and 3.0%.

Since the Economic Survey of Singapore in November 2023,
Singapore’s external demand outlook for 2024 has remained largely
unchanged. Growth in the advanced economies is expected to
moderate in the first half of the year, mainly due to continued tight
financial conditions, before recovering gradually in line with an
expected easing of monetary policy as inflationary pressures recede.
Meanwhile, regional economies are expected fo see a pickup in
growth in the year ahead, supported in part by the turnaround in
global electronics demand.

In view of the foregoing, the Group will continue to adopt a cautious
and prudent approach in managing ifs business without compromising
the quo|ify of its producfs in line with its obiecfives to maintain
sustainable growth in its business and create longterm shareholders’
value.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.23
Hong Kong cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2023 [the "2023 Final Dividend"), representing a fotal payment of
approximately HK$2.3 million [equivalent to approximately $$0.4
million) (No dividend declared for the year ended 31 December
2022). The payment of the 2023 Final Dividend is subject to approval
of the shareholders of the Company af the annual general meeting fo

be held.

The final dividend will be payable on or around Thursday, 27 June
2024 to the Shareholders whose nomes appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2024, being the
record date for the final dividend.
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IN' APPRECIATION

We would like to pay tfribute to the following stakeholders whose
support has helped us, in one way or other, in navigating through

2023.

Firstly, we would like to thank our customers and suppliers. We thank
our cusfomers for confinuing to support our products, and the Group
confinues to be committed to delivering high quality and safe food
products while meefing consumers' expectations and complying with
legal requirements. We thank our suppliers for ensuring minimal
disruption to our supply chain and continual support.

Secondly, a word of thanks to our staff for their professionalism and
diligence as they confinued to work together as a team fo deliver value
fo our stakeholders.

Thirdly, to our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in
TS Wonders. We shall commit ourselves to creating sustainable
shareholders’ value and strong financial performance.

last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation also goes to my fellow
Direcfors for their guidance, advice and insight in steering the Group
forward.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Financial Highlights

M HEE

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

REBEEXRNEIERAR

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E2-NEF ZZEZEF —F=— B2 —g=-=
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
N T ¥ hnig ot N T N T i3 7o
Revenue Wz 61,058,604 69,562,227 65,269,727 74,799,701 70,117,966
Gross profit EH 15,472,139 18,683,266 17,684,380 17,964,773 19,766,148
Listing expenses EmHE (785,1906) - - - =
Profit before taxation B 3 AT v ) 4,082,824 8,870,506 5,131,694 7,234,805 6,901,898
Income tax expense FriSfifm s (1,174,453) (2,039,687) (1,708,579 (1,419,539) (1,446,746)
Profit for the year FREF 2,908,371 6,830,819 3,423,115 5,815,266 5,455,152
KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #ZREeMBEMRRNVEEIER
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
®R+=ZB=+—H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NF —E-FTHF T —E-= —=-=
S$ S$ s$ S$ S$
¥ o s T ¥ oT N T ¥ hn 3 T
Non-current assets FEREBEE 22,423,508 22,806,990 25,958,207 27,371,556 = 28,690,346
Current assets mEEE 41,724,508 49,070,803 52,762,583 53,334,298 55,276,981
Current liabilities mEAE 8,247,741 Q9,711,289 11,693,257 7.562,700 8,340,775
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 4,316,388 3,826,144 5,235,996 4,742,869 2,420,645
Total equity WA 51,583,887 58,340,360 61,791,537 68,400,285 73,205,907
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Financial Highlights

MEHE
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS TEHHKLEER
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—8H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NF —E-TF - —F —E-— —E-=fF
(times) (times) (times) (times) (times)
(%) (%) () (%) (%)
Current ratio mENE R 5.1 5.1 4.5 7.1 6.6
Cearing ratfio BEEBENE
(Note) (FF5E) 0.05 0.04 0.06 0.04 =
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—ZE-NF —EEF T —E-F —E-=F
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
Cross profit margin -~ EFI & 25.3 26.9 27.1 24.0 28.2
Profit before taxation  B& %% Al i F1 &
margin 6.7 12.8 7.9 Q.7 9.8
Profit margin for F AR X
the year 4.8 9.8 52 7.8 7.8
Return on fotal assets 42 & & [0] 3 & 4.5 Q.5 4.3 7.2 6.5
Return on equity e 5 8] i 3 5.6 1.7 55 8.5 7.5
Note: P 5 -

Gearing rafio is calculated as sum of bank and other borrowings divided by ~EEB@E L RIZEBHRE A PBRIT R EMEREE
tofal equity as at the respective reporting dates. MIAE R BT E -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=R E S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group which is headquartered in Singapore is primarily focused
on the production, packaging and sale of nuts and chips with frack
record of more than 50 years. The Group’s core products include
roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and cassava chips. The Group’s
products have been sold and disfributed to over 10 countries, including
Singapore, Malaysia and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Group principally sells its products on a wholesale basis fo (i) key
account cusfomers which include supermarkets, hotels, airlines and
original equipment manufacturer (OEM| customers; and (ii) distributors.

The Group is commitled to delivering high quality and safe food
products and continuously meeting consumers’ expectations and
complying with legal requirements. It implements comprehensive
and strict quality assurance procedures throughout all stages of the
production, from the procurement of raw materials fo the packaging
and delivery of the finished products. In this regard, the Group
has been accredited with various certifications in relation to quality
management and food safety.

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately S$4.7 million or
6.3% from approximately S$74.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately $$70.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 mainly due to lower sales for nuts in Singapore,
Malaysia and the PRC (including Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
R E RO

Products Em

The Group's revenue was primarily derived from the sale of nuts and  AEEKWREZREBERREREMNHEE -
chips. The following fable sefs forth a breakdown of the Group's TEREIEEZZZT_=F+_A=1+—AK=Z
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December Z—ZF+Z=A=+—HIEFEASERIZHA:

2022:

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE

2023 2022
—ECZ=HE —E-fF

S$ % S$ %

% T % T %

Nuts BE 45,972,369 65.6 50,834,158 68.0
Chips E=goy 22,027,219 314 21,656,353 28.9
Others Notl H g (m 2,118,378 3.0 2,309,190 3.1
Total BEt 70,117,966 100.0 74,799,701 100.0

Note: Others mainly refer to items such as disposable towels which were  Hif: EMXrBIEASEBERRMEABRGHEE

normally sold together with nuts and chips products to food and beverage BREREFEGF—HLENY R B—RME
companies. ES

The sale of nuts and chips products accounted for approximately 65.6% BZ_T_=F+ A=+ —HILFE &
and 31.4% of revenue respectively for the year ended 31 December R KR ZE R E @) iHE D Al h = 465.6% %
2023. The proportion of revenue contributed by nuts decreased from  31.4% -BRERMNKEEHABE=_T-_F
approximately 68.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to +ZA=+—BIEFENLOS ORI EHE=
approximately 65.6% for the year ended 31 December 2023, mainly ZTZ=F+_A=+—HILFEML0O5.6% £
due to lower sales from existing customers in Singapore, Malaysia and ~ Z2BRREFTINE - FRARRFE (BEEE)R
the PRC (including Hong Kong). BEPHHERD

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2023 3% 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
=R E S

Geographical location

The Group's products are sold and distributed to customers in over
10 countries. The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue
by geographical location of end customers for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

I8 B
AEBENERHEERDHETEBIVEAERNE
F-TRHENBEZE-_TE-_=5+-"HA=+—80EK
TE I CF+ A+ HULEFEERKEEFH
B EE DI

For the year ended 31 December
HEt-A=1T-HLFE

2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-CF

% % $ %

IR T % AR %

Singapore IR 42,721,738 60.9 44,797 269 59.9

Malaysia BRAED 20,491,958 29.2 20,915,473 28.0
The PRC (including Hong Kong B (BIEE B REM)

and Macau) 3,670,934 52 6,710,316 9.0

Others Hith 3,233,336 47 2,376,643 3.1

Tolal Bar 70,117,966 100.0 74,799,701 100.0

The Group's products were largely sold in Singapore and Malaysia
which accounted for approximately 60.9% and 29.2% of total revenue
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023. The composition
of sales from end consumers in the PRC decreased from approximately
9.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 5.2%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 mainly due to lower sales from
existing customers in Hong Kong for nuts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's gross profit
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

2023

—BI=F
Revenue Gross profit
E: R
S$ S$
g g
Nuts BR 45,972,369 12,039,839
Chips Zh 22,027,219 7,183,114
Others Htfy 2,118,378 543,195
Total /Overall it/ B 70,117,966 19,766,148

The pricing of the Group's nuts and chips products are generally based
on prices comparable to competitors for similar products.

The Group's gross profit margin for nuts increased from approximately
22.3% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
26.2% for the year ended 31 December 2023 mainly due to lower
average cost of cerfain raw nuts.

The Group's gross profit margin for chips increased from approximately
28.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022 fo approximately
32.6% for the year ended 31 December 2023 due to lower average
cost of fresh potatoes.

Overall, the Group's gross profit margin for the year increased from
24.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 28.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

ERETT R R 5T

EF
TR EEZZE—_=F+=-_A=1+—AK=Z
T+ A=Zt—HIEFEAREBEMNEF R

For the year ended 31 December
BETZA=t-HLHFE

2022

—TCCF
Gross profit Gross profit
margin Revenue Gross profit margin
ERx Yz EH ERE
% S$ S$ %
% HRTT g T %
262 50,834,158 11,333,281 22.3
326 21,656,353 6,073,935 28.0
25.6 2,309,190 557,557 24
282 74,799,701 17,964,773 24.0

AEEBRRBAEMNEEBFTERBRFHTF
MEEMN A B REREE -

AEENBRENEREZE S -_—_F+=A
=T —HIEFEMNN223% HAZEEZ T - =
F+_A=Z+—HLEFEMH2002% EEHR
ETEBRRENFIMATRE-

AEEERNENERABE_T-_—_F+_-A
=t+—HIEFERN280% - AEHE_T_=F
T-A=+—BLEFELNI26% JTHREFRK
ZNTFHRATRE-

BEMs ARERAFENENEHEE "
—HFtZRA=t— EtiEE’JQA.OéLﬂi@
ECEC=FTA=+T—HIEFEMN28.2%°
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Management Discussion and Analysis
[Estim B 54T

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Economic performance in Singapore in the fourth quarter of
2023

The Singapore economy grew by 2.2% on a yearonyear basis in
the fourth quarter of 2023,
the third quarter of 2023. On a quarter-on-quarter seasonally-adjusted
2%, slightly faster than the 1.0%

accelerating from the 1.0% expansion in
basis, the economy expanded by 1

growth in the third quarter of 2023.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore)

Overall economic performance in Singapore in 2023

For the whole of 2023, the Singapore economy expanded by 1.1%,
moderating from the 3.8% expansion in 2022.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Indusfry, Singapore]

Economic outlook for 2024

The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore forecasted a gross

domestic product growth for 2024 of between 1.0% and 3.0%.

Since the Economic Survey of Singapore in November 2023,
Singapore’s external demand outlook for 2024 has remained largely
unchanged. Growth in the advanced economies is expected to
moderate in the first half of the year, mainly due to confinued tight
financial conditions, before recovering gradually in line with an
expected easing of monetary policy as inflationary pressures recede.
Meanwhile, regional economies are expected fo see a pickup in
growth in the year ahead, supported in part by the turnaround in
global electronics demand.

In the US, GDP growth is expected to confinue to ease in the coming
quarters amidst continued tight financial conditions, before picking
up lafer in the year alongside a loosening of monetary policy, which
will support a recovery in investment growth. Similarly, GDP growth
in the Eurozone is forecast to remain subdued in the first half of the
year. However, growth should improve in the latter part of the year
as a further easing of inflationary pressures and anticipated policy
rate cuts are likely to support a firmer recovery in private consumption
expenditure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In Asia, China’s GDP growth is projected to remain lacklustre in
the first half of the year due to sluggish domestic consumption and
exporfs growth alongside weak property market conditions. Growth
is likely to recover gradually in the second half of the year in line with
improvements in consumer senfiments and global demand. Meanwhile,
GDP growth in the Southeast Asian economies of Malaysia and
Thailand is likely to be supported by the continued recovery in tourist
arrivals, as well as an anticipated pickup in global electronics demand.

Taking info account the global and domestic economic environment,
the GDP growth forecast for Singapore for 2024 is maintained at 1.0%
to 3.0%.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore]

Outlook for the Group and Strategies

The Group noted that the global snack food market, which includes
nuts and chips, will continue to grow at approximately 2.7% annually
to 2027 driven by changes in dietary habits and demand for healthy
and functional snacks.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue and
profit decreased by approximately 6.3% and 6.2% respectively.

Overall, the Group expects that demand for snack products to remain
strong, in particular those with less sugar, artificial sweefeners and
flavourings, as health awareness is increasing among consumers. Brand
awareness will play a bigger role in driving sales as consumers sfart fo
pay more attention fo the packaging and the messages associated with
their purchases. The Group has thus contfinued fo increase its marketing
expenses fo promote brand awareness and product advertising.

In view of the foregoing, the Group will confinue to adopt cautious and
prudent approach in managing its business without compromising the
quality of its products in line with ifs objecfives to maintain sustainable
growth in its business and create longterm shareholders’ value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately S$4.7 million or
6.3% from approximately S$74.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately $$70.1
31 December 2023 mainly due to lower sales for nuts in Singapore,
Malaysia and the PRC (including Hong Kong).

million for the year ended

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales decreased by approximately $$6.5 million

11.4% from approximately $$56.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately $$50.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 mainly due fo the decrease in cost of materials,
consistent with decrease in revenue and lower average cost of cerfain
raw nuts and fresh potatoes.

Gross profit

The Group's fotal gross profit increased by approximately S$1.8 million
or 10.0% from approximately S$18.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately S$19.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 despite the decrease in revenue. The Group's
overall gross profit margin increased from approximately 24.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 28.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 mainly due to lower cost of sales as
discussed above.

Other income

The Group's other income decreased by approximately S$1.2 million
or 57.5% from approximately S$2.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately $$0.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 mainly due to one-off reimbursement of professional
fees in 2022 for consultancy services recorded as administrative
expenses in 2021, partfially offset by higher interest income and

government grants.

Other gains and losses

The Group reported other losses of approximately $$0.5 million
and $$0.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023 mainly due to foreign exchange losses of
approximately $$0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
and S$0.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately S$0.7
million or 18.5% from approximately $$3.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately $$4.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 mainly due to increased marketing activities
including online brand and product advertising.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately $$0.3 million
or 3.6% from approximately $$8.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately $$8.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 mainly due to increase in staff cost for the year

ended 31 December 2023.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately $$20,000 or 17.3% from
approximately S$117,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately $$97,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
mainly due to lower interest on bank loans with full repayment of bank
loans during the year ended 31 December 2023 and lower interest on
lease liabilities.

Income tax expense

Income fax expense increased by approximately $$27,000 or 1.9%
from approximately S$1.42 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately S$1.45 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, despite lower profit before taxation, mainly due to
increase in deferred tax liability which resulted from temporary taxable
difference arising from accelerated depreciation in relation to capifal
allowance claims on qualified asses.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year decreased by approximately $$0.4 million or 6.2%
from approximately $$5.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately $$5.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 mainly due fo decrease in other income, increase in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses, partially offset by
increase in gross profit as discussed above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group’s source of funds comprises a combination of internally
generated funds, bank and other borrowings and net proceeds from the
share offer. As part of the Group's liquidity risk management, the Group
monitors its working capital to ensure that ifs financial obligations can
be met when due by i) ensuring healthy bank balances and cash for
payment of ifs shorterm working capital needs; [ii) monitoring frade
receivables and its aging monthly and following up closely to ensure
prompt payment from customers; and [iii] monitoring bank and lease
payments.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's current ratio, being
current assefs over current liabilities was 6.6 times and 7.1 fimes
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had nil bank and other
borrowings as compared to approximately $$2.9 million as at 31
December 2022. The Group had repaid all its borrowings by 31
December 2023 and its gearing rafio, based on interestbearing
bank and other borrowings divided by net assets, was nil as at 31

December 2023 (2022: 0.04 times).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group
provided performance guarantee to cerfain customers with balances
amounted to approximately $$0.5 million and approximately S$0.1
million respectively.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and

building to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group with
carrying values of approximately S$7.0 million and approximately
$$11.8 million as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022

respectively.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had incurred
capital expenditures of approximately S$3.1 million as compared to
approximately $$2.0 million in the year ended 31 December 2022.
The expenditures were mainly related fo the purchase of property, plant
and equipment to support the growth of the Group's business.

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $$0.5 million as

at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately S$0.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31 December 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events affer the year ended 31 December
2023 and up fo the date of this announcement.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since
14 January 2019, being the Llisting Date, and the net proceeds
from the share offer (after deducting listing expenses) amounted o
approximately HK$66.8 million (equivalent to approximately S$11.7
million) (the “Net IPO Proceeds”).

The following sefs forth a summary of the ufilisation of the Net IPO
Proceeds as at 31 December 2023, and the expected timeline for
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=R E S

As at the date of this announcement, the unutilised Net IPO Proceeds
were deposited with licensed banks in Singapore and Hong Kong.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As the Group sells a maijority of its food products overseas in which
these sales are principally denominated in US$ and sources its main
materials in which these purchases are principally denominated in US$,
Euro and AUD, the Group is exposed fo foreign currency exchange
fluctuations arising in the normal course of ifts business operations.

The Group generally hedges 30% of its expected monthly sales and
purchases denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group has a committee in place, comprising its finance manager
and its executive Directors. The committee meets regularly from time to
time when necessary and is responsible for reviewing, researching and
studying the future foreign exchange rates and the methods of hedging.
In deciding whether to enter into any foreign currency hedging
fransactions, the committee will underfake a cautious approach and
will consider factors including (i) the expected sales and purchases
denominated in foreign currencies; [ii) the historical foreign exchange
rates; and {iii] the perceived future foreign exchange rates. The finance
manager keeps frack of the Group's hedging activities and all hedging
confracts have fo be approved by the executive Directors. As sales and
purchases will confinue fo be denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group expects that it will continue to entfer info hedging arrangements
where necessary.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.23
Hong Kong cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2023 [the "2023 Final Dividend"), representing a fotal payment of
approximately HK$2.3 million [equivalent to approximately $$0.4
million) (No dividend declared for the year ended 31 December
2022). The payment of the 2023 Final Dividend is subject to approval
of the shareholders of the Company af the annual general meeting to

be held.

The 2023 Final Dividend will be payable on or around Thursday, 27
June 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2024, being the
record date for the 2023 Final Dividend.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM”) will be held

10:00 a.m. on 27 May 2024 at 255 Pandan loop, Singapore
128433 and the notice of the AGM will be published and despatched
in accordance with the requirements under the Company’s articles of
association and the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and
vofe at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 22 May 2024 to 27 May 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
be eligible o attend and vote af the AGM, non-registered shareholders
must lodge all completed transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share cerfificates with the Company's branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services limited, af
17/F Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2024.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 358 employees and 311 employees as af 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 respectively. The Group
incurred staff costs of approximately S$12.4 million and S$11.7 million
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively.
Remuneration is determined b\/ reference to prevoi|in9 market ferms
and in accordance with the performance, qualification and experience
of each individual employee. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme [the “Share Option Scheme”] on 20 December 2018
fo enable the Board to grant share options to eligible partficipants with
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with a view
to achieve the following obijectives: (i] motivate the eligible participants
fo optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and (i) affract and retain or otherwise maintain an ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose confributions are or will
be beneficial to the longterm growth of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, there was no outstanding share opfion
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERREFS

Biographical defails of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (“Ms. Sandy Lim"), aged 67, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. She was re-designated as an executive
Direcfor and appointed as the chairlady of the Board on 5 July 2018.
She is the chairlady of the risk management committee. Ms. Sandy
Lim is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Sandy
Lim has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Ms. Sandy
Lim's core responsibilities lie in operations activities of the Group
including procurement where she sources and plans the supply of raw
materials as well as maintains close working relationship with suppliers,
finance and administration.

Ms. Sandy Lim is the sibling of Mr. Winston Lim and Mr. lawrence
Lim, both being executive Directors. Ms. Sandy Lim is the spouse of
Mr. James Loo and the mother of Mr. Terence Loo, both being members
of the senior management of the Group.

SWIL Limited ("SWL") is interested in /50,000,000 shares ("Share(s)"),
representing 75% of the issued share capital of the Company. The
issued share capital of SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to
24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang ("Mdm. Han"), 24.5% by Ms. Sandy
Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Lawrence Lim, 1.0% by
Mr. James Loo and 1.0% by Ms. Ong liow Wah (“Ms. Jillian Ong”),
who are family members. Ms. Sandy Lim is deemed to be inferested in
the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO").

Mr. Lim Fung Yee ("Mr. Winsfon Lim"), aged 66, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the remuneration
committee and  the risk management committiee. Mr. Winston Lim is
also a direcior of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Winston Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks indusfry. Mr. VWinston
Lim's core responsibilities lie in sales and marketing where he strategises
business development and product innovation, ascertains the viability
of potential new markets and proactively maintains close working
relationship with the customers of the Group.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Winston Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Lim and Mr. lawrence
Lim, both being executive Direcfors. Mr. Winston Lim is the father of
Mr. Sean Lim, an executive Director.

SWL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston lim, 24.5% by
1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian
Ong, who are family members. Mr. Winston Lim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Llawrence Lim,

Mr. Lim Fung Chor ("Mr. lawrence lim"), aged 62, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was re-designated as an executive
Direcfor on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the nomination
committee and the risk management commitiee. Mr. Lawrence Lim is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. lawrence Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Mr. lawrence
Lim is currently responsible for overseeing the Group's production
facilities in Johor, Malaysia to ensure that the production process as well
as the products adhere fo the relevant standards and/or certifications,
and customers’ requirements.

Mr. lawrence Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Lim and Mr. Winston
Lim, both being executive Directors. Mr. lawrence Lim is the father of
Mr. Brandon Lim, a member of the senior management of the Group.

SWL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by
1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian
Ong, who are family members. Mr. lawrence Llim is deemed fo be
interested in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Llawrence Lim,

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai) ("Mr. Sean Lim"), aged 39, was
appointed as an executive Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member
of the risk management commitiee. Mr. Sean Lim joined the Group in
September 2013 as sales business development assistant manager.
He is currently assisting Mr. Winston Lim in overseeing the overall sales
function of the Group as business development manager.
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He obtained a Diploma in Microelectronics from Temasek Polytechnic
in June 2006 and a letter of Merit for High Achiever Award from The
Republic of Singapore Air Force in February 2008.

Mr. Sean Lim is the son of Mr. Winston Lim, an executive Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ka Yu ("Mr. Chan’), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He is
currently the chairman of the audit commitiee and member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Chan
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree in accounting from Hong
Kong Shue Yan University in October 2009. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2009.

Mr. Chan has over 10 years of professional accounting and financial
reporting experience. From July 2004 to July 2007, Mr. Chan was an
accountant at Kam & Cheung, Certified Public Accountants. From July
2007 to August 2010, he was a senior auditor at World Link CPA
Limited. From September 2010 to April 2012, he worked at BDO
Limited (which was formerly known as JBPB & Company), initially as @
senior accountant and subsequently promoted as a senior associate.
From May 2012 to April 2013, he worked as an investor relations
officer for Fantasia Group (China) Company limited, a subsidiary of
Fantasio Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Since June 2013, he has been working as the chief financial officer
of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited (formerly
known as Runway Global Holdings Company Limited) (stock code:
1520), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Dragon
Rise Group Holdings Llimited (stock code: ©829) since January 2018
and Yield Go Holdings lid. (stock code: 1796) since December
2018, both being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Yan Fai ("Mr. lee"), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He is
currently the chairman of the remuneration commitiee and member of
the audit committee and the nomination commitiee. Mr. lee obtained
his Master's degree of Professional Accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. lee has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since 2014.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate of The Institute of Concreted Accountants
in England and Wales. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Colour life Services Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1778],
a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. lee has over 10 years’ extensive experience by working in
international audit firms and other listed companies. Mr. lee was the
financial controller of each of China Carbon Neutral Development
Group Limited (formerly known as Bisu Technology Group International
Limited) (stock code: 1372) from August 2015 until December 2018
and Sino Golf Holdings Llimited (stock code: 361) from September
2015 until December 2018, both being companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He currently serves as a managing
director of Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited.

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) (“Mr. Chew"), aged 50, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20 December
2018. He is currently the chairman of the nomination commitiee and
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee.
Mr. Chew obtained his Bachelor in Engineering degree from the
National University of Singapore in July 1998 and subsequently
obtained his Master of Business Administration from the National
University of Singapore in April 2004. He went on fo obtain
professional qualifications, namely, Project Management Professional
(PMP) in June 2010, Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)
Expert in August 2012 and Certified Chief Information Security Officer
in October 2017.

Mr. Chew has over 10 vyears of experience in the information
technology field. He has been a general manager of OxPay SG Pre
ltd (formerly known as Mobile Credit Payment Pre lid), a payment
technology and merchant service company, since April 2020 and
was its chief technology officer from 2012 until 2017. Prior to that,
he was business support manager for Orange Business Services, a
global telecommunication operator and information technology services

company, from 2009 until 2012.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mok Tang Eng ("Mr. John Mok”), aged 68, joined the Group in
January 2014 as the manufacturing manager. Mr. John Mok is primarily
responsible for monitoring the production flow, increase quality and
stabilisation of production, improve production procedure and reduce
production costing and overhead. Mr. John Mok obtained his Diploma
in Management from the Malaysian Institute of Management in January
1992, Mr. John Mok became a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Management in January 1991.

Mr. Loo Soon Hock James ("Mr. James loo"), aged 67, joined the
Group since January 1985. Mr. James loo has over 30 years of
experience in the snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted
fo senior sales manager where he is responsible for overseeing and
handling direct businessto-business sales with focus on hospitality
and wholesale customers including overseeing the deliveries to the
cusfomers, sourcing for new potential customers and maintaining close
relationship with the cusfomers.

Mr. James Loo is the spouse of Ms. Sandy Lim, an executive Director,
and the father of Mr. Terence loo, a member of the senior management

of the Group.

Mr. Er Eng Hui ("Mr. Ricky Er"), aged 63, joined the Group since
January 1985, Mr. Ricky Er has over 30 years of experience in the
snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted fo senior sales
manager where he is responsible for overseeing and handling direct
business-fobusiness sales to major supermarket chains in Singapore
including overseeing the promotional activities in the supermarkets and
maintaining close relationship with the cusfomers.

26 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2023

EREEE

Mok Tang Eng5t 4 ([John Mok% A1) - 6875
MRIZB-—MFE-RAMAREER BEEEELE-
John Mok E EFZBBEEBELEERE R EE
HERBEH NELERFEBEEAENE R
LEMER T © John Mokt ER— L =F— A
BERATEEEREREEIR John Mokt &
R—NAN—F—AKASRATERERZE -

Loo Soon Hock, James%t 4 ([James loost A ])
o7k B— W N\RAF—ARBMAREE-James
looE FM KRB RBITEEEAIOFLER N =
T—+F—fF BREBEALRSABEELE &
ERNEIEEHER BEFNEERIEES
PBRERMEFZE SRMNETREFPRER
FREZYINEE-

James looSE £ RITE EM/ N FZ T VECE MA
SESREEEXE BACRELENRIR -

REEEREE ([REEEXRE]) 3% B—NL/\E
F-RAEMAREE - REBEERAKRBRATIT
FZ2BBI0OFKB - N _T—tF—A REE
NASREERE ABEREMEE R INKA
DETHEHEES ERESETHHRELZDR
HEPRRFEIMRERE-



Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lloo Yong Keong Terence (Lu Yonggiang) ("Mr. Terence loo’),
aged 39, joined the Group in June 2014 as the finance manager.
Mr. Terence loo is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group's
working capital needs, financial performance, income, cashflow and
expenditure, overall preparation, management and monitoring of
corporate budgeting, overseeing human resources department and
development of business process and accounting policies. The finance
team led by Mr. Terence Lloo will provide advice to the Board and
coordinate with the sales and procurement teams to manage financial
and operational risks so that the Group can attain an opfimal cashflow
position. Prior fo joining the Group, Mr. Terence loo has worked in
the financial industry for over 3 years. He obtained his undergraduate
degree in Bachelor of Finance from the Australian National University
in July 2011 and postgraduate degree in Master of Professional
Accounting from Singapore Management University in June 2020.

Mr. Terence loo is the son of Ms. Sandy lim, an executive Director,
and Mr. James Loo, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Lim Sheng Kwong (“Mr. Brandon Llim“), aged 34, joined the
Croup in February 2014 as assistant sales manager, subsequently
he was fransferred fo being an assistant production manager. In April
2021 he was transferred back to sales as business development
manager. Mr. Brandon lim obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from
Murdoch University majoring in management marketing in June 2015.

Mr. Brandon Lim is the son of Mr. Lawrence Lim, an executive Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel ["Mr. Chan”), age 49, was appointed as the
company secrefary of the Company on 17 December 2022. Mr. Chan
is currently a partner at the law firm of Michael Li & Co., specialising
in corporate finance work including inifial public offerings, mergers
and acquisitions and resfructuring. Mr. Chan is a practising solicitor
and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2003. He received
o degree of Bachelor of laws and Bachelor of Commerce from
Macquarie University, Sydney, Australia in 2000. Mr. Chan was the
company secrefary of GT Steel Construction Group Limited (now known
as Plateau Treasures Limited) (stock code: 8402) from March 2017 to
1 July 2023, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and through
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production, packaging
and sale of nuts and chips with frack record of more than 50 years.
The core products include roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and
cassava chips. The products have been sold and distributed to over 10
counfries, including Singapore, Malaysia and the PRC.

The particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 35 fo the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2023 are set out in
the Financial Statements.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.23
Hong Kong cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2023 [the "2023 Final Dividend"), representing a tfotal payment of
approximately HK$2.3 million [equivalent to approximately $$0.4
million) (No dividend declared for the year ended 31 December
2022). The payment of the 2023 Final Dividend is subject to approval
of the shareholders of the Company af the annual general meeting to

be held.

The 2023 Final Dividend will be payable on or around Thursday, 27
June 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2024, being the
record date for the 2023 Final Dividend.

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed fo
waive any dividend.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 20 December 2018,
which sefs out the approach in recommending dividends, to allow the
shareholders fo participate in the Group's profits and for the Group
fo retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company's ability
to pay dividends will depend upon, among other things, the Group's
current and future operations, financial position, development pipeline,
prevailing economic environment, contractual restrictions, capital and
other reserve requirements, dividends received from the Company's
subsidiaries and associates, as well as any other conditions or factors
which the Board deems relevant. The form, frequency and amount
of dividend payment by the Company are subject fo any restrictions
under the memorandum and articles of association (the “Articles”) of the
Company, the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the
Cayman Islands and any other laws and regulations applicable to the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are sef out in Note 13 fo
the Financial Statements.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the AGM to be held at 10:00 a.m. on 27 May 2024 af
255 Pandan loop, Singapore 128433, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 22 May 2024 to 27 May 2024,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
non-egistered shareholders must lodge all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar and fransfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services limited, at 17/F Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2024.
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For defermining the entitlement of the proposed 2023 Final Dividend,
the register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Monday, 3 June 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June 2024, both dafes
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for the 2023 Final Dividend, unregistered holders
of the Shares should ensure that all share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar and fransfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Invesfor
Services limited, at 17/F Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31
May 2024. Subject to the approval of the Shareholders af the AGM,
the Final Dividend will be paid on or around Thursday, 27 June 2024
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of

the Company on VWednesday, 5 June 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group in the form of a comparative fable for the last five financial
years is set out in the section headed “Financial Highlights” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has complied
with all applicable laws and regulations in relation o environmental
profections, including, but not limited to The Environmental Protection
and Management Act (Chapter 94A of Singapore), Environmental
Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009 [Malaysia) and
Environmental Quality [Sewage) Regulations 2009. In 2023, the
Group was not subject to any material claims or penalties in relation o
environmental protection.

Detfails of the Group's environmental, social and governance
performance for the year ended 31 December 2023 can be found in
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to its business and indusry in
Singapore and Malaysia in oll material aspects during the year ended

31 December 2023.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is aware that the Group's financial condition, results of
operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group are set out as follows:

(i)  The Group's business is seasonal

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue and
operating income for ifs products. The Group generally records
higher revenue for its products during the holiday seasons, such
as the Chinese New Year, Hari Raya Puasa and Chrisimas.
The seasonal nature of its products causes its production lines fo
operate at levels approaching full capacity during certain times of
the year to meet the demand particularly for the holiday seasons.
As a result of these fluctuations, sales and operating results for
any partficular period may not necessarily be indicative of the
Group's results for the full year or future periods. The Group's
results of operations are likely to confinue to fluctuate due to
seasonality.

(i) The Group's profitability may be adversely affected by
fluctuations in material prices

The Group purchases all its materials which mainly comprise
various types of nuts and beans including peanuts, cashews,
pistachios, almonds, macadamia nuts, USA walnuts, broad
beans and green peas, as well as fresh potatoes and cassava
roofs from third party suppliers. lts cost of materials accounted
for more than 80% of its cost of sales. The quality and price of
its materials are dependent on the output of the harvest which
may be affected by events beyond its confrol such as natural
disasters, infectious diseases, pest infestations and climate
change. The Group's suppliers may not be able to continue fo
provide materials in sufficient quantities and of suitable quality
at an acceptable price to safisfy the Group's production needs
should there be a bad harvest. The global supply chain is also
affected by several factors, including pandemic, war/conflicts,
climate changes and other local conditions that affect crops or
logistics. Any inferruptions fo its material supplies could materially
and adversely affect its production and business operation.
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(iii) The Group relies on certain third party suppliers

The Group's purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 52.3% of its total purchases for the year

ended 31

suppliers will continue to supply materials af prices and on terms

December 2023. There is no assurance that these

and conditions accepfable to the Group. The materials from its
suppliers may be affected by natural disasters, infectious diseases,
pest infestations and climate change which may expose the
Group fo the risk of price fluctuation and availability of supplies.
Should there be any disruptions in the operations of its suppliers
which affect the supply of materials, there is no assurance
that the Group will be able to locate alternative suppliers with
sufficient quantities of suitable quality at an acceptable price and
commercial terms, which could then materially and adversely
affect its business, overall profitability and financial performance.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated

31 December 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of the movements in the share capital of the Company are sef
out in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 are sef ouf in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” in the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Group, as calculated under
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, was approximately S$47.8
million.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 63.3%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 whilst the largest customer accounted for approximately 30.3%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2023.

The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 52.3%
of the Group's fofal purchases during the year ended 31 December
2023 whilst the largest supplier accounted for approximately 24.9%
of the fotal purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2023.

At all times during the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the
Direcfors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any shareholder (who, to the best knowledge of the Direcfors, own
more than 5% of number of issued Shares) had an interest in any of the
five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 December
2018. The ferms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme:

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive or a reward fo eligible persons for their contribufion
fo the Group and/or to enable the Group fo recruit and refain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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(B)

(C)

(D)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme
The participants of the Share Option Scheme shall be:

(1) any employee (whether full-time or parttime] of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

(2) any director [including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any

of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(3)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(4)  any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(5] any consuliant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support fo the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(6] any person who, in the sole discrefion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute o the Group or any Invested
Entity eligible for options under the Share Option Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all share
opfions to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of issued shares as at 14 January
2019, being the Llisting Date, unless the Company obtains a

fresh approval from the shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, a fotal of 100,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company, are available for issue under the Share Option

Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up fo and including
the date of grant of the opfions must not exceed 1% of the fotal
number of Shares in issue.
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(E)

(F)

(C)

(H)

Each grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, any grant of share options
fo a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Direcfor, or fo any of their associates, resulting in the Shares
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) fo such person, in a 12-month period
up fo and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the Shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

The period during which an option may be exercised is
defermined by the Board at its discrefion, save that such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

As defermined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option and
the period within which payments shall be made

A consideration of S$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of an option where the grantee should accept or decline
the offer of grant of an option within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a dafe not later than
21 business days from the date upon which it is made.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granfed under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
to an eligible person, and shall be at least the higher of: (1)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, (2] the average
closing price of the shares as sfated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five consecufive business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (3) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant.

(E)

(F)

()

(H)
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()  The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 vyears from 20 December 2018, being the
adoption date, until 19 December 2028.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on
20 December 2018, and there is no outstanding share option as

at 31 December 2023.

As af the dafe of this annual report, there was no outstanding
share opfion granted under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who served for the year ended 31 December 2023 and

up fo the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Llim Seow Yen (Chairlady)"
M. Lim Fung Yeel!

Mr. Llim Fung Chor'!

Mr. Llim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai]®

Notes:

(1) Appointed as Director on 19 April 2018 (date of incorporation of the
Company) and were re-designated as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

[2)  Appoinfed as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

Mr. lee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

Note: All appointed as independent non-executive Directors on 20 December

2018.
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Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, af each annual generdl
meeting, onethird of the Directors, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to buf not less than one-third,
shall refire from office by rofation provided that every Director shall be
subject fo refirement by rofation at least once every three years and
shall then be eligible for reelection. As such, Ms. Llim Seow Yen, Mr.
Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai] and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)
will refire from office as Directors af the forthcoming AGM, being

eligible, and offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE AGREEMENT

Each executive Director is appointed under a service agreement for a
term of three years from the listing Date which is terminable by either
party by giving three months” written notice fo the other party.

Each independent nonexecutive Director is appointed under a lefter
of appointment for a term of three years from the listing Date which is
terminable by either party by giving one month’s written notice to the
other party.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service confract which is not deferminable by our
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation [other than statufory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical defails of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Direcfors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 32 to the
Financial Statements, no Director and/or any of his/her connected
entity had a material interest, whether direcﬂ\/ or indirecﬂ\/, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any fime

during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required:
(o) to be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO): (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c] to be nofified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix C3 fo the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF SWL LIMITED,
AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest

BEEnA B0 EmHE
Lim Seow Yen Beneficial owner
R/ e BEamEBA
Lim Fung Yee Beneficial owner
M5 F BEaEEA
Lim Fung Chor Beneficial owner
T & EmEAA

Note: SWL Limited held in aggregate 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL Llimited is legally and benéficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm.
Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. Lim Seow Yen, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung
Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Chor, 1.0% by Mr. loo Soon Hock James
and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Lliow Wah.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors of the Company had any inferests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be nofified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including inferests and short positions which he/
she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
(b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or (c) pursuant fo the Model Code fo be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director of the Company) and entities
had inferests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of inferest

R A B EEHE
SWIL Limited Beneficial owner
SWIL Limited EmEE A

Note: The issued share capital of SWL Limited is legally and beneficially owned
as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. lim Seow Yen,
24.5% by M. Lim Fung Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Chor, 1.0% by
Mr. Loo Soon Hock James and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Liow Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as the
Directors are aware, no other persons (other than a Director of the
Company) or enfities had any inferests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

BREXHEREN RZEZ=FF+ A =+—
H BEARREERARR (TERLESF LS
BRI EXVES) BB D - IR (S EREE
B () BERIBEFES RBEIEFIFEXVELE X8 E
MEARNRR RN EMER AR (BIER
ERBEFFRBERIBBEGESCEEESR B
EMREEIAR)  (bREES MAEKRHIFE352
EEBERRZIGAT I & L M T (S g
H(BIFIZETRIZBANS AR &) R AT T

CEEPTE

FERRRKRO R EERDES
15979}

W-B-=f+-A=+—RB HEEHD T
FIAL (ARATEERIN) REBRAR TR
R ARBRR 9 o0 B AR 5 R 9 1 B XVER 3B
23D WG ARBOEREIAR  TREES
REE GOIBIBOHRAR BN ARAFENER
B 3 A

Number of  Percentage of
Shares held shareholding
FEN
RHEE FREDL
750,000,000 75%

£ SWL Limited® B BITRAD RIRERB LT
MWL MEFEE - MFEFEXRE Loo
Soon Hock JamestERTHEL LTEEARE
HHEE24.5%24.5%24.5% 24 5%~ 1.0% %
1.0% °

BREXFIBEEN RZFE_=ZF+_A=+—
B-ESEAA MEELMAL (RRARERRIN)
FERBNBROIARFEEROTEERERS
K HE GO EXVERFE2 M3 B IR ZA B E
] o SOR B - HIRERE T M B E 1R F £ 3306f%
ARBENANAEIFENE MO EAEEIORE -

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2023 ¥ 39



Report of the Directors
EEERE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Opfion Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered info or subsisted by the Company at the year ended

31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 were rights fo
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective associates
nor was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a parly fo any
arrangement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, details of the material
related party fransactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are sef out in Note 32 to the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed in Note 32 to the Financial Statements, the Group
has not engaged in any other connected transactions and/or related
party fransactions during the year ended 31 December 2023.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package fo its employees is
in line with local industries. It offers its employees medical insurance
coverage. The Group also offers its employees discretionary bonus
depending on their respective performance and profitability of the
Group which encourages their individual performance and then to
confribute fo their departmental performance as well. The emoluments
of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to factors including remuneration
paid by comparable companies, fime commitment, job duties and
responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme, defails of which are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest poid
individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in Nofe 10 to the Financial Statements. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, there was no arrangement under which
any Direcfor had waived or agreed fo waive any emoluments.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the

year ended 31 December 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a proTata basis o existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance. The Directors recognise that a
good corporate governance is essential for the Company fo achieve
its objectives and drive improvement, as well as mainfain legal and
ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders, regulators and the general
public. The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board and saved as
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has complied with the Corporate Governance Code which are
applicable to the Company. Please refer to the said section for defails.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 o the Listing Rules as its code of conduct goveming the Direcfors'’
securities transactions and each of the Directors has confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that he/she had complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of independence, and the
Company considers that each of them is independent and has met the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors

IN A COMPETING

or their respective close associates had interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant fo the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

SWIL limited, Mdm. Han Yew lang, Ms. Llim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung
Yee, Mr. lim Fung Chor, Mr. loo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong
liow Wah (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into
a deed of non-competition dated 20 December 2018 in favour of
the Company and the subsidiaries (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the
Company |for itself and for the benefit of the subsidiaries|, among
others, that, during the period which (i) the Shares remain listed in the
Stock Exchange and (i) the Controlling Shareholder and their close
associates (other than members of the Group] individually or jointly,
are entitfled to exercise, or control the exercise of, not less 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company or control the Board. He/she/it
shall not, and shall procure that his/her/its close associates (other than
any member of the Group) not to carry on or be engaged, concerned
or interested, or otherwise be involved directly or indirectly, in any
business in compefition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business acfivity of any member of the Group or any business
activity to be conducted by any member of the Group from fime to
time.

Each of the Confrolling Shareholders further undertakes that if any
project or new business opportunity which may compete with the
business of the Group is identified by or offered to him/her/it,
he/she/it shall procure that his/her/its close associates to prompily
nofify the Group in writing and the Group shall have a right of first
refusal to fake up such opportunity. The Group shall within 30 business
days after the receipt of the writlen notice, notify the Controlling
Shareholders whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal.
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The Company has received a written confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of the compliance with and the enforcement
of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2023. All
independent non-executive Direcfors have reviewed the compliance
of the Deed of Non-competition entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders as to whether the Controlling Shareholders had abided
by the Deed of non-Competition. All independent non-executive
Directors also confirmed that the Confrolling Shareholders had  not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of this
annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees are valuable assets for
the Group's continuous development and endeavours fo provide
competitive remuneration package and various benefits to affract and
refain its talents. Employees are remunerated according to their job
scope, responsibilifies, and performance. Employees are also enfifled
to discretionary bonus depending on their respective performance and
profitability of the Group. Other form of remuneration packages include
medical insurance coverage for all employees and leaves including
marrioge, matemity, paternity, childcare leaves and compassionate
leaves.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise
and motivate contributions of its employees. Further defails regarding
the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

The Group maintains a close relationship with ifs customers and
suppliers. The Group has approximately 30 years of relationship with
its largest customer, which is the largest supermarket chain in Singapore
with a network of over 200 outlets and approximately 20 vyears of
relationship with its largest supplier, which is a grower, processor and
infernational frader and exporter of nuts and dried fruits.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Singapore and Malaysia law, the Group makes
confribution to the Cenfral Provident Fund and the Employees Provident
Fund which provides for the refirement benefits for eligible employees in
Singapore and Malaysia respectively. Both the employer and employee
are required to make contributions info the employee’s individual
account in the Central Provident Fund or the Employees Provident Fund
at a specified percentage of the employee’s monthly income. As af
the date of this annual report, the Group is in comp|ionce with this
requirement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant fo the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability for the year ended 31 December 2023.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Compony is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No confract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered
info or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events affer the year ended 31 December
2023 and up fo the dafe of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES
On 25 July 2023, Tai Sun (Lim Kee| Food Industries Pte Lid (“TSS"),

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company subscribed for treasury
bills {the “Treasury Bills") (ISIN Code: SGXZ42332148) issued by the
Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS") in the principal amount of
$$3,926,600 (the “TB Subscription”). The maturity date of the Treasury
Bills was 23 January 2024 and the Treasury Bills have matured as af
the date of this annual report.
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On 10 November 2023, TSS subscribed for credit linked notes
(the "Credit linked Notes") issued by DBS Bank lid referencing the
MAS Bill (ISIN Code: SGXZ39502059) in the principal amount
of $$7,730,791 (the "CILN Subscription”, together with the TB
Subscription, the “Subscriptions”). The maturity date of the Credit
Linked Notes was 2 February 2024 and the Credit Linked Notes have
matured as at the date of this annual report.

The Treasury Bills were issued by the MAS. The Credit linked Notes
were linked to the MAS Bill. Both the Treasury Bills and the Credit
Linked Notes were: [i] backed by the Government of Singapore (Fitch
and S&P rating of AAA) which were considered to be low risk; (i) short
term (3 and & months); and {iii] highly liquid (fraded on secondary
markets).

The Subscriptions were for the purpose of capital preservation by the
Group. Upon the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited's enquiry, the
Company acknowledges that it has inadvertently failed to comply with
the requirements in respect of the Subscriptions under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules as it was under the impression that the Subscriptions
with the purpose fo eamn inferest were similar to bank deposits in
nature, and would not consfitute fransactions under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Company emphasises that the delay in disclosure was
a oneoff event and that the Company had no intention to withhold
information from the shareholders and the public.

The Company takes the above non-compliance of the Listing Rules
seriously and the Company has promptly undertaken and/or proposed
to implement the following remedial actions to prevent the recurrence of

similar non-compliance incidents in the future:

(i) the Company will provide regular trainings to the relevant officers
of the Group on the Llisting Rules requirements particularly on
notifiable transactions, in order to reinforce and strengthen
their knowledge on the Listing Rules and their ability to identify
possible compliance issues at an early stage of the transaction;

and

(i)  the Company will work closely with its external professional
advisers and seek their advice as and when appropriate in
relation fo such potential notifiable transactions in the future.
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REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) has three members,
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka
Yu, M. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao). Mr. Chan

Ka Yu is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Commitiee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 and had submitted
the same fo the Board for approval. The Audit Committee were of the
opinion that the Financial Statements, the results announcement and this
annual report had been prepared in compliance with the applicable
accounting standards, requirements and the Llisting Rules, and that
adequate disclosure had been made, save as what is disclosed under
Compliance with the Listing Rules header above.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Financial
Statements were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP. Deloitte & Touche
LLP will refire, and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment af the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM fo re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LIP as the external audifor of the
Company unfil the conclusion of the next AGM and fo authorise the
Board fo fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders’ value through
good corporate governance.

The Directors recognise that a good corporate governance is essential
for the Company to achieve its objectives and drive improvement, as
well as maintain legal and ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders,
regulators and the general public.

The Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 14 January
2019, being the listing Date. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board and save as
disclosed hereunder, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code which
are applicable to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code states that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should nof be performed by the same individual.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen is the Chairlady of the Board. As the Chairlady,
Ms Lim Seow Yen manages the board’s business and activities and
provides guidance and direction to other board members to ensure
that the Board works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

The Company has no such position as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monifored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management
of the Group. The Board believes that there is sufficient balance of
power and authority as there are four experienced executive Directors
each overseeing various aspects of the business, namely finance and
operations, sales and marketing and production functions. In addition,
there are three independent non-executive Directors who are sufficiently
experienced and capable of monitoring the operations of the Group.
The Board will meet from time to time to discuss issues arising from
operations of the Group.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Direcfors of Listed Issuers as set forth in Appendix C3 fo the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the
Direcfors. Employees of the Group (the “Relevant Employees”] who,
because of their office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or ifs securities are also subject
fo compliance with the Model Code. Following specific enquiry,
each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees was

noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members as follows:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Lim Seow Yen (Chairladly)
M. Llim Fung Yee

Mr. Llim Fung Chor
Mr. Lim Seng Chye (lin Shengcai)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

Mr. Llee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

The biogrophico| information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. The relationships between the members of the
Board are also disclosed under the same section.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board af all fimes met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

48 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2023

ETRFRZ2BETA
ARBDERA LR RN ERCIME 2 £ T
ABERETRESFR G ZBRETH FREFHETT
&5 R 5 2 ¥R < ZE Bl o TR B 7% =K (B {RE R 4K 1T R B
ERABAARREESABEENAEEES
(IBREER]) TABTIRETA - {FHEEEN
B EEERANBE_T_=F1+-A=1+—
BLEFE-—BEETHRETR -BE_T_=F
TZA=1+—HBLEHFE ARAAEETGRHE
ENETRETANEMF-

Exg
HE SR L TR K B

BITES:
MR L (£E)
M FRE
M7 EEE
MEF L

BIHKHTES:
FES ST
FRMAEL
R

EFNERANBRAER [EFRERERE
BEHE] — S-S E KA 2 HNBEENRE
HRHE -

BAFHTES

HE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HItFE EFg
BERREEMRABERZREE D =R B IFNTT
E=x(HEFEN =Dz BER—AHEAE
EEXERNET IRV BERER)ORE

ARFIDEEZTBUIFNTESRE EMARAE
SISIGRPTE 2 B S B R RN EFE
B EREREK -ANRABBABRBLIERNTES
B RBIYAL



APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to Code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rofation at least once every three
years.

Each of Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung Yee, Mr. Llim Fung Chor and
Mr. Lim Seng Chye (lin Shengcai), all being executive Directors, is
appointed under a service agreement for a ferm of three years from the
Listing Date which is terminable by either party by giving three months’
written nofice to the other party. Each of Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan
Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow [Zhou Jieyao), all being independent
non-executive Directors, is appointed under a letter of appointment for
a term of three years from the Listing Date which is terminable by either
party by giving one month's written notice to the other party.

In accordance with the Arficles, at each annual general meeting
one-hird of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject fo retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the
general meefing at which a Director refires may fill the vacated office.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairlady, Ms. Llim Seow Yen, determines and
monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual budgets and business
plans, evaluates the performance of the Group, and supervises the
management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of the corporate
and financial policies, review and assessment of the Company's
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems and
the oversight of the management of the Group's business and affairs.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. All Directors have full and fimely access fo all
the information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the senior management. The Direcfors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties o the Company.

The Direcfors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the confribution required from
each Directfor to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy’) on 20 December 2018, which sefs out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, integrity, management experience,
technical skills, industry or professional knowledge and experience. All
Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Board
Diversity Policy fo ensure its effectiveness and considered that the
Group had achieved board diversity for the year ended 31 December
2023.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board had adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 20 December 2018, which sefs ouf the approach fo determine
the nomination of Directors, the procedure, process and criteria fo be
adopted for the purposes of selecting and recommending candidates
for diredorship, and shall make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Direcfors and succession planning for
Directors.
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The Company considered that, in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, the nomination committee of the Board may make
reference to certain criteria, including but not limited fo, the experience
in the Compony's prmcipo| business ond/or the indusTry in which the
Company operates, balance of skills, knowledge and experience on
the Board, and various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Nomination
Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Board has @
balance of expertise, skills and experience required for the business of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS" CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

A newly appoinfed Director will receive formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director's responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their confribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors were encouraged to atfend relevant training
courses at the Company's expense.
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BOARD PROCESS

The Group has in place a clear board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least four times per year. Directors receive
at least 14 days’ prior written nofice of regular Board meetings and
agenda. The Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
background information, are normally sent 1o all Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting. For other Board meetings, Directors are
given as much nofice as possible in the circumstances. Directors may
include any matters they wish fo discuss in the agenda.

Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are prepared and kept
by the company secretary of the Group, and are open for inspection
by Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secrefary, and are allowed to seek external
professional advice if needed.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board had four

meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the
Audit Committee,
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)

the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration

and the risk management committee (the “Risk Management
Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Commitiee and the Nomination Commitiee are posted
on the Company's website (www.tswonders.com.hk) and the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to
shareholders upon request. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Commitiee on 20 December 2018
of the
Listing Rules and Code provision D.3 of the Corporate Governance

with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21

Code. The primary duties of the Audit Commitiee are to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the Group's financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management sysfem, fo oversee the audit process and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Commitiee has three members, consisting of all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao). Mr. Chan Ka Yu is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan Ka Yu possesses appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former pariner of the existing external auditors of the
Company.

The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee had
two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023:

o Review and discuss the annual financial statements, results
announcements and reports, the related accounting principles
and pracfices adopfed by the Group and the relevant audit

findings;

®  Review and report on related party fransactions carried out
during the year ended 31 December 2023;

e Discuss and recommend the re-appointment of external auditors.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Group established the Remuneration Commitiee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision E.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary
duties of the remuneration committee include but not limited to, (i)
making recommendations fo the Direcfors on the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
esfablishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; i) defermining the ferms of the specific
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management; and (i)
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference
fo corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to
time.

The Remuneration Commitiee has four members, consisting of an
executive Direcfor, Mr. Lim Fung Yee, and all independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. Llee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow
(Zhou Jieyao). Mr. lee Yan Fai is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The members of the Remuneration Committee should meet at least once
a vyear. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee had two meetings.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023:

e Review on the remuneration packages for individual Directors and
senior management and made recommendations to the Board;

and

®  Review on the bonus and salary packages for the executive
Directors and made recommendations fo the Board

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than Directfors) by bands for the year ended 31 December 2023
is sef out below:
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Further defails of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Group established the Nomination Committee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision B.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include but not limited to, (i) reviewing
the sfructure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a
regular basis; (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (i) assessing the independence of the independent
non-execufive Directors; (iv)] making recommendations fo the Board
in relation fo the appointment and removal of Directors and senior
management, and on matters of succession planning; and (v) making
recommendations fo the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and/or senior management.
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The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment
of new Direcfors, faking info account a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience, and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, and assess their effectiveness, and where
necessary, make any revisions that may be required and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee has four members, consisting of
an executive Director, Mr. Lim Fung Chor, and all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao). Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou

Jieyao) is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The members of the Nomination Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee had one meeting.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023:

° Review the sfructure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations fo the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

®  Assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

*  Make recommendations fo the Board on relevant matters relafing
fo the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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Risk Management Committee

The Group established the Risk Management Committee on
20 December 2018 with written terms of reference, to further
enhance the Group's existing internal risk management functions. The
primary duties of the Risk Management Committee include but not
limited to, monitoring the Group's exposure fo sanctions risks and its

implementation of the related internal control procedures.

The Risk Management Commitiee has four members, consisting of four
executive Directors, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Lim Fung Yee, Mr. Llim Fung
Chor and Mr. Llim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai). Ms. Lim Seow Yen is the
chairlady of the Risk Management Committee.

The members of the Risk Management Committee should meet at least
twice a vyear. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Risk
Management Committee had two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023:

e Review and approve all relevant business transaction
documentation from customers/distributors or potential
customers/distributors from sanctioned countries and with
sanctioned persons;

*  Monitor the use of proceeds from the share offer of the
Company; and

®  Review the internal control policies and procedures with respect

to sanctions law matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS 12 BRI AL
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code EEE& BB BT EE AT BISFRIE A 2. 1§
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. PAT L A B RE

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and  EZEEEEBEZARFINEEERBRELER EF
practices, fraining and continuous professional development of Directors  Ra R EIEEAIFII RFEEEERE - AR AT
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on BT AERREERTEHEOBOR R E R HiZE
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of — <FRI K155 HEBFIBE R KA A GIEFEE R
the Model Code and the guidelines, and the Company’s compliance  BIBI1E S - AR AR EE S mE R A FHEIE R -
with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZEeHKENHERE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director af the annual general meeting, SBEEZXMARFAREBEZ_ZEZ_=F+=-A
Board meefings and Board committee meetings of the Company held :‘f’ BEFERTHRRAFAG EFTY
during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the fable FEREZFZEGEZEMLELEHN TR

below:
Number of attendance/number of meetings held
HERY BTEERY
Risk Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Management General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ERERZE RRAF
2 Exe ENRZEg® ¥FHZEEe ERZEg ) PN
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Ms. Lim Seow Yen WNEE L+ 4/4 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 2/2 1/1
M. lim Fung Yee WEFLE 4/4  N/AT@EHR 2/2 N/AT#ER 2/2 1/1
M. Lim Fung Chor WHELE 4/4  N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 2/2 1/1
M. Lim Seng Chye (lin Shengcail WERTE 4/4 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 2/2 1/1
Indlependent Non-executive Directors: BUHFNTEE:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BREFEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 /1 N/AR#ER 1/1
M. Lee Yan Fai TEELE 4/4 2/2 2/2 /1 N/ATER 1/1
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) EEREE 4/4 2/2 2/2 /1 N/ATER 1/1
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According to article 62 of the Articles, an annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year other than the year
of the Company's adopfion of the Arficles. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Company held its annual general meeting on
19 May 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023
and ensure that they are published in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating fo
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability fo continue as a going concern.

The sfatement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibiliies on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Audifor's Report of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Deloitte & Touche LLP was
engaged as the Group's independent audifor.

The remuneration paid/payable to auditors of the Company and
Deloitle Network firms for audit services and non-audit services in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 amount to $$225,963
and $$25,038 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strafegic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
esftablishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and infernal control systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure fo achieve business obijectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Company had reviewed the need for
an internal audit function. Internal audit function of the Company had
been and will be carried out under the leadership of the Board and the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board, through |i)
the Risk Management Committee, had conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, particularly on the Group's exposure fo sanctions risks; and (i)
the Audit Committee, had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the infernal control system of the Group covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. The Board considers that the Group’s risk management
and infernal control systems are adequate and effective. The Board
expects that a review of the risk management and internal control
systems will be performed annually.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated fo the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Procedures such
as limit access to inside information fo those who need to know and
requiring external parties fo execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company fo guard against mishandling of
inside information. The Group also reminds those relevant personnel
and other professional parties to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel ("“Mr. Chan”) is the company secretary of the
Company, who reports directly fo the Board and is responsible for,
among others, providing updated and fimely information to all Directors
from time to time. Mr. Chan is nominated by an external service
provider to assist in company secretarial affairs of the Company. Mr.
Chan's primary contact person at the Company is the Chairlady of
the Board, Ms. lim Seow Yen. During the year ended 31 December
2023, Mr. Chan confirmed that he had taken no less than 15 hours of
professional fraining in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
His biographical details are set out in the section headed "Biographical
Details of the Direcfors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures fo
enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and communicate efficienﬂy with the Company.
Under the Articles and the relevant policies and procedures of the
Company, the shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)  convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting, pursuant fo article 64 of the Articles.
Extraordinary general meetfings shall also be convened on the
requisiion of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secrefary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the fransaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months affer the deposit
of such requisition at the Company's Hong Kong office at
Rooms 190T1A, 1902 & 1902A, 19/F New World Tower |,
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself [themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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(i) put forth proposals at shareholders’” meeting:

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for
including a resolution at an extraordinary general meefing. The
requirements and procedures are set out in paragraph (i) above.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a
retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting, unless nofice in writing of the intention fo propose that
person for election as a Director and nofice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of the notices required will commence
no earlier than the day affer the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven days prior fo the dafe of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be af least seven days.

(iii) put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board's attention
can be sent in writing fo the company secretary at the Company's
Hong Kong office at Rooms 1901A, 1902 & 1902A, 19/F,
New World Tower I, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other extraordinary
general meefings. At the annual general meeting, Direcfors (or their
delegates as appropriate) are availoble to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.
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The Company's website (www.tswonders.com.hk) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the Company
to the shareholders, other stakeholders and investors. The Company
will also Updofe the website information from time to time to inform the
shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:
Singapore Hong Kong

255 Pandan Loop
Singapore 128433

Rooms 1Q01A, 1902

& 1902A

New World Tower |

16-18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

The Company confinues fo enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular diclogue with institutional investors and analysfs o
keep them posted of the Company's developments. Enquiries from
shareholders and investors are dealt with in an informative and fimely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. Board
members and appropriafe senior sfaff of the Group are available af the
meeting fo answer any questions raised by shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there had been no
significant changes of the constitutional documents of the Company.

An upfodate version of the memorandum and the Articles is available
on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR - HEREGRE

The Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) report of TS
Wonders Holding Limited ("We" or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
[collectively known as the “Group”), ("ESG Report’] addresses a
range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our sustainability
approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during the period

from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

BASIS OF THIS ESG REPORT

This ESG Report is prepared according to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” [the "ESG Reporting Guide”) setout
in Appendix C.2 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (“listing Rules”).

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and the Group's business
operation, this ESG Report divides the relevant aspects and key
performance indicators ('KPI'), which are considered to be relevant and
material to the Group, info nine subject areas:

1. We and the Environment

2. Dealing with Climate Change Impact

3. Our Supply Chain Management

4. Commitment to Product Quality

5. Commitment fo Our Employees

6. Commitment to Uphold Ethics and Integrity
7. Development and Training

8. Occupational Health and Safety

9. Giving Back to the Community

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide is also
available at the end of the ESG Report for reference. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in the Reporting Period.

As a snack food manufacturer, we are committed fo delivering high
quality and safe food products and confinuously meeting customers’
expectations and complying with legal requirements.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

THE BOARD AND ESG EXECUTIVE GROUP

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company retains overall
responsibility for the governance of ESG which includes, but not limited
to identifying and evaluating ESG related risks, determining ESG
strategy and scope, setting forth related risk management and infernal
control system and opproving the disclosure in this ESG Report.

An ESG Executive Group, consisting of an executive Director,
senior management from Finance, Operation and Human Resources
departments in Singapore and Malaysia, is established by the Board
for the purpose of implementing the ESG inifiatives, collecting and
continuously monitoring ESG data and preparing this ESG Report.

The key functions, and responsibilities of the ESG Executive Group are:

1. Leadership

The ESG Executive Group is chaired by an Executive Director.

2. Knowledge of Business

All ESG Executive Group members are involved in the daily
operations and management of the business.

3. Active Involvement

Members of the ESG Executive Group shall meet regularly, no
less than an interval of annually.

RIE HEREGRSE

EEFHEESCH T/

ARREFG([EFg])HESCE RAELE

BT BEE RN ER RAEESCHE 8 Rk

B TE ESGER & B &5 [&] - I 7 A8 A /= fx B 3% B ) T
TH R A LR EESCRE M HEARAR -

EEZGCRUESCHTTNE KEBE - BT
EREURREFIMEMNERATHE  2ERA
HERFPINEREEAER BEHEITESCHE
Yo B2 Ko $5 4E B PRESCEUR I AR B ESCHR & ©

ESCHIT/ NMEMEIERENREER:

1. &E
ESGHAT/MAM —BAITEEEEER -

2. EBARE
ESGHIT/MEAMMBER B2 EEBHH
r-‘J-‘a)\)\ &ﬁfi

3. BWE2H

ESG#L1T/NE A
TRPR—IR

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2023 %3 69



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

4. Right to Access 4.

The ESG Executive Group has the rights to access to all ESG-
related facts and information and fo engage specialists to assist
in the study and preparation of ESG matters at cost of the
Company.

5. Responsibilities to Implement and Monitor 5.

The ESG Executive Group is instructed by the Board to implement
and monitor our ESGrelated initiatives.

6. Independent Reporting 6.

The ESG Executive Group has the rights and responsibilities o
report fo the Board independently on important ESG matters.

Board of
Directors

3

ESG Executive
Group

ESG @47/

An Executive

ERER
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Director
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Human Resource Finance Operational
Function Function Function
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Company has adopted a management approach fo identify,
assess, priorifise and manage material ESGrrelated issues, which have
the following seven elements.

1. Policies

We have established and rolled out company-wide policies to
regulate our ESGrrelated activities.

2.  Commitments

We are committed to comply with all ESGrelated regulatory
requirements in Singapore and Malaysia and ESG reporting
standards applied fo listed issuers in Hong Kong.

3.  Goals and targets

We are dedicated to set redlistic and achievable goals and
fargefs, faking into consideration our scale of business and
current and optimal level of stfandard.

4. Responsibilities

We have a top-down governance fo manage our ESG acfivifies,
which is primarily driven by the Board of Directors and effectively
executed by our ESG Executive Group.

5.  Resources

We have set aside sufficient resources fo execute the ESG
activities, including an acceptable financial budget and time
devotion by relevant departmental /functional personnel, including
but not limited to Operation Department, Finance Department,
and Human Resources Department.

6. Grievance mechanisms

We have monitored the effectiveness of our ESG activities and
welcome feedback from our stakeholders to improve our ESG
initiatives from time to time.

7. Specific actions

We have put in place ISO (“International Organisation
for Standardisation”) certified systems and product quality
management system fo ensure related ESG activities adhere o
internationally and industry recognized standards.
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REPORTING BOUNDARIES AND PRINCIPLES

The Board, with the assistance of the ESG Executive group, has
identified key ESG risks of the Group based on the considerafion of
a series of factors such as business nature and scale, geographic
location, regulatory requirements, operating practices, and stakeholders’
expectations.

The key considerations that the Board has taken with regards to the
business operations of the Group include:

1. Our business is headquartered in Singapore with factories in
Malaysia;

2. Our operation involves production, packaging and sale of snack
food products;

3. Our production and logistic arangement involve emissions and

use of natural resources:

4. Our operation is subject to the various food safety related
regulations; and

5. Our operation is subject fo the various environmental profection
related regulations.

In preparing this ESG Report, the ESG Executive Group has followed
the principles of materiality, quantitative and consistency under which
we believe it has applied a consistent and structured methodology for
defermining the materiality level, measuring in meaningful quantitative
units and reporting our ESG matters in a scope that is relevant and
significant to the Group.

Based on our assessment, the reporting boundary for this ESG Report
shall be set at the management, production, and logistic function of our
Singapore and Malaysia operations.
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The Board and ESG Executive Group have understood, concurred
with and applied the four core ESG principles in the course of sefting
ESG strafegy, conducting our ESG initiatives, collecting ESG daita,
caleulating ESG KPI and preparing and issuing this ESG Report. The
four core ESG principles are materiality, consistency, balance and
quantitative.
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BixEE FTEEKED
Management Production Logistics
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Singapore operation Higher Higher
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STAKEHOLDERS” ENGAGEMENT

In order to determine the issues which are relevant and material to our
business with respect to sustainability, the Group is aware that the key
is to understand the issues that our stakeholders are concerned most.

We acknowledge that in today's rapidly changing business climate,
attention to ESG issues is becoming critical to our longferm competitive
success. Stakeholders’ engagement is an infegral part of the Group's
business management as it helps the Group fo assess potential risks
and business opporfunities. Communicating with stakeholders and
understanding their views may better align the Group’s business
practices with stakeholders’ needs and expectations and properly
address different views.
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We have identified the following key stakeholders based on the

mutual dependency and influence. On a regular basis, the Group

communicates with key stakeholders within and outside the Group

through various channels.

Key Stakeholders
FERNE

Government Departments
& Regulators
BUFERFI R EEE B

Investors & Shareholders

REERERR

Employees
8T

Communication Channels

®  Regulatory updates correspondence
EERTEHNER
Inferaction and visits
) &l
e Compliance advisor
BRER
e Government inspections

BRHE 5

Corporate website and emails
UNEIECIYS )
®  Annual general meeting
R BEFRE
e Announcements and disclosures
NERHE
° Inferim/Annual Reports

FHFEWRE

i Regular management meetings
EHEEEg®

e Employee suggestion boxes
BETERM

e Performance evaluation
REFE

e Training

=l
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Stakeholders” Main Concerns

BOENTERISEE

e legal compliance
B TIER

e Food safety
RmEE

e Work safety
THERZ

. Environmental protection
RIERE

e Climate change
RIREL

e Performance and profitability
FEEER

®  Scale and capacity
IR

*  Markef share
M58

®  Supply chain management
HregEe

o Reputation
BE

e Career development
BEERR

®  Remuneration and benefits
¥ B 4E R

e Staff training
8T

e Work health and safety
THREEERZ 2
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Key Stakeholders Communication Channels
TEFHNE BERE
Customers e Site visits
EF B
° Inferim/Annual Reports
hEl S EFERE
e Cusfomer hotline
BEP AR
e Sales Representative's visit
HERKFD
Suppliers & subconsultants e /\/\eeﬁng and correspondence
HEBR D BERE SHEAE
e Onsite visifs
BEHER
e Product quality inspection
EmEERR
®  Regulor performance assessment
EHARBE G
Media, community and e Community evenfs
the public IR E
B HERLR e Employees’ voluntary activities
BTHEREH

The Board and ESG Executive Group acknowledge that the
stakeholders' engagement is an important step to obtain different
views of sustainability development and to form a basis for us to
provide feedback. Accordingly, on top of our regular engagements,
we have formulated plans to strengthen our stakeholders’ engagement
process, including the infended use of an ESG survey and inferview
program, from which the information and feedback fo be collected
and exchanged, will further enable us to take appropriate actions and
enhance our ESG inifiatives and reporting.
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Stakeholders” Main Concerns

BOENETERIEE

®  Product quality
EmEE

e Food safety
BEmRE

®  Product pricing
EmEE

*  Image and repufation
REBRE

d Environmental protection

RERE

*  Maferial pricing
MEEE

e Stability and sustainability
REMEASEN

e Food safety
Rm&E

e Product quality
EmEE

e Climafe change

RIREL

e Community service
At [ AR %5

. Environmental protection
RS RE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMTML

In the preparation of this ESG Report, our ESG Executive Group gathers 7 #7 2 ANESGHR 2 If - ESGHA 1T /)N 4H 38 38 35 48 2
important facts and information through continuous communications R EBBUWEEZEFERER BEHFNE
with our stakeholders, particularly those in relation to our operating  #1TESGHZE - FRIZ B HE M L E BN EF
practices, employment practices, and environmental performance/  ®#RIRIRRIE S EBBA S E - ESGHIT/)
impact. The ESG Executive Group has further analysed those facts and BB #E— AT ZEFERER WHEHITERZE
information, collated them with industry reference and evaluated them — BRIEITE LA RBIBEAESCRENEEZE N 2
against materiality, quantitative measures, balance and consistency L 3§1E -« T # & — B R Rl 17 574 - ESGHEAAT
of this ESG Report. The ESG Executive Group has considered every /N B & BESCHR S 15 5| K9 & I &3 - I #E € 1A
provision of the ESG Reporting Guide and identified the 14 most  TNIFTAESCHR&EHBAERRM 14BESCGER -
relevant ESG issues for this ESG Report as presented below.

Environmental 215

* Environmental protection IRE{R &
* Waste management BEZEYE IR
e Climate change impact on business SRR (L ¥ K &

Product quality ERE2

Care for employee BFAEET

Staff occupational health and safety E THRERER ZZE
Labour compliance % T&#7

Staff competency & T EEH

Green supply chain #E @ HtFEHE

Stable supply TE7E i

Operational efficiency % B =&

Care for society BEHE

Governance &34

* Anticorruption RE’5
e Diversity and equality ZtibtRFE

The Board has reviewed and approved the assessment of the ESG  EF & B & ML /EESCHIT/ N BB R - 1§
Executive Group and has integrated the concermned ESG issues info  HHBAESCEE M AR ERMERELR LA RERR
the overall risk management framework and incorporated into regular 49 A B A 502 B ok M BB R i AT &)

infernal review or infernal audit plan on a rotation basis.
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WE AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is dedicated to protecting the environment and
fargefing af being a good environmental steward. In respect of
environmental aspect, we have established three objectives:

1. Full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
relating to environmental protfection;

2. Reduce the impact of business on the environment; and

3. Reduce the use of natural resources.

Overall compliance standing

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
applicable laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including, but not limited
fo the following:

1. Energy Conservation Act 2012 Singapore;

2. Environmental Protection and Management Act 1999 of
Singapore;

3. Environmental Public Health Act (EPHA] 1987 of
Singapore;

4. Environmental Qudlity (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009
of Malaysia; and

5. Environmental Quality (Sewage) Regulations 2009 of
Malaysia.

We have not been subjected to any material claims or penalties
in relation to environmental protection. The KPI in respect of
emissions and use of resources are presented in the section
headed “Environmental Key Performance Indicators”.
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Emission and conservation measures

The greenhouse gas [(GHG') emissions of our Group are mainly
generated from diesel consumed in the logistics operation in
Singapore and Malaysia. Our indirect GHG emissions are
mainly generated from the purchased electricity in our Singapore
and Malaysia operations.

We are dedicated in reducing the emission generated by our
Group and, accordingly, have established relevant policies and
initiatives, including:

1. Promoting the use of proper diesel for our truck team;

2. Sending our fruck team for periodic inspection and repair
for any emission issues;

3. Encouraging our driver fo turn off the trucks at prolong
stoppage; and

4. Considering and planning the use of more environmentally
friendly fruck models at next replacement.

Water consumption and waste management

The major water consumption of the Group is mainly for the
production processes in Singapore and Malaysia. A number of
ESG initiatives have been taken by us, including:

1. We have established confrols and procedures fo ensure our
water usage is within the reasonable range necessary for
our productions fo avoid overuse;

2. We maintain a wastewater treatment plant at our
production facility in Johor, Malaysia where liquid wastfe is
treated before it is discharged; and

3. We have arranged the sludge used for our wastewater
freatment plant fo be processed fo exiract heavy mefals
and recycled for industrial use, or otherwise, disposed to a
licensed processor under the Minisiry of Energy, Science,
Technology and Environment and Climate Change of
Malaysia for further processing, such as tuming into fertiliser
or other form of safe or non-harmful disposable waste.
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The Board believes our practice and effort fulfils the standards
set out in the Environmental Profection and Management Act
(Chapter 94A of Singapore), Environmental Quality (Industrial
Effluent) Regulations 2009 (Malaysia) and Environmental Quality
[Sewage) Regulations 2009.

Other water consumption is related to office water consumption,
which is considered minimal in quantity. We have encouraged all
employees to develop the habit of conserving water consciously.
The domestic sewage is discharged info the urban sewage pipe
network.

Non-hazardous waste management

The nonhazardous waste generated by the Group's business
activities are carfon and plastic. Such waste is usually collected
and partially recycled. For damaged or contaminated carton and
plastic that cannot be recycled, they are collected and processed
by general waste service providers. Since 2021, we have
starfed maintaining the record of domestic waste disposal.

Use of Resources

The Group is fully aware of the high values of natural resources
and committed fo reducing the wasfe of resources in its daily
operation. Our operation protocol has set out several principles
of saving resources in a bid fo encourage employees to use the
natural resources in an effective way.

However, we are not able to formulate any sustainable
development plan fo reduce the usage of natural resources,
especially those nontenewable energy such as diesel, PG,
paper cartons, electricity and water as all these resources are
consumed in tandem with production and sales demand of

finished goods.

The Group is open and eager to explore any efficiency
improvement measure and system to enhance our sustainability
development.
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Water

We often explore effective ways of conserving water in each
segment of our operafions such as fixing dripping taps and
leakage immediately, using brooms and mops frequently to clean
the floor in all our working and production premises, advocating
the importance of saving water among employees through
posters and profocols.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not face any issues in
sourcing suitable water, which is supplied by the government.

Packaging material

We adopt standardised packaging materials for finished
products. It is widely acknowledged that the snack packaging
is one of the environmental concerns. To better confrol the
consumption of packaging materials, we have specific
procurement procedure that allow us to order and use packaging
materials optimally to avoid overordering and wasfage.

Our Group will continue to look for ways to reduce emissions
and natural resource impact from our operations. VWe aim to
continually strive to understand and assess our impact and
contributions to all environmental, social and governance issues.

Environmental and natural resources

We are active in promoting environmental awareness among
our employees through encouraging them of the four principles of
"recycle”, “reuse”, "conserve water” and “conserve energy”.

We are dedicated fo promoting the principles by encouraging
our employees to adopt the following “green” actions, among
other environmental measures mentioned above.

1. Minimise paper usage;

2. Reusing or recycling used paper;

3. Tuming off lights after office hours and holidays; and

4.  Usage of lightemitting diode (LED] lighting in efforts to
reduce energy consumption.
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RIE - HERELGRE
Our Environmental Targets BN EREE
The Company considers that it has reached an optimal point B AFENEBER ARARBEE
in relation to emission control and use of resources, taking BERRIE S K & R HEEL@ZF@JK o
consideration of our new expansion. The Company sefs a target RRARTEN B IR AR E A8 HERUE
of maintaining its emission confrol and use of resources by RERER (REEXWETE) W T
infensity or by revenue and will revisit such target from time to ENEREBRE
time.
Environmental Key Performance Indicators RERARENES
Emission Type Indicator FY2022 FY2023
235§ kil BEE —E-BF —RI=MEF
Greenhouse gas' Direct emissions — Scope 1° (tonnes COy) 3,146 3,094
RERE EEBE—#E (B =1t h%)
Indirect emissions — Scope 24 [fonnes CO») 1,531 3,039
MR —BE2(ME=a{bix)
Indirect emissions — Scope 3° [tonnes CO,) 381 166
B BER — & E 3 (Mg — &b k)
Exhaust gas' Sulphur Dioxide (SO,) — kg 2 -
EER Z&EWR(SO)—F =
Nitrogen Oxides [NO,) - kg 666 785
ARAWINO)—F =
Parficulate Matter (PM) — 141 75
FERLY)(PM)— F 72
FY2023
Maijor resource consumed Unit FY2022 FY2023 Intensity?
—E-ZHMEF
HENEEER B ey < [ 3 —E=BF mE?
Water — processing tonnes 137,700 250,300 3,570
K=mT W
Electricity — processing kWh 2,632,385 4,345,415 61,973
BEAN-MT TEE
Diesel litre 1,123,872 1,006,097 14,349
5o nF
Packaging materials — carton & fonnes 806 1,124 16
paper
BB — 4R A8 R AR SR 0]
LPG kg 11,552 14,999 214
BAL AR Ny
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Notes to above table:

1

6

The calculation of emission is referenced to Guidelines to Account
for ad Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings in Hong Kong by Environmental Profection Department
and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Adminisirative Region
(2010 Edition), 1ISO14064 by international standard organization;
The ESG Reporting Guide, Practical Guide on Carbon Audit And
Management, and Energy Market of Singapore.

Intensity of major resource consumed for every S$1.0 million of
revenue for FY2023.

Maijor source of Scope 1 emission came from usage of diesel and

LPG.

Maijor source of Scope 2 emission came from usage of purchased
electricity.

Maijor source of Scope 3 emission came from processing fresh
water and sewage by government departments.

Our operation does not generate hazardous waste.

B. DEALING WITH CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACT

In assessing the climate changes impact on the Group, the

Compoany follows recommendations and approach set out by The

Task Force of Climaterelated Financial Disclosure ("TCFD").

The ESG Executive Group measures the climate change impact

by the following two risk categories:

Transition Risk

Referring to a situation where the transitioning fo a lower-
carbon economy may entail extensive policy, legal,
technology, and market changes fo address mitigation and
adaptation requirements related to climate change.

Physical Risk

Referring to direct damage fo assets and indirect impacts
from supply chain disruption that may have financial
implications for the Group. Physical risk can be event
driven (as “Acute Events risk”) or gradually shifted over in a
period of time (as “Chronic Shift risk”).
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The ESG Executive Group has also considered:

1.

Country risk

e The overall level of climate change impact in
Singapore and Malaysia

Industry Trend

e The trends and practice of the food industry in
Singapore and Malaysia

Group Challenge

The ESG Executive Group has also evaluated the
possibilities of the four main impacts led by climafe
changes, namely:

1 Increased wildfires,
2 Declining water supplies,
3 Reduced agricultural yields,

4 Health impact
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The ESG Executive Group has considered all relevant risks ESCHIT R ZEBERIERE (LT E
in relation fo climate changes impact and believes that the BEBNMARERR YRA/ARRA
Company is more likely to be subject to the risks presented 1R A] B8 [ % DA T L Bg: o

below.

Country Risk BIXE
+ Increasing use of electric cars and  + Crop yield drop in Malaysia due to  No direct physical risk at large for
tightened fuel controls rising temperature Singapore and Malaysia
+ BB fEFREAN  BREHR S iR + BRB LA FEFMNE R ERATMS -
ERADRENEET R EEEERAR

Industry Trend 1T%8%:

- Disruptive technology has not - No industry-specific regulation yet - Not easy fo have an alternative market
emerged yet T RAT R g foel s iy
Mk B ’ BRTEERERTSTIES

Group’s Challenge 752 B H i HY Bk

Infensive concentration of suppliers in Malaysia Rising customers’ green awareness

HPER S L SR FE s of environmental impact of food industry
ERFHBERITENRREERARET
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Risk Considerations over Application to the Group’s Operations
Climate Change Impact (Singapore and Malaysia)

RirgtEENEREZEEE BRARAEEXLLEE (MINKKRERAS)

Transition risk

3 b

Physical risk
BERER

Risk level assessment

[ B ok S R

Political and legal risk
Boa MoE R R
Market risk

5 E R

Reputation risk
BE[E

Technology risk
Bt [

Acute event risk
S EHFRER
Chronic shift risk
18 MRS [ b

Political and legal risk
Boa MR R R
Market risk

5 E R

Reputation risk
BERAR
Technology risk
sy

Acute event risk

SMHEHE R
Chronic shift risk
2R

Both

mESH

Both

MES A

Singapore

N

Malaysia's operation

BRODESZE

Malaysia’s operation
RS TS 2 8
Both

mEBE

Medium to High
TEER
Llow to Medium, no trend of mitigation/replacement of market
BEPS BERBE BARHS
High
5
Llow to Medium, no trend of disruptive technology for food industry
BEPEF ReTEELREBERMBEE
Low to Medium, no direct threat from sea level rise,
decreased water supplies, wildfire etc.
BERSE BREEFE LT HKORD RIWNENEEXERE
Medium to High

ey =
REES
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R HER

ERWE

The Company is considered to be subjected to the following

climate change impacts to which the Company has developed

relevant acfion plans fo manage them as presented in the fable

below. The Company will confinue its study on climate change

impacts, committed fo on-going moniforing of relevant risks and

will update our climate change impact from time to time.

Relevant Climate
Change Risk
HERERESLCAR

Political and legal risk

BURRERERER

Political and legal risk

BUA R ERAR

Reputation risk

BERR

Chronic shift risk

erHEBmEkE

Driving Forces

&g h

Singapore requires vehicles to meet Euro VI
emission standards.

AN 2 RE AT A BN PR

Fuel cost may rise or may be subject to direct
or indirect environmental fax, which may drive
up our fransportation costs.

FRFIA AN BT B2 | TS AT RE /R b B Hx B

BIRGN MER e e R R IR ERRA -

Our customers have higher expectation that we
shall operate an “greener” and environmentally
friendly business.

BANEPHEMIZE | MRREEFT
EEHEE-

Increased CO, will reduce food production,
including crop yields such as rice, wheat and
maize worldwide.
“EBENSE RO EREREE B
KB NEREREREVNES
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The Group's Action
AEBHNEHIER

Vehicle will be replaced with Euro VI compliant
vehicle when it is due for decommissioning.
BEWERRE BERASTEBUNRENSE
ﬁﬁ ]

We shall be able fo shift a portion of such
additional costs as it is a general situation
applied fo all food indusiry's participants.
HRERMAERMITELEELDHENE
o RAPIE R ER — 280 L FRERINRAN o

We are active in managing our supplier and
dedicated in engaging environmentally friendly
suppliers

HPEREREMER YR OZTRRAIM
e

We will consider putting Environmental
Management System in place, such as ISO
14001.
BARERERRREEE
ISOT14001 -

BE W

We have a supply chain management plan to
diversify our supply chain within Malaysia and
around ofher regions.
BAIRAHEREEE UERBMES
KRR Hb R e EE S T -
We will continue to monitor the crop yie|d
situations worldwide and form a holisfic view
of food production rate.

RS EEEERIRRIENES
FRRAEXNERBR

We will continue to monitor the financial and

B AT

operational performance of our suppliers.

BPSREERBRENMIERZERR -
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OUR SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Food material supply is critical to our business and operations.

It is our policy to ensure we conduct business with legitimate
suppliers who maintain good social and compliance standards.
Accordingly, we have adopted and maintained stringent
procedures for the selection and assessment of our suppliers in
order fo manage the potential environmental and social risks that
might arise in the course of business.

During the Reporting Period, our major materials mainly come
from Singapore and Malaysia, collectively known as our critical

RIE HEREGRSE

HEEEE

RYRAHEENEMNEE R EEER
BEE-

HAPTEBUR R R PR BE SR IF R 4P 4
ERERBRENGZHEAFRRER HE
b FRAPT B AR R A AR BRAR AOAE B R P
NAHA R ER - AB AR E X B K=
BEPEENRIBNMESREBETER

RS HIRE RN EEM R EER AN
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suppliers.
Locations of our critical suppliers 2022 2023
RPN EEREFTRMEHE —E=—— —E-=%
Singapore 1IN 13 19
Malaysia 5 RE TR 236 218
Others (USA, China, India, Australia, HMBER (ER- -
Vietnam, Germany and Thailand) ENE BN - R -

e 21 19

Total HBEt 270 256

Supplier selection and continuous assessment

We conduct business with approved suppliers only after they
have passed our initial assessment. To be admitted as our
approved supplier, one must fulfill a number of social and
compliance conditions, including but not limited fo:

1. satisfactory product quality by conducting sample material
evaluation,

2. compliance with food safety regulatory matters, and

3. relevant quality and food safety management system and
certifications.

HEBRERISENG
HMEEEBEBRFY L AR A FHE
BREER & T EAK SRR R A fE
BESEmES THERARIET 25
BARRR :

1 ETERMHEE EBRENER

[y
oA

3. AFAHBNRENMRRLEEERR
SEER

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2023 %3 83



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

e )

Product quality ERmE
Inspect and examine samples provided by suppliers by laboratory testing for microbiological and chemical, fransportation
and environmental test and accelerated shelf life study.

Our infernal Laboratory will check product colour, quality, product moisture, and packaging sealing of every batch of
product.

BABRZWINHERRENERETER - BFHEY - 2K - EARRERANRRER MEFSR -

EMOABERZERESHERNEER B8 ERRENGRERMN -

Food safety compliance BEmEZZ2 &R

Request for and research on efforts adopted by the suppliers on their food safety, production and delivery procedures
and assess if their quality and food safety management system are reliable and sufficient.

ERIMEHEBFERREZE  FEVEREFAHNE D - HEHEENRRZ2EERARETEUEMARM

Annual assessment FE

Quality control department will perform an assessment on suppliers based on their product quality, timeliness of delivery,
responsiveness and pricing. The result of the assessment will then be discussed with executive Directors.

mEEHESREERME  BERRINER - BHEIREEBHHERETHE - BRITESSHTEERETI®

BRI RS AT - P BEEERR
S FRRE - WA — B4 E 7 D 125l
BEREHERNERmEMERENE
TG o LR A B R IR AR I B

Our assessment is also conducted on a continuous basis. We
perform inspections on incoming materials on a fransaction
basis, and we also have a designated quality control team to
perform an annual assessment of our suppliers over their product

quality and responsiveness etc. These assessments facilitate us
to understand and monitor the suppliers’ compliance readiness
against the standard of product quality and food safety which is
one of our ESG concerns.

In the event when our suppliers are found or potentially perceived
fo have significant deficiencies in relation to product quality and
safety, we would not hesitate in taking appropriate corrective
actions, including termination of services.

Considerations to Environmentally Friendly Products

Using environmentally friendly products or systems that produce
the products is one of the key considerations we adopt in the
selection of our critical suppliers. Nevertheless, it is our policy that
we do not engage with suppliers which constantly or seriously in
breach of related ESG rules and regulations.
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COMMITMENT TO PRODUCT QUALITY

We are committed to produce high quality snacks which are safe
and wholesome. Due fo the nafure of business, our operation
and products are subjected to high product responsibilities,
particularly over food safety and advertising and labelling. On
top of our standard hygiene and safety measure, we manage
our food safety concern through quality control, packaging and
product recall management.

Quality Control Management

In respect of food safety, we have been accredited with
various infernational quality management certifications for our
production facilities, including but not limited to Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Points ("HACCP") and various 1SO 9001,
ISO 22000 and Food Safety System Certification ("FSSC”)
22000 certificates. All responsible personnel in our operations
department are required fo attend refresher fraining according
fo our HACCP Quality Management system and requirement on
FSSC 22000.

We have implemented quality control throughout our production
process from raw materials fo product delivery fo ensure our food
safety standards are met. The key quality confrol measures that
we have faken include, but not limited to:

Materials

e Supplier selection and assessment
4 Inspection before accepting goods receipt

. Sample examination on quality

Inventory

e Accepfed materials are labelled and stored accordingly

. Materials are stacked and stored under firstinfirstout
method

e Temperature of the storage facility is closely monitored

RIE HEREGRSE
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Production

e Quality sample festing and inspection on semifinished
products are systematically performed

e laser sorters are deployed fo automatically defect and eject
iregular items based on colour, shape and size

Delivery

e All finished products are subject to a final comprehensive
test prior to loading for delivery

e Ensure delivery vehicles or containers are free from any
substances that may faint the packaged products

Packaging management

Our packaging material must also meet the following four criteria
fo ensure the quality of finished products:

£E
o RGMMETF R MEE MR R
wmE

e RAMXDE®R REEEG Fikk
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1. Barrier Protection 2. Permeability 3. Sedling Strength 4. Coefficient of Friction (COF)
W Bk 2 R BEM BHE BRI R B(COF)
» Moisture barrier * Moisture barrier » Mechanical strength of the « Estimation on the ratio of COF
g B E seal fo ensure no leakage while in motion
« Oxygen barrier « Oxygen barrier and packaging integrity et BB EREH L X
i) R BHNEHBE - RREARR
. . BERTEN
o Ultra violet transmittance
RINBHE
Product recall management EmBAOER

We have also established relevant product recall procedures that
enable us to respond fo recall incidents in a fimely and orderly
manner by our designated recall coordinator. Our key measures
include informing relevant parties such as our customers and
general public on a timely basis, tracing the affected products
through our labelling system, inspecting the affected products and
destroying and disposing them by appropriate means.
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Advertising and labelling

We are constantly engaged in markefing and branding of our
products through various advertising platforms including in-sfore
displays, social media, outdoor sampling and events sponsorship.
It is our policy to advertise our products and brands in a fair
manner and without misleading information.

As for our labelling activities, we require our customers to provide
us with all necessary information pertaining to packaging and
labelling with respect to local requirements within the sfipulated
territory.

Privacy protection

We are responsible for protecting our cusfomers’ privacy in the
collection, processing and use of their personal data. We are
in compliance with the applicable data protection regulations
and we ensure appropriate technical measures are in place to
profect personal dafa from any unauthorized use or access. We
also ensure that customers’ personal data is stored securely and
processed only for the purpose for which it has been collected.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to product liabilities,
advertising and labelling and privacy matters. For the Reporting
Period, we have not been subjected to any material product
recall, liabiliies claim or failed regulatory inspection in relation to
our product quality.
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RR - HEREGRE

E. COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES E.

We strive to provide our employees with a harmonious and

HWE T AR

KM ABEERBEMBELZ 2N ITIERE
RERTE- RN _BE-_=FE+=-A=+—
B RMMEKLESHKEMAISSEEER (=
T-_F:31148)-

safe working environment, and development platform. As of 31
December 2023, we have employed a fotal of 358 employees
(2022: 311) in our operations.

Full-Time (By Gender)

As of 31 December 2023

% to total (2023)

% to total (2022)

R-ZEZ= hEYES T LB ED
2 (RMERES) +=ZBA=+—H (ZEBEZ=%) (ZEZ%F)
Male 263 74% 41%
Bk
Female Q5 26% 59%
7
Total 358 100% 100%
AT

Full-Time (By age group)

As of 31 December 2023

% to total (2023)

% to total (2022)

R-ZBZ=H HREEES L HREED
2R (RFRARNE D) +=ZA=+—8H (ZZ2Z=%) (=%==%)
Over 50 31 9% 11%
508 A £
30-50 183 51% 50%
30E505%

Under 30 144 40% 39%
30 T

Total 358 100% 100%
st

Full-Time (By geographical areas)

As of 31 December 2023

% to total (2023)

% to total (2022)

R-®BZ= ERBEIL ERBES
2R (REE8 D) t=ZA=+—8 (ZBZ=%) (ZZ2Z=ZF)
Singapore ol 17% 23%
DIIE:

Malaysia 297 83% 77%
2R R

Total 358 100% 100%
st
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Over the Reporting Period, the Company has 4 parttime and R EPE ARRHALBFBNER T
temporary works in total [2022: 3). They are subject fo the same (ZE2EZZF:3%) HEZHEHARNEF
benefits and labour rights. The Company considers that their NG TN - RRARASHERNEBME KL
financial and operational impacts are immaterial to the Group. HBYBEEM

By category Turnover rate:!! Management assessment and actions

®rER TR RO EEEMMERIT

By gender

el )

Female: 31% Considered as a healthy turnover

it BREEHRAER

Male: 30% Considered as a healthy turnover

Sk BREREHRAER

By Age group

RERARE D

Under 30 27% Considered stable

303 AT BRIBE

Between 30-50 23% The Board considered this turnover rate is within the normal norm of

the industry and the Company's risk appetite while it will continue
paying addifional atfention to our younger aged staff's needs and
expectations.

30E505% EFERR/ WAKXRENTRERRERA QRN RLRR LS
BEN FSESEEREINBIFEETNRTRIKRME

Over 50 42% Considered stable

5088 A &£ BRBRE

By Location

R BE 5

Singapore 16% Considered stable

NI BRBRE

Malaysia 33% Considered in line with occupational norm

R BRRTAEBEETRE

The overall employee turnover rate of fullime staff in the RBEHA 2BETINBEBEERAERAR

Reporting Period is 30.7% (2022: 36%), with further breakdown 30.7% (ZEZ 5 :36%), T X 23Z TR

by different categories as presented below. The ESG Executive BRIE DB — PR - ESCGRTT/NEEBL

Group has made an assessment and come up with relevant HAERREEL LR EBEANTE

action plan in relation fo our turnover rafe. sraEle

1 Turnover rafe calculation is annual number of leavers 0 REARFAEHERFEBBAZRIA
divided by year end figure of the same category. A — 3R A B EREIE
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Employment and remuneration

We have a comprehensive Human Resources Management
System and Procedure to determine the optimal size of staff
force that fits our business operation. Our Human Resource
Department manages our hiring process, which is considered
fair and transparent. We generally enter info a standard form
of employment confract with our employees, which contain
confidentiality clauses and standard covenants.

We endeavor to provide competitive remuneration package and
various benefits o affract and refain falents. Our employees are
remunerafed according fo their job scope, responsibilities, and
performance and entifled to discrefionary performance bonus.
We also offer other form of employee benefits such as medical
insurance coverage and different kinds of compensated leave
for matters of marriage, maternity, paternity, childcare and
compassionate events.

Equal opportunity

We are committed fo building and maintaining a fair workplace
and valuing equal opportunity and diversity, throughout all stages
of emp|oymem, inc\uding in the remuneration, recruitment, fraining

and promotion of staff.

Our employees will not be treated in less favorable terms or
discriminated against on grounds of gender, sexual orientation,
disability, marital status, race, religion, age, nationality or ethnic
origin. Our employees are hired, appointed, promoted and
remunerated on a fair scale and in accordance to objective
measures such as their qualifications, experience, hardships,
competencies and confributions.

Labour standards

We fully adopt and adhere to the human rights framework
that creafes an environment where human rights issues can be
openly discussed. We are committed to do the right thing and
we encourage our workers fo engage in candid and respeciful
dialogue fo explore feasible solutions.
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Our foreign workers in Singapore and Malaysia are typically
employed on a two-year or three-year basis respectively,
depending on the period of their work permits, and subject to
renewal based on their performance, and are remunerated fairly
according fo their work skills and standard of the laws. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, all our foreign workers have
obtained valid work permits. Our Human Resources Department
is responsible for monitoring the validity of work permits of our
foreign employees.

Our Group prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour.
Our recruitment process requires us to inspect the identity
documents and conduct interviews with the applicants. VWe strictly
comply with the Prevention of Human Trafficking Act 2014 and
Anti-Trafficking in Persons and Anti-Smuggling of Migrants Act
2007.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relevant
fo the labour Standards such as relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversif\/, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, including, but not limited fo:

1. The Employment Act [Chapter @1 of Singapore;

2. The Employment of Foreign Manpower Act (Chapter 1A
of Singapore);

3. The Cenfral Provident Fund Act [Chapter 36 of Singapore);

4. The Employment of Children and Young Persons Regulations
(Singapore);

5. Workmen's Compensation Act;
6. The Employment Act 1955 [Malaysial;

7. The Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 (Malaysia); and

8. The Employment [Restriction) Act 1968 [Malaysial).
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COMMITMENT TO UPHOLD ETHICS AND
INTEGRITY

Anti-corruption

It is our policy to maintain a reputation for honesty, faimess,
respect, responsibility, integrity and trust. We maintain a strict
anticorruption policy, including but not limited to the following
key codes:

1. We prohibit all forms of bribes, kickbacks or other similar

remuneration;

2. Employees are not allowed offer or accept gifts and
benefits in the course of their employment; and

3. Conlflict of interest must be avoided or reported to our
direcfors on a timely and complete basis.

For the Reporting Period, we did not encounter any anti-corruption
confirmed cases, incidents, reporting, enforcements and/or legal
proceedings against our Group, Directors and employees.

Anti-money laundering

From anti-money laundering perspective, it is our policy nof
fo accept any cash receipt or payment, or any transfers from
unknown or suspicious third parties, or fransfers without legitimate
business relation and purpose.

Whistleblowing policy

We encourage our stakeholders, including our employees,
cusfomers and suppliers to report any suspicious or confirmed
cases relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

In our daily operation, our employees are encouraged fo report
to their deporfment head or, in a more mdependem manner, fo
our Human Resources Department.

We have also established a whistleblowing policy that allows
our employees and other sfokeholders to inform us of any kind
of fraud, misconduct and/or non-compliance with our internal
policy, or laws and regulations.
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Goodwill whistleblowers can file their report to us at email:
whistleblow@taisun.com.sg. Our executive director shall first
review and clear the cases, keep the records, gather further
information and escalate to the Board or Audit Committee or
senior management depending on the independence, complexity
and significance of the matters.

Our whistleblowing policy has a protection clause by which we
prohibit all kinds of harassment and discrimination of goodwill
whistleblowers on the grounds of their goodwill whistleblowing.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations relating fo bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages and supports our directors and staff fo
receive infernal and external training to promote operational

compliance and sustainable development.

Our new employees are required fo participate in orienfafion
fraining before the start of their work and undergo on-the-job
fraining. Generally, the training areas are related fo their work
scope and duties of their respective department. The typical
fraining topics involve personal hygiene, food hygiene and
safety, and employee illness and communicable disease. In
addition, our employees’ training needs are identified through
yearly staff performance appraisal, technological changes or any
major changes infroduced to the management system, equipment
or changes in our product offering.

All our directors, including the independent non-executive
Direcfors, have attended training fo reinforce their knowledge
and skills as a director, and knowledge on the latest development
regarding the Llisting Rules, other applicable statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate them
fo discharge their responsibilities.

In the Reporting Period, our employee received 759 hours
(2022: 119) of training and mainly focusing on production
related issues. The average fraining hours was 2.17 (2022:

0.38).
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Anti-Corruption Training

The Company has rolled out a rotation plan of anti-corruption
fraining in the Reporting Period. As of the date of this ESG
Report, we intend to provide anfi-corruption training, through
professional organisation, to our Directors and Management first.
We will also extend such training fo our staff on a 5-year rotation
plan targeting fo attain a 100% training coverage in 5 years.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Our employees’ safety and health is one of our main concems,
and we emphasise on matters related fo work safety and health.
We have established Periodical Safety Commitiee and  hired
Safety, Health and Environmental {“SHE") management manager
for the control of work safety and health. The committee is in
charge of the following duties:

1 Establishing health and safety policies (including SHE
Policy, Stop Work Policy, and Drug, Alcohol and Smoking
Policy)

2 Developing standard operating procedures in relation to

SHE

3 Conducting Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment and
Control ["HIRAC") mechanism for managing hazards in the
workplace

4 Conducting periodical safety inspection and audit in every

SOP

5 Holding periodical safety commitiee meetfing with actfion
p|0ﬂ

We have implemented procedures and guidelines in relation to i)
personal hygiene; (i) work insfructions in handling our machines
and safety gadgets required such as safety shoes and hand
gloves; and [iii) handling of employees' illness and communicable
disease. We also carry out regular maintenance on our machines
and equipment fo ensure that they are thoroughly fested and safe
for use. We also maintain work injury compensation policies,
group personal accident and foreign worker medical insurance
for our workers.
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The Company has developed and implemented systems for
dealing with emergencies. All employees are also encouraged
fo report all accidents, no matter how minor they may seem, fo
prevent future recurrence and proper medical treatment if needed.

In the past 3 years, the Group has not encountered any work-
related fatalities, which is defined with reference to circumstances
in which the Group, as an employer, is liable for compensation
under relevant employmentrelated laws in Singapore, Malaysia
and/or Hong Kong. In the Reporting Period, there was one
accident that a staff fall sustained 4th rib fracture. There were no
fine or legal case related to the case.

No. of work-related fatalities Year 2021
EIFRARMETHAH —E-—F
leading fo injuries or illness or disabilities 1
BHEGHRBIRR

leading to death 0
BEIET

Resulting loss of working days 34
BRBAKXIIEBE

Our efforts and measures to combat infectious disease
and workplace transmission

Although the government has basically lifted the epidemic
prevention measures on infectious disease such as Covid-19, the
Company had mainfained necessary precautionary measures
before the national policy was relaxed, including regularly
sanitising our workplace premises, minimizing socializing,
requiring compulsory mask-wearing in sensitive districts, and
seffing up a reporting mechanism fo fimely report suspected or
confirmed positive cases of our employees and their associafes.
Cerfain work safety & health measures are enhanced, and some
protocols are highlighted below:

e Daily body temperature screening

e Routine workplace cleaning and disinfection

Hand sanitisers are provided to all staff

° Keep a record of visitors in all of our premises
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Overall Compliance Standing HBREBRER
During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with RIS B — BB T IR S KA
the laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relating THEEBRERREZZHERER BFEE
fo occupational health and safety, including, but not limited 1o TER(C—NANNUFREL 2 EERE) -
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994,
We did not encounter any incidents and accidents that led fo B EEEEMEHHRELBHILTH
serious work injury or fafalities, and we did not receive any EHREHR TORARIEMEIELZE R
material staff claims in relation to work safety and health. REEHENEXREIRE:

. GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY . ERHEE
The Group is committed to giving back to the community AEEHNOELR Bt RERFTEDER
and maintains close communication and interaction with the ME® RHBERELER -

community fo confribute to community development.

Comply or
SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark Explain
BRI (RE -HERERREES) —REE SEEH HE B PO iR TE
A. Environment
A R
A1 Emission Information on: We and the environment Complied
ATEERR D FHEBERMBEREBER MKEEHAEE HMHERE [EAST
I EEREEEEYNEESH:
[a)  the policies; and
12653
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relafing to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges info water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BTHETABEAFZENHBEZER
BOIHE R
KPIAT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions  Environmental Key Performance Complied
FABREERUEIZEATL. ] data Indicafors By

e e i R ARR R BUR RIBMBABUIER
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREABREES) —RKE

KPI'AT.2
BB R RAL.

KPI'A1.3
BRI RAT.

KPIAT.4
BRR A BUEIRAL.

KPI'AT.5
FRER A BUEIRAL.

KPI'AT.6

FREAAMIERALLO

A2 Use of Resource

A2E R A

Direct (Scope 1] and energy indirect (Scope 2)
2 greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

BEE(SBE)REREE (BE2))8=RE
Bt e (AMESHE) B (WEm) ZE (s

ESBM BEIETHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in fonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FMEAESREEDHESE (UHGE) R (&
R ZE (WABEEEMN BREREHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in fonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
FEARZIEEDES (UHGE) R (E
R ZE (WMABEEEMN BHEREHE) -

Description of emission targef(s) set and steps
faken fo achieve them.
RTINS ER R R RENELER
PREREREY 288 o

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HEBEEREEEEYN L REZ
EEEYNEERTERER -

Policies on efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER (BEEIR KR E MR E)
B o

B HER

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

REBRERIER

We do not have material
hazardous waste produced
BT |MEELENEKREGERE
)

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIZRARAE IR

We are assessing if any feasible
emission targef can be set

B EFERT (A =B AR SR
ATHHRER R

For details, please refer fo

"Use of Resources” and “"Our
Environmental Targets”
HERF2HERER] R I],
FEIRRB R -

Non-hazardous waste

management

BEBREMEE

Emission and conservation
measures

BER K B8 40 e

Water consumption and wasfe
management

RKENEERYER
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERER/BMEES) —RKE

KPI A2.1
A 5 45 WURIRA2.]

KPI' A2.2
BB AE MU IRA2.2

KPI' A2.3
B8 45 WUIRIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
FREBUIERA2.4

KPI' A2.5
RSB MUIEIRA2.5

A3 The Environment
and Natural
Resources

ASRIER RREIR

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in tofal (kVWh in
'‘000s) and infensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BERESNERER SEELER (B R
Som) EREE (A TETREAE) RBE (1
NEESEMN BEKREAE) -

Water consumption in fofal and infensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BFEKEREE (WABESEN BIARIHE

HE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) se
and steps taken fo achieve them.

I FET ZaERE A MR B R R AERE
LE B IRFTERENE) 2R o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s| set and steps taken to achieve
them.

8 2t SR ERE A 7KOR R B (AR ] RE - LA PR ET
MH) KM B IR R AEREL B RATRE
H 2 8E -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

X mPTREEM R EE (LANEGHE ) & (40
HR)BEESBMEE-

Policies on minimizing the operation’s significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.
BEXRBEHHRRELRRABERERNEAF
LrHEK-
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIZRARAE IR

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIZRRAE IR

We are assessing if any feasible
emission fargef can be sef
BAAIEFERT A 2B AR AR
ATHEERER R

For details, please refer to

"Use of Resources” and “Our
Environmental Targets”
HER2HERER] RI]
FRERE B R

Water
X

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIBMARBARIER

Environmental and natural

resources

RELRKAER

Comply or
Explain
BIHEE

Complied
FEAST

Complied

o

E=r

Explained
R TE

Complied
ICAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEASH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREABREES) —RKE

KPI'A3.1
BB 45 AR AS.

Aspect A4
BEA4

KPI A4.1

AR A I IRAL

B1 Employment
BI1{EE

KPIBT.1
FRER A IERB ]
KPIB1.2

FASR A MIEIRB] .2

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions faken to manage them.

ML EBEHHRRERRAERNEATE
MRERBERABEZENTH-

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impocted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

Bl N B K ﬁﬁgiﬁéﬁ}\ﬁf?ﬂs
M EBEARIEEREEEOBE

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions faken to
manage them.

WADRE NS HBRTAEEXENERX
RIEBEEER MEHTTE-

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relafing fo compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anfi-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
ERAFMLEE BERE TERE - &
B FERE S RIEENAREMESE
REMHOBRNETHETABEATEN
MHEDER MR DI EHL

Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or parttime), age group and
geographical region.

RIER - EEERE (WEBRER)  Ficd
AR E D e B AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.
BRIER - FE AR KR 8 5
=

HEB MK

B HER

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Environmental and natural
resources

RENMKAER

Dealing with climate change
impact

EHRIRBEOTE

Dealing with climate change
impact

EHRRE(ENTE

Commitment to our employees
H B THy#GE

Commitment fo our employees

8 T A

Commitment to our employees

H 8 TH A
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EamE

Comply or
Explain
Bro@e

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

Comply or
SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark Explain
B (RE HERER/BMEES) —RKE SEEG B BIHEE
B2 Health and Information on: Occupational health and safety  Complied
Safety FHRHZ2IHEREMREREE#2BE BEEERELS FEAST
B2REEZ 2 HEE:
[a)  the policies; and
1563
(b)  complionce and material non-compliance
with relevant standards, rules and
regulations on providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
By MEBEERARRE RAIRRA
BB o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities  Occupational health and safety  Complied
FAREMIEIREB2.1 occurred in each of the past three years WBEREHZT SR S
including the reporting year.
BE=F (BREERFE)FFEAITHHOA
gl o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Occupational health and safety  Complied
BARAERIEIRB2.2 HIBIEARIERH BEREREZ S FEAST
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and  Occupational health and safety  Complied
BRI IEIEB2.3  sofety measures adopted, and how they are BFEEHZ S BT
implemented and monitored.
AT R B R R B R 2 256 JA KR AE
BRI RERITE
B3 Development Policies on improving employees’ knowledge  Development and fraining Complied
and Training and skills for discharging duties at work. #REHFT| JLASH
B3# /R K& 3 Description of fraining acfivifies.
BRRTHE B BT TIEBE A M B R A
SR o
B Uzl
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender  Development and training Complied
BRI IBIEBRS. 1 and employee category. B HLE FEAST

HERREEERIEDHZIIEEB DL
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - HERELGRE

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREABREES) —RKE

KPI B3.2
B A I 1RB3.2

B4 Labour
Standard
B4% T XA

KPI B4.1
B A IR 1RB4.]

KPI B4.2
B A MIEIRB4.2

B5 Supply Chain
Management

BSH SRR

KPI BS.1
B4 A I 1RBS .

KPI B5.2
B A MUIEIRB5.2

The average fraining hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
R REEBRRNE D BREETKEI
#1588 o

Information on:

BREAMFE T EH 8 TR :

[a)  the policies; and
126> SN

[b)  compliance and material non-compliance
with relevant standards, rules and
regulations on preventing child or forced

labour.
By R EREEREBIZEE  FA KRG
K& R -

Description of measures to review employment
practices fo avoid child and forced labour.

1 3L AR o AR HE A {51 A Fi e DA Sk S B T K 5
BT

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

T 72 3230 8 AR AE LR H R B BR 1B L AT ER X
28R -

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of supply chain.
ERHEENRE ML ERBBOR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
miEE D HEmEE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

M ERERHERNEDN mERTTHER
BHNHEREE ULEERTRERS
e

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Development and fraining
TR B

Labour standards
& T AR

Labour standards
2 TR

Labour standards
2 TR

Our Supply Chain Management
HrEgEE I

Our Supply Chain Management
HregEEs

Our Supply Chain Management
R g
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Comply or
Explain
Bro@e

Complied
IEASH

Complied
JEASH

Complied
JLASH

Complied
BT

Complied

—n

Esr
Complied
FEAST

Complied
BT



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERER/BMEES) —RKE

KPI B5.3
A 5 45 IR 1RB5.3

KPI B5.4
A 5 45 I 1RB5 .4

B4 Product
Responsibility
BOEMEE

KPI Bo. 1
B BB U IRBO. 1

KPI B6.2
BB I 1RBO.2

Description of practices used fo identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
WaEEBNHERESERGORERLE
R B ] - A R AR AT R EE B J5 0K o

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

WA EREHERREESZ ARERER MR
BHED] - AR EBERMIT RERN I

Information on:

BRMRHERMRGHERELS BE -

BRERLIALEZEEARMERIT AR

[a)  the policies; and
1563

(b)  compliance relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
BTHBRTAGEARENRAERR
RO E R

Percentage of tfotal products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXCEXERAETRL HEZRIER
MmZAE Y E) B 7t o

Number of products and service-related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BREBNRERIRBOIRFHE AREE )
Ee
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Our Supply Chain Management
e e e

Our Supply Chain Management
HresE g

Commitment to product quality
HEME SN AGE

We did not have any product
recalls for safety and health
reason in the Reporting Period
HAINRE YL | L 2 HE 2
JBEIE M 2R m YR AR EE R e

We did not receive any product
or service-related complaints in
the Reporting Period.

AP 3RS HAY SR M ()
TREE fa M AR FS B0

Comply or
Explain
BIHEE

Complied
FEAST

Complied
SEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
ST

Complied

=n

BT
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREABREES) —RKE

KPI B6.3
B4 A I 1RBO.3

KPI B6.4
BRI 1RBO 4

KPI B&.5

BASRAE AIRIRBO.S

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRES

KPI B/.1
B A I 1RBY

KPI B7.2
BAER A MUIEIRBY .2

Description of practices relating fo observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

R E R RERNREEE BB -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

B EREBENERBWER -

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

i H EEEHRERILBBE A RIEE
MITREEE A

Information on:

BRED I-BRER - BR - HRF RO R ER
[a)  the policies; and
B ]

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relafing fo bribery, exfortion,
fraud and money laundering.
BIHBTAREARENRBAERER
RO EHY o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the Reporting Period and the
oufcomes of the cases.
RERPAHBETAIERBRERLLCES
MEDSHRAARIMF BB MEFRAER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
RS R B REF UARBERITR
B Ke

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH B

Advertising and labelling

ER=RE e
Privacy protecti

REALIRE

Product recall management

EmAdmeER

Privacy protfecti

RBALRE

Anticorruption fraining

RE)FE

We didn't have any legal case
regarding corrupt practices in

the Reporting P
please refer to

FAPTI ¥ & H

RIE HEREGRSE

REM HEF2HEREST—

g

Whistleblowing policy

R

Comply or
Explain

& BIRER
Complied
FEAST

on
Complied
FEAST

on Complied
ST
Complied
BT
Complied
FEAST

eriod. For defails,

Anti-corruption

W EALTE TR
Complied
IEAST
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR - HEREGRE

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERER/BMEES) —RKE

KPI B7.3 Description of anfi-corruption fraining provided to
RSB B MIEIREB7.3  direciors and sfaff.
Wi EERE TIRHHNRESE -

B8 Community Policies on community engagement to understand
Investment the community's needs where it operates and
B8t EHRE fo ensure its activities fake into consideration

communities” interests.
BN ESERTHREEMTLESEMN
BREEK TS E B R &= AEER o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution [e.g. education,
RIS 4E MIE1EB8. 1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
BIEREE (M E BEEE - BIFR
fEE- b BBF) -

KPI B8.2 Resources confributed (e.g. money or time] to the

RESR 45 FE1ZB8.2  focus area.
HEEIREMHBER (NEBLEFRE) -
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Development and training
TR IR
Anti-corruption fraining
REFE

Giving back to the community
EE:gad

Giving back to the community
Bl £8 1t [

Giving back to the community
O] £8 11 [

Comply or
Explain
BIHEE

Explained
fRRE

Complied
JLASH

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST



To the Shareholders of TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TS Wonders
Holding Limited [the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 105 to 204, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

and nofes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Croup as at 31 December 2023 and of ifs consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards [“IFRS Accounting Standards”) issued
by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing [“ISAs") issued by International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audlitors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants |'IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
LERVR S

TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITEDER 5
(RESHBIMA B FERLA)
REMBRRELZBS

=R

BMEEZHNREBI05E8E2048 2TS Wonders
Holding Llimited (&2 F]) REMB AT (AT
HEIEEE] ) 2FeaMBRE EBER2Z
ZEHFT AT HZEEYBRARRER
ZBEFE REERREMERRER KE
BB HRRGEHEERER UREEVBR
T (EREEEHRRER REMERIEE
K e

BARE BEHEEVERRERERB e E
AZEg ((EReEBEET])BHHRE
B 2R ([HBR B mEER S 2ER]])
BEEMAFMRY BEEER-_ZT-_=-F+=A
Tt BHRNGATBRIAREREEZALFE
MEEHHRE GReEREHMEARERE "
WEBREBAAVGHIMNEREERZABRE -

RRHER

HPIR IR IR 2 T B 58 38 Y B 38 = 2 7 4 ) BRI
EAER ([EFREER D ETEZ - E%FE
AN B EEERMIRE R X EET 5 E
IR AN BmMRBAENRE] — 8 — St -
REBEFR S MBXERERNESE ZRES
BB Al (TESBASTRID) - MBI EE
- 3 2B BIESBAST RIETT E b BB E fE - A
BE RAMESHEZEERTCLEE S
B E R ER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR E

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

FARELSE
BRELEEARBRMANT AL REZA
FENGAMBRAPREENEH - RAETE

statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the ZARAE P BBREEBEBEBNMEREREFRIELSE

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

FE MAERLEREEBERER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these maftters.

Key audit matter

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREERPNERELE

Valuation of properties (Note 13)
Y LE (MEE13)

The Group has freehold land and buildings in Malaysia
of approximately S$10.8 million and a leasehold building
in Singapore of approximately S$$7.0 million as at 31
December 2023. These land and buildings which are used
for its own production are measured using the revaluation
model after initial recognition.
RZB_=F+"A=+—RH  EEERFTRAE:HESR
KA ZERE T 0 AR F4910.8'F & ¥ h03K 7T Ko 7 58 AN 3%
FHERFTH/0BEF M T S LM EETH &
SERELEERS NHRERREAEERETE-

The above properties, constituted 21% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2023, representing significant
assefs on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Eimxm EEER T _=F+_A=t—HEE#H
BEMN21% REEHBRARANEZEEE -

Management has engaged external independent valuers
(the “Valuers") to perform the fair value assessment as at 31
December 2023.
EEECRENNBBLIAEM ([{EERM] R
T A=+ —HETAFENH-

N\ZFZ=F

As part of our audit, we performed the following procedures,
among others:
RBEZBRED  RIETUATREF (AR EHE)

e  obfained an understanding of the Group's process
of appointment and the ferms of engagement of the
Valuers entered info to determine whether there were
any matters that might have offected the Valuers’
objectivity or placed limitations in the scope of their
work.

s TH BEREZEMAEMNBRENMIIINZER
R AEEREFEEMAIGETEMEMTE L
B E TR E M IR HI#) FIH -

e assessed the independence, qualification and

competence of the Valuers.

o FHEMEER B B KREE

e involved our internal specialists to assess the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted by
the Valuers.

e FHFMMWARNE

RRTEY -

B P ERPTER A E E R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LERVR S

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRELER BEMEELTHNEEGE

Valuation of properties (Note 13)

YIS AEE (FHEE13)

The valuation of properties is considered a key audit | ®  discussed with the Valuers to understand the valuation

matter as it requires management to exercise judgement fo
determine the valuation method and the key assumptions
which includes price per square feet of market comparables
fo be used. These valuations are highly sensitive fo changes
in market and economic facfors.
MELERBERBAREXRER DTHREFTEREFED
HENEERETELTIERR (BERANETHIR
ALEmSE) ZEFHESTEREERXEHREH
B o

techniques and key assumptions used in valuing the
properties and the market evidence used by the Valuers
fo support their assumptions.

o EHGEEMWMNTREEMYZEMERETHE
REANGETNEREIZREARBIFERR
PR BT 35 858

e evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation
techniques used by the Valuers for each of the assef
and evaluated the key assumptions applied in the
defermination of fair value by benchmarking and
challenging the key assumptions used in the valuation
by reference to externally published industry data and
comparable property fransactions, where available.
We also considered whether these key assumptions
are consistent with the prevailing market condifions.

e BBZENNEMZTXRBBRITELBWER
Z(WE) EGHEMESBEEEMRLESE
BEE MR H R EREEMA I 2RRA
HRAREEATFENTERR KMTZEEZFET
EMREEBIVITH R —B -

We also checked the adequacy and appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

BAMZEGRAMBEREAERBENZTDEREE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR E

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company (the “directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other informafion and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors of the Company and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to confinue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters relafed to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infends to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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REMBBRERRGBEABEUN2ESR

BERAER([EF])AHEMERAEEE-H
ERBERER BEXRFHRAFER ETE
AP BHER LR ZBE RS -

RMYEARBRRMHOE R MBS A
B TR S S E R R AT A R A
e

REMNGEAMBHREMS  RANEEREE
HBER HmMEEEMERNSERBEA MR
RIBMEBZERTETNERNFEERNTR
SUFEFEERFERRA - HERFENRCET
M THERSEMER HRERERRL KA
BEEMEE -t RAOLBEMERARS -

BRRESRAEEMGEMBRERA
AENER

EFFARRBERMBERE LG EIRE
BRARGINEEER REEEM QPR
BRANGEMBHRER YHERERRAEZE
RAERBRRIEE I FERRHFFXERTE
HNEAERRATFOAMEZER -

ERBEGAMBEHRAG EXAAEFM &%
ERELENEN U RBEEFELLEFAENE
H(ER) BRIFEFHRS SEEREBRIIFLL
EE BRI L EEMERAITOMRE B
AIERBAREKE RERN G-



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed ferms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exisfs. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of users faken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

() Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
LERVR S

RBMRERGREMBRRARENE
£

BN ERASRBOENTEGRAIERE LS
REMERRERN S TEERRKFFHERM
BHMERERRA WELHARMER X
BENIRE - AMEER B BBERBE - BRiL 25
AREFIEEMB N - AERTEBESEROHEE
MR BB R BT B ADE TR EZ TIE T BEta R AR
ERERBAFENE AR RRA - 5 R A A
MAFFEREL  MEMNIEBEAERAMBER
TRAZEEAEREFEAMBHRRIFL LR
FERS - AIBAR B E KSR AR AL -

EREEERRIERETEZNBRES  RMAE
REEAE REFFREEEE - HFIT:

(a) &Y B FF Al b RO RRF Sk EE AR T B BUR & B
BHRERFEEABRBOAA AR - R 8
TEREZEFARYZEER A RERTRE
MEENEZERE FREMERNER-
HRBRFEAESRER BE E2ER-
FE PRt 3% B MR EE E M B0 - A Itk R BE
T30 R ARRE T 28 B A B K88 AR IR At 9 L B
BRARERBEERMERNENHERR
L EY LR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR E

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriafe in the
circumsfances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the direcfors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to confinue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
affention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
fo cease fo confinue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial stafements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

TR REZAERN A EREE  ARETEE N
BRERF EYIFEEY SSENEE
MAEMMEERER -

HEEEMEA ST BERNRE L RIEL
SEHMERT MR BEN SR

HERERABECZGHEARNREN
TR & WIRIBFAERNEZRE EE
EEFEEAES ERENFAELER
NELEARHEANETHELBERABRNEXN
THEEM - WEFRBSFEERNTHEENL
AIENEBEZBMBSTREERE LR
FEMBRERTNEBERE HARKET
B RIBRGFERERR - RMNGHRIE
REEZEBERE A BIEARSHERZR
oA RRFBEKBERAIEE

a5

AHEFEMBRRNBEEBZ2HIT A BER
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we defermine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
audifor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Ms. Mao Meijico.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeEsRkEMEEKER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZE-=F+-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
Note S$ S$
B 5 ¥ h03% T gt
Revenue & 5 70,117,966 74,799,701
Cost of sales $HE R (50,351,818) (56,834,928)
Gross profit EF 19,766,148 17,964,773
Other income E A 6a 909,388 2,138,120
Other gains and losses H bz g1 6b (440,582) (542,269)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (4,662,465) (3,932,929
Administrative expenses 1THAX (8,574,011) (8,276,069)
Finance costs B & A 7R 7 (96,580) (116,821)
Profit before taxation BR &4 A0 5 6,901,898 7,234,805
Income tax expense FrisfiAx 8 (1,446,746) (1,419,539)
Profit for the year FERF 9 5,455,152 5,815,266
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hth2mH (%) WisE
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently — F&#% A 5 E #7740 Z 18 7 A
fo profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translation of MEIGINETSEERIE K
foreign operation =% (1,133,560) (1,058,590
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently F&# T & E #7748 2 187 A
fo profit or loss: JBH
Revaluation of property, plant and BEHYE BB NRE
equipment, net of fax B FHIR 28 484,030 1,852,072
Other comprehensive (expense) income FAHMEE (BAX)KE
for the year (649,530) 793,482
Total profit and other comprehensive FEBANREMSEKE
income for the year, net of tax @, fRBIE 4,805,622 6,608,748
Basic earnings per share (S$ cents) BREXRER (FHME5) 12 0.55 0.58
Diluted earnings per share (S$ cents) EREFEFR (FINED) 12 0.55 0.58
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SFEMBRAE

As at 31 December 2023 WZ-ZE-_=F+-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
Note S$ S$
hg= ¥ 038 T A% T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R&E 13 26,821,228 26,125,438
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 14 1,151,487 1,184,035
Investment property BREME 15 - -
Deposits e 18 717,631 62,083
28,690,346 27,371,556
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 11,438,773 10,288,780
Trade receivables B 5 WA 17 11,557,873 12,242,384
Other receivables, deposits and EMERFIE e &
prepayments Faft IR 18 990,398 922,473
Financial asset at fair value through BAVEFAERZ
profit or loss EREE 19 7,774,260 -
Financial asset at amortised cost BEEKAFTECEREE 20 3,990,800 -
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 21 34,839 1,184
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR LIRS 22 19,490,038 29,879,477
55,276,981 53,334,298
LIABILITIES ==
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N H b RIE 23 6,453,647 5,450,646
Derivative financial instruments TEemT A 21 157,480 20,911
Llease liabilities HEAE 24 196,907 183,459
Bank and other borrowings IRIT R EMER 25 - 496,498
Income tax payable JERTETIS R 1,532,741 1,411,186
8,340,775 7,562,700
Net current assets REBEEFE 46,936,206 45,771,598
Total assets less current liabilities WEERARBAE 75,626,552 73,143,154
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BAMBRAE
As at 31 December 2023 RZ-ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
Note S$ S$
e ¥ h03% T gt
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Llease liabilities HEAE 24 1,126,109 1,166,708
Bank and other borrowings IRIT R E M EFK 25 - 2,362,863
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEAE 26 1,294,536 1,213,298
2,420,645 4,742,869
Net assets EEFE 73,205,907 68,400,285
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves IR K i 5
Share capifal &N 27 1,725,820 1,725,820
Share premium Bt B 13,487,471 13,487,471
Other reserve H b EE (332,000) (332,000
Merger reserve B 299,994 299,004
Revaluation reserve EHFHE 28 14,305,745 13,821,715
Translation reserve PE 5 (4,046,566) (2,913,000)
Accumulated profits 255 A 47,765,443 42,310,291
73,205,907 68,400,285

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 o 204 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Direcfors on 28

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

See accompanying nofes fo consolidated financial statfements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBZE-Z-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

Share Share Other Merger ~ Revaluafion  Translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
T 17 %M Hitfife  AORE Btk EifE ES | ag
5$ 5$ 5$ $$ s$ §$ §$ §$
MM g ;g MM Mg ;g g BT
(Note a) [Note b) (Note 28]
GRS (BaEb)  (FiE28)
At 1 January 2022 W-g==£-f-A 1725800 13487471 (3320000 299994 11069643 (1854416 36495025 61791537
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - 5815266 5815266
Other comprehensive income ~ FRE b2 E 5
for the year - - - - 1,852,072 (1,058,590) - 793,482
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZEKE BT
for the year - - - - 1852072 (1,058,590 5815266 6,608,748
At 31 December 2022 R-E--§+-A=1+-H 1725820 13,487 471 [332,000) 209994 13,821,715 (2913,006) 42,310,291 68,400,285
Profit for the year ENEF - - - - - - 5455152 5455152
Other comprehensive income A E 2 E M &
for the year - - - - 484,030 (1,133,560) - (649 530)
Totol comprehensive income A2 AN EEE
for the year - - - - 484,030 (1,133,560 5455152 4,805,622
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=fE+-fA=1-H 1725820 13,487 471 (332,000) 200,994 14,305,745  [4,046,566) 47,765443 73,205,907
Note: B 5T
a)  Other reserve represents the combined effect upon completion of share o)  EMFEEEIEFARBEHLAN—IBHD  WETreatz

transfer of Treatz Foods Sdn. Bhd. (“TZF") and Tai Sun Llim Kee Food
Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“TSF") to Tai Sun (Lim Kee) Food Industries Pte.
lid. ("TSS") by two individual shareholders of TZF and TSF in April 2018

as part of group reorganisation.

bl Merger reserve represents the difference between the cost of acquisition

pursuant fo the group reorganisation in financial year 2018 and the tofal

value of share capital of the entities acquired.

See accompanying nofes fo consolidated financial statfements.

b)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZEZE-Z-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EC=F —E-=
S$ S$
¥ h03% T ¥ AN T
Operating activities ReETH
Profit before taxation B F5 AT g ) 6,901,898 7,234,805
Adjjusiments for: ARG
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME WELREITE 1,843,434 1,714,590
Depreciation of rightof-use assets EREEENE 197,757 203,280
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  KEMREEER
equipment 340 -
Gain on lease modification HEBmks (3,506) (7,384)
Finance costs RE B A 96,580 116,821
Interest income B U A (811,045) (268,195)
Fair value gain on derivative financial TETRMIAZAFE
instruments Uy =5 (24,905) (50,395)
Fair value gain on financial asset af BAFEFABRRZ SR
fair value through profit or loss BEZ N ERZE (43,469) -
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss RNETRHME By 18 F 5 597,573 830,176
Operating cash flows before movements HEERPAILERERE
in working capifal 8,754,657 9,773,698
Movements in working capital: SELETE
(Increase) decrease in inventories T8 (8mn) R (1,730,432) 1,461,143
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e W IE R 531,098 428,787
(Increase) decrease in other receivables, Hih i aIa - Zek
deposits and prepayments FaftIE (HE o) 4 (29,083) 319,548
Settlement of derivative financial instruments EETESRTIA 127,819 3,845
Increase (decrease) in trade and other Z 5 REMEMNFIE
payables & CRd) 921,725 (3,592,482)
Cash generated from operations KEEERNIRE 8,575,784 8,394,539
Income taxes paid, net of refunds EAFTEE - HIRRE (1,132,344) (1,451,094)
Net cash from operating activities KRETHFESEESFESR 7,443,440 6,943,445
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SZERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBZE-Z-_=F+_A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
S$ S$
¥ hn3% 7T ¥ T
Investing activities REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BB KRME (MFEA)
(Note A (2,907,661) (2,000,788
Deposits paid fo purchase of property, HEEME BEK
plant and equipment REE RS (655,548) (62,083)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE  ME RRE
and equipment FR1S3RIR 2,260 -
Interest received B U F B 682,499 268,195
Redemption of fixed deposits f& B FE Hi 17 3K 32,236,000 8,000,000
Placement of fixed deposits TFAEBEFR (19,145,723)  (17,172,000)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BEEZATEFABREZ
through profit or loss TREEE (7,730,791) -
Purchase of financial asset at amortised cost BEERBERAGTEZ
TREE (3,926,600)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHFARSFE (1,445,564) (10,972,676)
Financing activities BEED
Repayment of lease liabilities EBREEaE (250,157) (259,846
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EEEITREMER (2,859,361) (930,363)
Inferest paid EFE (34,503) 42,1606)
Net cash used in financing activities METBFARSFE (3,144,021) (1,232,375)
Net increase (decrease] in cash and He RRSZEE/WIE M ORD)
cash equivalents HER 2,853,855 (5,261,6006)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on the SN [ = 5 B 5 P45 SINE
balance of cash held in foreign currencies ReEmpe & (153,017) (308,269
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNReLREEFEY
of the year 12,707,477 18,277,352
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRAGRASZEY
of the year (Note 22) (MtaE22) 15,408,315 12,707 477

Note A: MEEA: RAMREE KNEBEBE RS 140,873
AN T (Z 2 = — 4 :2,0006,788% I3
TTRMME BE R &E - HP233,212% 0
WL (ZE-—F: T%ﬂjﬂiﬂim)ﬁfjf

FHZA=+—HARE

During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment amounted to $$3,140,873 (2022: $$2,006,788), out
of which $$233,212 (2022: S$Nil) remains outstanding as at 31
December 2023.

R AR B R BEM Y L -

See accompanying nofes fo consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

GENERAL

TS Wonders Holding Llimited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Act, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands on 19 April 2018. The Company was
registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as
a nonHong Kong company under Part 16 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance [the "Companies Ordinance”’) on 23
May 2018 and the principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Rooms 1Q901A, 1902 & 1902A, 19/F, New World Tower |,
16-18 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong. lis registered office
and principal place of business are located at Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and 255 Pandan loop, Singopore 128433,
respectively. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with effect from 14 January 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production,
packaging and refailing of food products. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 35 fo the consolidated
financial statements. Its parent and ultimate holding company
is SWL Limited ("SWL") a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. lts ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Lim
Fung Yee [“Mr. Winsfon Lim"), Mr. Lim Fung Chor ("Mr. Lawrence
Lim"), Ms. Llim Seow Yen ("Ms. Sandy Lim"), Mdm. Han Yew
lang, Mr. Lloo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong liow Wah, all of
them are family members (collectively known as the “Confrolling

Shareholders”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore
Dollars (“S$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 28 March 2024.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards
that are mandatorily effective for the current year

Adoption of new and revised Standards — On 1 January 2023,
the Group and the Company adopted all the new and revised
IFRS Accounting Standards pronouncements that are relevant fo its
operations. The adoption of these new/revised IFRS Accounting
Standards pronouncements does not result in changes to the
Croup’s and the Company’s accounting policies and has no
material effect on the disclosures or on the amounts reported for
the current or prior years except as below.

Amendments to International Accounting Standards
(“IAS”) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS
Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 for the first
time in the current year. The amendments change the requirements
in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies.
The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant
accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected fo influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify
that accounting policy information that relates to immaterial
transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need
not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material
because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or
conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material.

The Group has applied materiality guidance in IFRS Practice
Statement 2 in identifying its material accounting policies for
disclosures in the related notes. The previous ferm ‘significant
accounting policies’ used throughout the financial statements has
been replaced with ‘material accounting policy information”.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

2  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

(Continued)

New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in issue
but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS
Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not vef

effective:
Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sales or Contribution of Assets befween
IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®

Amendments 1o IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current’

Amendments fo 1AS 1 Non-current liabilities with Covenants'

Amendments o IFRS 16 lease liabilily in o Sale and leaseback!

Amendments 1o IAS 7 and IFRRS 7 Suppller Finance Amangements'

Amendments fo IAS 21 lack of Exchangeabiliy’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
defermined.

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards
listed above will have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future periods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosures required by the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis and in accordance with the following
accounting policies which conform to IFRS Accounting Standards
excepf for certain buildings and land, investment property and
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amount or fair
values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characterisfics info account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the financial statements is defermined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
fransactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised info level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree fo which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in ifs entirety, which are described as follows:

o level 1 inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted] in acfive
markets for identical assefs or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either direcﬂy or indirecﬂy; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies adopted are sef out below.

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the consolidated
financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group
have adequate resources fo continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated

financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities confrolled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Contfrol is achieved when the

Company:
®  has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee; and

®  has the ability fo use its power fo affect ifs returns.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
confrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company ceases fo control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group's accounting policies.

All infro-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to fransactions between members of the
Croup are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the sale of goods. Revenue
is measured based on the consideration to which the Group
expects fo be entitled in a confract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parfies. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product to o
cusfomer.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a point in fime
the control of the goods has transferred, i.e. when the goods
have been delivered to customers. A receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right fo consideration, i.e. only the
passage of fime is required before payment of that consideration
is due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A conlract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
fo confrol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a confract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such confract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessor

leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease fransfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the confract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Renfal income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operafing lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straightline basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or confains a lease,
af inception of the contract. The Group recognises a rightof-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assefs. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straightline basis over the term of the lease unless another
systfematic basis is more representative of the fime pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assefs are consumed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

The lease liability is initially measured af the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rafe implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate specific fo the lessee.

The incremental borrowing rate depends on the term, currency
and start date of the lease and is defermined based on a series
of inputs including: the riskfree rate based on government bond
rates; a country-specific risk adjustment; a credit risk adjustment
based on bond yields; and an entity specific adjusiment when the
risk profile of the entity that enters into the lease is different to that
of the Group and the lease does not benefit from a guarantee
from the Group.

lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated stafement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount fo reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount o
reflect the lease payments made.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assef)

whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate;

e the lease payments change due fo changes in an index
or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used); or

® a lease contract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rafe at the effective
date of the modification.

The rightofuse assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and
any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle
and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate fo a
rightof-use asset, the cosfs are included in the related rightof-use
asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

Rightofuse assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset, the related right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The rightofuse assefs are presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to defermine whether a rightofuse
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as described in the ‘Impairment of tangible assets’ policy.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are
measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates |its functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and equity of the Company are
presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual entities,
fransactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
are recorded af the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the
rafes prevailing af the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rafes prevailing on the date
when the fair value was defermined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Foreign currency transactions and translation (Continved)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in
profit or loss for the periods. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the periods except for differences
arising on the refranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange rates prevailing
af the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items
lincluding comparatives) are franslated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates af the dates
of the fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in a separafe component of equity under the header of franslafion
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Croup's enfire inferest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation or a partial disposal of an inferest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the refained inferest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in a foreign exchange
franslation reserve in respect of that operation affributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continved)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
infended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assefs are substantially ready for their infended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments made to Central Provident Fund ("CPF") and Employees
Provident Fund (“EPF"), being defined contribution benefits, are
recognised as expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Shortterm employee benefits

Shorterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS Accounting
Standards requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deduction of any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using fax rates (and
fax laws) that have been enacted or subsfantively enacted in
countries where the Company and subsidiaries operafe by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (confinved)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assefs are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assefs and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associafes,
and inferests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able fo
confrol the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assefs arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
tfemporary differences and they are expected fo reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assef fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rafes
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
seffled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred fax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Croup expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover
or setile the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for investment
properfies that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is fo consume subsfantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over fime, rather than through sale.

For purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the rightof-use assefs and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are atiributable fo the rightofuse assefs or the lease
liabilifies.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assefs against
current tax liabilities and when they relate o income taxes levied
fo the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
affributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
requirements fo the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
fo lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be ufilised and a deferred tax liability for all
faxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Property, plant and equipment

land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are sfafed in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be defermined using fair values
af the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revoluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except fo the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited
fo profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property revaluation
reserve relating fo a previous revaluation of that asset.

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet defermined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assefs, on the same basis as other asses,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The payments of leasehold building and leasehold land are
separate. leasehold building is fully paid and presented as
"property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated statement
of financial position while interest in leasehold land is paid
over its lease ferm and presented as “rightofuse assets” in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position.

Plant and equipment are stated af cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Except for freehold land and renovation in progress, depreciation
is charged so as to write off the cost of ifems of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
fo arise from the confinued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is defermined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or refirement
of a revalued property, the affributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is transferred
directly to accumulated profits. No transfer is made from the
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits except when an asset
is derecognised.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and
for capital appreciation (including property under construction),
is measured inifially at its cost, including fransaction costs.
Subsequent o initial recognition, investment property is measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property shall transfer to property, p|ont and
equipment when there is o change in use. A change in use
occurs when the property meets, or ceased to meet, the definition
of investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. In isolation, a change in management’s intention for the use
of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

For transfer from investment property carried at fair value to
property, plant and equipment, the property's deemed cost
for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of
change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assef] is included in profit or loss in the
periods in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and nef realisable
value. Cost comprises raw material and where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories fo their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the firstinfirstout method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary fo make the sale.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment property

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of ifs property, plant
and equipment, rightof-use assets and investment property fo
defermine whether there is any indication that those assefs have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit fo which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assefs are allocated fo the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating unifs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be esfablished. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units fo
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating unifs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment property (Continved)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If
the recoverable amount of an assef (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit] is reduced
fo ifs recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assef is increased fo the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the assef in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to setile the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required fo sefile the present obligation at the
end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to seffle the present
obligation, ifs carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required fo seftle a
provision are expected fo be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually cerfain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are inifially measured of
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15 Revenve from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable fo the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair volue of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly affributable fo the acquisition of financiol
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assefs are
recognised and derecognised on a frade dafe basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured af amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order fo collect
contractual cash flows: and

e the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial assets and of allocating interest
income over the relevant periods.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses ("ECL"), through
the expected life of the financial assefs, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
assets on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount af which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisafion using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.
On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

Inferest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assefs measured subsequently at amortised cost. For
financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective inferest rafe to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
creditimpaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the creditimpaired financial asset improves so that the
financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective inferest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial assef.

Inferest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method and is included in the “Other income” line item.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS
9 lincluding frade receivables, other receivables and deposits
and bank balances and cash| are subsequently measured af
amortised cosfs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being measured
aft amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets af FVTPL are measured at fair value af the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss fo the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “Other gains and losses”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in

Note 31.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assefs which are subject to impairment under IFRS @ (including
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
fo reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Impairment of financial assets under ECL model (Confinued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's hisforical credit loss experiences,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of trade receivables
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The ECL on those
financial assets are estimated using an analysis of assefs by risk
level of customers and apply a probability weighted estimate
of the credif losses within the relevant risk type. The probability
weighted estimate of the credit losses is defermined based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL.

The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as af the reporting date with the risk of a defoult
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of
the industries in which the Group's debfors operate, obtained
from financial analysts and governmental bodies, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group's core operations
namely the production, packaging and refailing of food products.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected fo cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulafory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since inifial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined fo have low
credit risk af the reporting dafe. A debt instrument is defermined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default (i.e. no
default history), ii] the borrower has a strong capacity fo meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer ferm
may, but will nof necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate o ensure that the criferia are
Copob\e of idenfif\/ing significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

e information developed infemally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking info
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Definition of default (Continved)

Irespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than Q0
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Creditimpaired financial assets

Financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events that
have a defrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is creditimpaired includes observable data about the following

events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
or

° a breach of confract, such as a default or past due event;
or

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted fo the borrower a concessionls) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has enfered
info bankruptey proceedings, or in the case of frade receivables,
when the amounfs are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
faking info account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
dafa adjusted by forwardHooking information. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all confractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
defermined at initial recognition.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits are each
assessed as a separate group.)

o Past-due status:
*  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management fo ensure
the consfituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characterisfics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment fo
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognifion of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial assef only when the
confractual rights o the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Classification of financial liabilities or equity insfruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
enfity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arangements
enfered info and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
inferest in the assefs of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective inferest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

\iobﬂify is held for trading.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continved)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near ferm; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are sftated at fair value with any
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any inferest paid on the financial liabilities and
is included in the “Other gains and losses” line itfem. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 31.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, 2 heldfortrading, or 3)
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured af amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant periods. The effective inferest rafe is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
intfegral part of the effective interest rafe, fransaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, fo the
amortised cost of a financial liability.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial assefs and liabilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost af the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses
are defermined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
"Other gains and losses” line item in profit or loss for financial
assets and liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. For financial assefs and liabilities that are measured
as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the
fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss for
financial assefs and liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered info and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair volue af the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a
financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financial liability.

Derivatives are not offset in the financial statements unless the
Group has both a legally enforceable right and intention fo
offset.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current
liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than
12 months and it is not due to be realised or seffled within 12
months. Other derivatives are presented as current assefs or
current liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (coninved)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as
a |iobi|iry in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank
deposits that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group's management is required fo make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabiliies that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered fo be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
twelve months.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Continved)

Revaluation of freehold land and buildings and
a leasehold building (Note 13) and fair value of
investment property (Note 15)

The Group's freehold land and buildings and a leasehold
building are measured at revaluation model whereas the
investment property is measured at fair value. The valuation was
defermined by the management of the Group by reference to
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation involves significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjusiment. In relying on the valuation reports of the independent
professional valuers, the management has exercised its judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
market conditions prevailing at respective valuation dates affer
faking into consideration the state of the relevant properties. Any
changes in the market conditions will affect the fair value of these
properties of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount
of freehold land and buildings and a leasehold building are
S$17,775,744 (2022: S$17,476,137) whereas the carrying
amount of investment property is S$Nil (2022: S$Nil). The
invesment property was redesignated for the Group’s own use,
and fransferred fo property, plant and equipment on 1 January

2022.

Allowance for inventories (Note 16)

The Group's accounting policy requires allowance for inventories
fo be made based on an assessment of the net realisable value
of inventories. Allowances are applied to inventories where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is lower than the cost of inventories. The identification of
obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement and estimates
on the conditions and usefulness of the invenfories. In cases
where the net realisable value of inventories assessed are less
than expected, a material recognifion of allowance for inventories
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
periods in which such recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
are $S$11,438,773 (2022: $$10,288,780) and no allowance
for inventories is made in both years ended 31 December 2023

and 2022.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Continved)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables (Note 17)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
an analysis of assets by risk level of customers based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions af the reporting date. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all confractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade
receivables are S$11,557,873 (2022: S$12,242,384).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the sales of food products, which can largely be
grouped under nuts and chips, also represents the revenue from
confracts with customers.

Information is reported to the executive directors of the Company,
which are also the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM”)
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of products sold and in respect of the "Nuts” and “Chips”
operations.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as
follows:

(i) Nouts,
[i)  Chips; and
lii)  Others.

Others mainly include items such as disposable towels which are
normally sold together with the nuts and chips products to food
and beverage companies.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninved) 5 U ZE K 2 ZBE F w0

Segment revenue and results DEKERFE
The following is a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and results NTREAT2Hy ME DA EB Y E R
by reportable segments: FERBRA:
Revenue Net profit
Uy & R
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E_=HF B —E-=H& —E--
S$ S$ S$ S$
R T T Fon3g T AT
Nuts 2R 45,972,369 50,834,158 12,039,839 11,333,281
Chips 2h 22,027,219 21,656,353 7,183,114 6,073,935
Others Hith 2,118,378 2,309,190 543,195 557,557

70,117,966 74,799,701 19,766,148 17,964,773

Other income Hip A 909,388 2,138,120
Other gains and losses Hof W a5 K 518 (440,582) (542,269)
Selling and distribution expenses  $H%& &5 88 f & (4,662,465) (3,932,929)
Administrative expenses THAX (8,574,011) (8,276,069)
Finance costs B B AR (96,580) (116,821)
Profit before taxation B %6 A1 4 A 6,901,898 7,234,805
Income fax expense FEHAX (1,446,746) (1,419,539
Profit for the year F A A 5,455,152 5,815,266
The Group derives its revenue from sales of Nuts, Chips and AEBENKRRKEHERR B KEAM
Others where all performance obligations for sales of goods MHEEMNAERNEEIRNE KA
are at a point in time. During the year, all the contracts for sales BT -RER R EFPHEERNMA
of goods to external customers are shortferm, and the contract B AEH BEANEBERKERZERE
prices are agreed based on factors such as volume per unit (&2 EE)HE -

price.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 5

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies are the same as Group's accounting
policies described in Nofe 3. Segment profit represents the profit
eamed by each segment without allocation of centralised other
income, other gains and losses, selling and disfribution expenses,
administrative expenses, finance costs and income tox expense.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented
as they are not regularly provided to the CODM of the Group.

Wk oIBER @

PR ERES @
SRR M TS AT I AN S B A 2 5T B R AR
@) o 2> 2B ) 8 &% 0 SR B A K1) I 5k
SR EHNEMRA -HubkzkEE HE
EoERY THRAS PUHEBEMEH
HXETOR -tk I E RSB o ERIR
FERMEELERRERSEZFTEAN -

THEERER

MR A EEEELERRER
HABEEXH BRENS N HAp I 8L
SIB RIS -

Other segment information HittnZBEHR
2023 2022
—E-= Tz
S$ S$
#1037t N T
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB REREITEUR
equipment and rightof-use assefs: EREEENE:
Nuts BXR 1,178,029 1,181,748
Chips EhH 564,441 503,448
Others EHAh 54,283 53,682
Unallocated Kohd 244,438 178,992
2,041,191 1917870
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31 December 2023

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 5

Geographical information

The Group principally operates in Singapore and Malaysia,
which are the place of domicile of respective group entities.
Revenue from external customer is based on the geographical
location of the end-customers. The Group's non-current assefs are
located in Singapore and Malaysia.

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

Wz Ko EER @

B E R
AEBEERFT N ES KA (BHAES
EEEENREH) SCLEK - KRFINER
PRWEDENREEENHIEME - KE
ERIERBEEH MR INE & ERALS -

2023 2022
—EC-=F —=E-—
S$ S$
¥ 038 T N T
Revenue by geographical location of RIZHE PR E 85 #)
the end-customers: g 5
- Singapore — g 42,721,738 44,797 269
- Malaysia — B R 20,491,958 20,915,473
— The People’s Republic of China —hEAREME (B2IF
[including Hong Kong and Macau) EENEPT) 3,670,934 6,710,316
— Others* —H > 3,283,886 2,376,643
70,117,966 74,799,701

This includes customers from Southeast Asia other than Singapore

B A # IR K 5 K P SR PASM Y R 52

and Malaysia. EJ=

2023 2022

—EC-=F —Eg-=
S$ S$
¥ 038 T N T

Non-current assets: EREEE

- Singapore — N 8,799,773 8,610,535
- Malaysia — 5 R 19,890,573 18,761,021
28,690,346 27,371,556
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninvedy 5 B R D5 ZHE R

Information about major customers FEEFEHR
The revenue from customers individually confributing over 10% of HE2-_Z2-_=ZFK-_ZT-_-_F+=A
fofal revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December =t+—HIEFE  KaBERE A EEAKS
2023 and 2022 are as follows: BI0%HE P EUER AT -
2023 2022
— 2= —E- =
s$ s$
#7103 T AN T
Customer A BEPA 21,248,885 21,210,545
Customer B =FB = 7,450,560
Customer C EFEC 9,500,742 9,159,732
* This cusfomer did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of * WBE_Z_=F+_A=t—HItFE"
the Group in the year ended 31 December 2023. HEEP L EEAEE AW E10%A L -
6A OTHER INCOME 6A HAW A
2023 2022
—F=-= —F_—
S$ s$
#hn3® T ¥ N3 T
Government grants! I B 91,509 43,575
Interest income B A 811,045 268,195
Others? Hth? 6,834 1,826,350

909,388 2,138,120
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6A OTHER INCOME (Continued)

1

The government grants received mainly comprise the Progressive
Woages Credit Scheme ("‘PWCS"), Wage Subsidy Program
["PSU"), the Senior Employment Credit ("SEC"), Jobs Growth
Incentive ("JGI") and CPF Transition Credit ("CTO"), all of them are
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support fo the Group with
no future related costs.

In 2023, the Group received incentive of S$34,616, under the
PWCS. The PWCS was infroduced in Budget 2022 to provide
transitional wage support for employers to adjust to upcoming
mandatory wage increases for lowerwage workers covered by the
progressive wage and local qualifying salary requirements; and
voluntarily raise wages of lowerwage workers.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received
incentive of S$nil (2022: S$17,870), under the JCI. Under this
scheme, the government supports employers to expand local hiring
from September 2020 fo September 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received
incentive of $$4,508 (2022: S$3,381), under the CTO. Under
this scheme, the government supports employers with a transitory
wage offset equivalent to half of the increase in employer CPF
contribution rates for senior workers.

Others mainly relafes fo a reimbursement of professional fees for
consuliancy services recorded as administrative expenses in 2021.

6B OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

31 December 2023

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

6A HAUWA @

1

B YR ER Y R 4 B BB AR A E 0 Fr
BAETEI (NN R s BhaT &) - TEH
MErE ([ TEMBETE]) FREIME
et ([FRETIpEMEL]) - R LE/F
B(TRERBFAE D RPRRAESBE
EOFE (ThRABLBEEE])
AT BERCELARMXNERN
8 HEEL TASBEERSEER) (&
ARAAARIRLA)

N T = = AN B U B =
Bhat 8] 2 #8534, 61637 A1 IT o 8 #E 20
HEMEH AR S - —FETEERRE A
ABETREBEMIEX S NEETE
ANMEFFM A EH S PIERENBENRE
TABEEIZRMaHIETERE A RE
BEERSEHFIANIE-

BE-_Z-_=%+-A=1+—RBILtEE"
REE I E R RE R E 2 EEV AT
W (ZEZZF 17,8708 s T) - 18
Bitd WRR —_ZE-_ZFAAE_F
ZZFNAAMEFRHESE  BAKNDE
HEARHE o

BE-_ZE-_=—#+-A=+—RHI-EE"
AREBWEIRRAESBEEDE 2 6E
BE4, 5088 TN 0 (— B = — 4 :3,381%F
o) < IREZE 8 BT AEEREE
HUENTEME SBEEREETATFER
TAEEMFRRAESHREAGEN—

Hih T EERBFAMBEENEEE (K
R FARIMETRAX) A

6B HfttW#m K EE

2023 2022
—E= Tz
S$ S$
N3 T N T
Gain on lease modification HEBR K= 3,506 7,384
loss on disposal of property, HEWE BB M&E2ER
plant and equipment (340) -
Foreign exchange loss, net HINEE PE 18 5 58 (512,122) (600,048)
Fair value gain on financial asset at FVTPL A FEFABZZSREE L
N ERE 43,469 -
Fair value gain on derivative TETRMITAZ AFERS
financial instruments 24,905 50,395
(440,582) (542,269)

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2023 %3k 155



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBImRME

31 December 2023

—E-=F+=-HA=+—H

7 FINANCE COSTS 7 ®ERK
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-=
S$ S$
1 h0 3% T ¥t
Interest on: LATREIBZF 8 -
— Bank loans —IRITER 34,503 42,166
— lease liabilities —-HHEaE 62,077 74,655
96,580 116,821
8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8 MEHEAX
2023 2022
—E-=F g
S$ S$
N3 oo N T
Tax expense comprises: RERX8HE:
Current income tax BIERFTISHX
Current year KEE 1,328,668 1,428,097
Over provision in prior year BT EHBERE (31,132) (6,201)
1,297,536 1,421,896
Withholding tax BRI 1,748 2,774
Deferred tax (Note 26) EIEFL I (MI5E26)
Current year KEE 197,345 108,456
Over provision in prior year BEFEBBEREE (39,756) (102,927)
Effect of revaluations of assets EHEENRBTE
for taxation purposes (10,127) (10,660)
147,462 (5,131)
1,446,746 1419539
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The Group has no assessable profit before tax in Cayman Islands
and Hong Kong other than those subject to Singapore and
Malaysia corporate income fax.

Singapore Corporate Income Tox (“CIT") is calculated at
17% of the estimated assessable profit, defermined based on
financial year end date of the group of companies. Singapore
incorporated companies can enjoy /5% tax exemption on the
first S$10,000 of chargeable income and a further 50% tax
exemption on the next $$190,000 of chargeable income.

In Malaysia, the standard corporate tax rate is 24% for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled fo the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

FrEFiRE X w

KRBT AN B R 2 S PR B BES1
SR BB B BB R 2 AR B B
BRI -

B EERER ([REMBHR]BRNE
BRI BFEAEE BETENMGFER
Bt FE 1 7%+ 8 o AT IR M AR LB &
A Y & FR T 4 A E 10,000% I3 T A #4 42
BN 7 5% T I8 - H 1% 190,000%F i 3% 7T #Y
FERTEU AT — S ER R RS 0%HI B IH ©

RERA BE_T_=Fk-_FT_—
TZA=+T—BULFENBRERRRER
24%

AEENAEHAXESFGBRERAEGS
T W s 2R Y R AR AT s A S BRI T

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
S$ S$
¥ 038 7T TN T
Profit before taxation B 5 A 6,901,898 7,234,805
Tax at applicable tax rate of 17% B 7%HE AR E T E IR 1,173,323 1,229,917
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ETRBREEREERNHE AR
operating in other jurisdiction TRBENTZE 204,226 195,720
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AHHBFA O RE T E
for tax purpose 237,703 211,992
Tax effect of income not taxable BAMNTRBANE S 2
for tax purpose (66,057) (312,088)
Effect of tax concessions and FRUWOR & M D RN FE
partial fax exemptions (17,425) (17,425)
Over provision in prior year BEFEBRBEEG (70,888) (109,128)
Effect of revaluations of assets EHEENBBEE
for taxation purposes (10,127) (10,660)
Withholding tax TEHIREIR 1,748 2,774
Others Et (5,757) 228,437
1,446,746 1,419,539
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

9  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR o FEBF
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: FREHEMNEMR (FFA)ATIASE :
2023 2022
—E-=F g
S$ S$
N3 oo N T
Depreciation of property, plant and ME B RRETE
equipment 1,843,434 1,714,590
Annual audit fees: FEZEER:
— Paid to auditors of the Company and — X TFARRBZEEN R EE
Deloitte Network firms BRAREEAK B FT 225,963 228,007
Non-audit fees: EZEER:
— Paid to auditors of the Deloitte S FEEHERARHE
Network firms Efth X 8 BT iZ ELAD 25,038 5,329
— Paid to other auditors — P E A A BN 4,500 6,500
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EE5MWe (FHFE10) 4,318,139 4,303,900
Other staff costs Hfh B TR
— Salaries and other benefits —FHe MEMEF 7,480,049 6,893,998
— Contributions to CPF and EPF —HRAEEREEAESHER 570,430 519,532
Total staff costs @8 TR 12,368,618 11,717,430
Inventories recognised as cost of sales WRAHENANGFE 41,114,079 47,466,346
Amount recognised in profit or loss relating to leases RESPEINEEEBRE
(Disclosure required by IFRS 16) (BB S R EERF 1R TR E)
2023 2022
—E-=F g
S$ S$
¥ h0 3% T o
Depreciafion expense on rightofuse assets  EFAEEENEER 197,757 203,280
Inferest expense on lease liabiliies HEAEBFBMEZ 62,077 74,655
Expense relating to shortterm leases EHEERERX 10,650 19,589
The total cash outflow for leases, including shortferm leases, HE(EREHEE ) 2 ReRnbBEAR
amount to $$260,807 (2022: S$279,435). 260,807t (ZE = —F:279,435

FINETT) ©
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FEMTBHmTRMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEM 4L R &2
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments EEME
The emoluments paid or payable fo the directors of the Company AREETEEENXENAAREEN
BT

by entities comprising the Group are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE_Z_=F+-A=+—HLEE

Contributions
Discrefionary ~ Salaries and ~ to retirement

Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
BB

ik BisRA HeRER FTEIHR @t
s$ s$ s$ S$ s$
F5yib 33K T 3 3% T 33K T b5y Ib

Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Llawrence Lim WHETE - 794,568 633,500 11,224 1,439,292
Mr. Winston Lim MEFRE - 647,284 633,500 9,272 1,290,056
Ms. Sandy Lim MR L - 647,284 625,700 8,672 1,281,656
Mr. lim Seng Chye WER A - 79,549 117,600 17,340 214,489

Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES

Directors
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BERFEE 30,882 - - - 30,882
Mr. Lee Yan Fai TEELE 30,882 = = = 30,882
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow E4 Fea 30,882 = = = 30,882

92,646 2,168,685 2,010,300 46,508 4,318,139
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEMLREEHFM
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEME
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_F+-A=+t—HLEE
Contributions
Discrefionary ~ Salaries and fo refirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
RIKEF
ik WL He Loz BT @ar
s$ S$ s$ s$ S$
i) 1B Fi1b g T T
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Llawrence Lim MHETE - 813,498 625,583 7,200 1,446,281
Mr. Winston Lim MFEFEE - 656,749 625,583 7,200 1,289,532
Ms. Sandy Lim ML - 656,749 609,983 6,240 1272972
Mr. lim Seng Chye WA & - 73,290 114,500 12,240 200,030

Independent Non-Executive BIYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRFEE 31,695 - - - 31,695
Mr. lee Yan Fai TEEEE 31,695 - - - 31,695
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow B4 Sk 31,695 - - - 31,695
95,085 2,200,286 1,975,649 32,880 4,303,900
No chief executive had been appointed during the years ended HE-Z_=FRk-_Z-_-_F+=A
31 December 2023 and 2022. =t—BUIEFE TEZERSTHRAR-
Discretionary bonus was determined by reference to the duties BBEREANESERBA TR AR ER
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group BENBEEURAEENRBERERE -

and the Group's performance.
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FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

10 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEMA REEHFM =

EMOLUME NTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No ofher retirement benefits were paid to directors of the
Company in respect of their respective services in connectfion with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Employees’ remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three (2022: three|] were directors of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2022: two) individual was as follows:

EEME w0
BMEEANAEENEIEARASEHK B
NEINEERENREm ARSI MHE
o RARIEF]

EXFATRBTEENME IHREERAR
) e 7 5 B 7 P e 4 ) ARG T S A o

EXFATRBIFATEETNOME IR RS
BERNRBEEAIRHOIRSGE Mo

& & %
HE-_Z-_=F+-"A=1+—BIEFE K
EEREReFHALHR =R (2T -
FZR)AARFEE FEOMHEIR
EXHE-HBTME(ZTE__F WE)A
TEF BT

2023 2022

—EB-=F —=E-=
S$ S$
¥ b T ¥ o
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 268,800 265,700
Discretionary bonus B TEAT 178,149 175,289
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme — RIKEF 5T & 70 24,992 17,640
471,941 458,629

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2023 ¥ 161



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023

—E-=F+=-HA=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'

11

EMOLUME NTS (Continued)

Employees’ remuneration (Continued)

The emoluments of five highest paid individuals (including
directors) fall within the following bands:

10

EEMEREEFM o

EEHMH =

TEBSHEMAL (BEES) 2 HHEE
mT -

Number of Employees

EE AR
2023 2022
—EC_=F —E-=

Emolument bands & E
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 L2 1,500,000% 7T 2 2
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T Z=7,500,000% 7T 1 2
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001%& 7t 28,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001% 7t £ 8,500,000/ 7T 1

5 5

No emoluments were paid by the Group fo the directors of the
Compoany or the five highest paid individuals {including directors
and employees) as an inducement fo join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. None of the direcfors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of directors proposes a final dividend of 0.23 Hong
Kong cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2023, representing a tofal payment of approximately HK$2.3
million (equivalent to approximately S$0.4 million). This dividend
is subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General
Meefing and has not been included as a liability in these
financial statements.
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FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SREF
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—
Profit for the year attributable to the KRARHEE ANBIEEE R F
owners of the Company (S$) (¥rhnigoT) 5,455,152 5,815,266
Weighted average number of EEITEBRINE IR
ordinary shares in issue 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Basic eamings per share (S$ cents) FRREARZBF) (F 5 ) 0.55 0.58
The calculation of basic eamings per share for the years ended %ff;;l;; E%ﬁ;i;&%ﬁﬁggﬁé}i
31 December 2023 and 2022 is based on the profit for the N . N
. : RIEB NE(EF s I & B 31T IR0 N ke
year atfributable to owners of the Company and the weighted et

average number of shares in issue.

HRARERBE-T_=FR_F=
. . o . FH-_A=+—"BLFEIEBEED ET

no pofential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 v T o e B g <

December 2023 and 20272, B M E 2| BREERR

No diluted earnings per share were presented as there were
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ -HENKE
Leasehold Freehold Freehold  Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building lond  buildings  machinery  and fittings vehicles i progress Total
KAEE  KA%E
HERP T BT BRER#ZE HAREE 5§ #HPIR ast
) s$ ) ) s$ ) ) s$
T T BT BT Fast Fasn SiEn BnEn
Cost or valuation: RS fEE:
At 1 January 2022 R=B==f
-RA-H 6,600,000 4,687,176 3,081,624 13,742,133 4,321,083 1,464,469 1,099,332 34995817
Additions NE - - - 1,388,358 170,678 - 447,752 2,006,788
Transferred from Investment BRE ”}J%@}Tﬁ
Property (Note 15) (B35 - 1430754 647 400 - - - - 2,078,154
Revaluation gain Effla 300,000 837,040 507,867 - - - - 1,644,907
Exchange difference ERER - (382,591)  (233,133)  (773,644)  (124,174) (22,636) [77.094) (1,613,272
At 31 December 2022 R=-B=Z#%
+ZA=1- 6,000,000 6,572,379 4,003,758 14,356,847 4,367,587 1441833 1469990 39,112,394
Additions NE - 589,136 282,809 976,416 150,838 298,270 843,404 3,140,873
Revaluation gain {loss| BhlE (FE) 100,000 64,804 (109,014 - - - - 55,790
Disposal HE - - - (15,600 [47.491) (41,162) - (104,253)
Transferred fo plant and BAZNE BER
machinery B - - - 2264516 - - (2,264,516 -
Exchange difference ERLER - (393,831) (234,297)  (834,481)  (120,686) (27,325) (48,878) (1,659,498
At 31 December 2023 RZB==%
+ZB=+—-H8 7000000 6,832,488 3943256 16747698 4350248 1671616 - 40,545,306
Comprising: B
At 31 December 2022 R-B=Z%
+ZA=t+-H
Al cost B AR - - - 14,356,847 4367587 1441833 1,469,990 21,636,257
At valuation BhER 6,000,000 6,572,379 4,003,758 - - - - 17,476,137

6,900,000 6,572,379 4,003,758 14,356,847 4,367,587 1,441,833 1,469,990 39,112,394

At 31 December 2023 RZB-=%

+=A=+-8
At cost ARG - - - 16,747,698 4350248 1,671,616 - 20,769,562
At voluction i e 7000000 6,832,488 3,943,256 - - - - 17,775,744

7,000,000 6,832,488 3943256 16,747,698 4,350,248 1671616 - 40,545,306
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FEMFHmTMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

31 December 2023

13 ME- -BERRKREw®

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

Leasehold Freehold Freehold ~ Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land  buildings  machinery  and fittings vehicles in progress Total
KAEE  KA%E
HERF T BT HBRER#%E HAREE 5§ #HPIR st
) s$ ) ) s$ ) ) s$
T T WA AT Fast FEn SiEn BEn
Accumulated depreciation:  RiHTE:
At 1 January 2022 R=B=zf
—-RA-H - - - 8718148 2312927 1,195,655 - 12,226,730
Charge for the year FRFAX 300,000 - 93,296 933,094 305,457 82,743 - 1,714,590
Exchange difference iR - - - (490,399) (53,407) (17,262 - (561,068
Eliminated on revaluation EEHEH (300,000 - (93,296) - - - - (393,296
At 31 December 2022 R-B=Z#%
+ZA=t-8 - - - 9160843 2564977 1,261,136 - 12,986,956
Charge for the year FRFAX 328,572 - 100,980 971,889 320,839 121,154 - 1,843,434
Disposal L& - - - [13,000) (47,491) (41,162 - (101,653
Exchange difference EHER - - - (498,398 (58,421) (18,288) - (575,107)
Eliminated on revaluation RS (328,572 - (100,980 - - - - (429,552
At 31 December 2023 RZB==%
+=B=+-8 - - - 90621334 2779904 1,322,840 - 13,724,078
Carrying amounts: FREE:
At 31 December 2023 i
+=A=+—H 7000000 6,832,488 3943256 7,126,364 1,570,344 348776 - 26,821,228
At 31 December 2022 WZEZ_%F
+ZA=+t—H 6,900,000 6,572,379 4,003758 5196004 1802610 180,697 1,469,990 26,125,438

The above items of property, plant and equipment [except for
freehold land and renovation in progress) are depreciated on
a sfraightline basis at the following useful lives after taking into

account the residual values:

leasehold building
(Note)

Freehold buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fittings

Motor vehicles

Note:

- Over the land lease term till 2044

- 50 years

- 10 years

- 3-10 years

- 5 years

The building which is owned by the Group is located on
a leasehold land expiring in 2044. The leasehold land is

separately recognised as rightof-use asset in Note 14.

by -BEEREEE (TEEKAE
L RAETTR B Ti2) T E BRI
BEERRTINAIEAFHANERETE

E:

HEBTF - RIwEHRNEZE
(BsE) —EEF

KAKERT —  50F

B M & e - 10%

RANKE - 3ZEI10F

L - 5%

fiat: AEEHEENEBFLER BN _-Z

M FEREMEE i oS T i

R 14h EBRRREAEEE -
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13 ¥ -BERSEZEw

The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and
buildings with carrying amount of $$7,000,000 to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2023 (2022: S$11,799,576).

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and
buildings

The Group’s land and buildings are stated af their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation. For years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers not related to the Group, Premas Valuers
& Property Consultants Pre Lid and MacReal International (JB) Sdn
Bhd, who have appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the fair value measurement of the properties in the relevant
locations, to perform the valuation as at 31 December 2023
and 2022. Management has assessed that the key inputs and
assumptions used by the valuers for valuation dafe 31 December
2023 and 2022 remain applicable and reasonable as at year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards.
Where the external valuer is engaged, the management of
the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers 1o
establish the appropriate valuation fechniques and inputs to the
model.

The fair value of the land and buildings were determined based
on either the transaction price and/or the direct comparison
approach that reflects relevant transaction prices for similar
properties, adjusted for differences in the nature, location and
condition of the land under review. There has been no change o
the valuation technique used during the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 ¥ BERSEZEw

AEETHREFNATFETFE@w

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and

buildings (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best

use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value as ot

RIGHAREMEZ A FER
R kRERERERERAR

ASEYE XN

<

RATEEZATE
Valuation
2023 2022 Technique Significant unobservable input Sensitvity
It et 3 ZTICF fERE EARUBZRARE §RE
§$ 89
FMET Mg

level 3

%ZE

leasehold bulding 7,000,000 6,900,000 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2023: $$277.76 (2022: $$273.79) per squore feet  The higher the market

255 Pandan Loop, Singapore approach after adjusting for age, location, condifion and surrounding facilty. price, the higher the
fair valve.

HEgT: BELEE Foigs g RARRERGIERETARTITES: mEME ATEER:

255 Pandan Loop, Singapore ZECZE77 765 M (2S5 1 273 7O TL) «

Freehold bulding A: 964,992 1,051,215 Direct comparison ~ Average marke price of 2023: $§23.63[2022: $$25.74] per square feet ~ The higher the market

No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian approach after adjusting for age, location, condifion and surrounding facilty. price, the higher the

Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim, fair valve.

Malaysia

KAEHETA: ERLEE EigR g RARBEREAREETARTOHES: mEdR ATEES.

No. 7, Jolon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustian ZEZCF O3 (2B 05 A M)

Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,

Malaysio

Freehold bulding B 709,384 761,750  Direct comparison  Average market price of 2023: 5$25.53 (2022: S§27 41) per square feet  The higher the market

No. 8, Jelon Isiimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion approach after adjusting for age, location, condition and surrounding facily piice, he higher the

Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Dorul Tokzim, fair valve.

Malaysia

KAKEETD ERUEE Fogs g RARBERGIERETARTITEA: mEME ATEER:

No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian CECZE)S S (ZEZZF 7 AT

Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Dorul Tokzim,

Malaysia

Freehold bullding C 795,544 853,160 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2023: $$28.63 (2022: S§30.70] per square feet  The higher the market

No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian approach after adjusting for age, location, condifion and surrounding facilty. price, the higher the

Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim, fair valve.

Malaysio

KAEHEEFC ERLEE EigR g RARBEREAREETARTOHES: mEdR ATEES.

No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian CRCZE 80T (ZEZ2F 30708 T «

Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,

Malaysia

Freshold building D 516,960 563,095 Direct comporison  Average market price of 2023: $$38.05 (2022: S$41.49) per square feet  The higher the market

No. 6, Jalon Maju Cemerang 3, Taman Perindusiian approach after adjusting for age, location, condition and surrounding facily piice, he higher the
Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim, fair valve.

Malaysia

KAFEEFD ERLBA ik L2 ANREERERERETIRTOTEA: mER LFEES.

No. 6, Jalon Maju Cemerang 3, Taman Perindusiian

Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,

Malaysio

ZECF 3R 00T (ZE 2 F 4 AT T )
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mEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and

buildings (Continued)

Freehold bulding £

No. 3, Jolon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

XASEETE

No. 3, Jolon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

Freshold building F

No. 16 Jolan Istimewa 4, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Dorul Tokzim,
Malaysia

KARERTFF

No. 16 Jolan Istimewa 4, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Dorul Tokzim,
Malaysia

Freehold lond A

No. 7, Jolon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

XAEELHA

No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

Freehold lond B

No. 8, Jalon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustiian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Dorul Tokzim,
Malaysia

KAKEL B

No. 8, Jlon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustiian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Dorul Tokzim,
Malaysia

Freehold lond C

No. 6, Jolon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

XAEHELHC

No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

Freehold lond D

No. 6, Jelan Maoju Cemerang 3, Taman Perindustion
Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

KAKHELHD

No. 6, Jalan Moju Cemerang 3, Taman Perindustion
Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia

Fair value as ot
RATEEZATE

2023 2022
ZBC-= - St
$$ $$
DI Mg
709,384 773938
246,992 -
1,677,248 1,761,166
1,278,040 1,325,445
1,278,040 1,325,445
683,536 639,870
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Valuation
Technique

hERH

Direct comparison
approach

ERIEBE

Direct comparison
approach

ERLBE

Direct comparison

approach

EREBE

Direct comparison

approach

ERLEA

Direct comparison

approach

EREBE

Direct comparison

approach

ERLEE

13 M¥E -BERREREw®

AEETHREFNAFETE@w

Significant unobservable input

EXFTRERALE

Average market price of 2023: 5$25.53 (2022: $§27.85) per square feet
after adjusting for age, locafion, condifion and surrounding facllty.

E5gE g RARREREAREETARTTES:
CECCE S ST (2B 07 85 ML)

Average market price of 2023: $$25.76 (2022: nil) per squore feet
after adjusting for age, location, condition and suriounding facilty

@5k NE RARBEREAREETARTATEA:
CECCE S T6AIMSL (ZE ).

Average market price of 2023: 5$26.55 [2022: $§27.88) per square feet
after adjusting for age, location, condition and surrounding faciliy.

E5E g RARREREAREETARTTES:
CECZE6 S5 (2B 07 88T

Average market price of 2023: $$29.32 (2022: $§30.40) per square feet

after adjusting for age, location, condition and surrounding facilty

Esiek g RAREEREAREETARTATEA:
ZECZF 03T (ZE 2 F 3040 TT) ©

Average market price of 2023: $$29.32 (2022: $§30.40) per square feet
after adjusting for age, location, condition and surrounding faciliy.

E5gE g RARREREAREETARTATES:
ZECZE9. 35 ML (2B 2 30405 )

Average market price of 2023: $$35.90 (2022: $§33.60) per square feet

after adjusting for age, location, condition and suriounding facilfy.

@5k g RAREEREIREETARTATEA:
ZEZE 35 0T (ZS T2 F 33 60 TT) ¢

Sensitivity
gRE

The higher he market
price, the higher the
foir value

mEds AFE

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair valve.

TEEE AFE

The higher he market
price, he higher the
foir value.

°

mEdS ATEE

ot
ot

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair volve.

The higher he market
price, the higher the
foir value.

mEAR AFEES.

ot
ot

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair volve.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Coniinuec) 13 MI1% - - BERREw®
Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and EEELHREFHNAFETE w

buildings (Continued)

Fair value as at

RUTEEZATE
Voluation
2023 2022 Technique Significant unobservable input Sensitivity
“E-=F “ECCE BRI EXTUBREANE YRE
$§ M)
T T
Freehold lond £ 1,447,488 1,520,453 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2023: $§28.15(2022: $$29.57) per square feet ~ The higher the market
No. 3, Jolon Istimewa 1, Taman Perindusfrian approach after adjusting for age, location, condition and surrounding facilty price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim, fair valve.
Malaysia
KAFHELIE ERRRE Bk LE RRREEREIEAETHIRTNTEA: e AFEES.
No. 3, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrian ZEIEERIS BB (ZEZ2E 0578 MET) o
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tirom, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Malaysia
Freehold lond F 468,136 - Direct comparison  Average market price of 2023: $$32.51 (2022: S$il per square fest fier  The higher the price, the
No. 16, Jolan Isfimewa 4, Toman Perindusfrian Cemerlang approach adjusfing for age, location, condition and surounding facilty. higher the fair value.
81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia
KAFELIF EREBE fatgk L RARREREIRRETARTOTER: mEER ATEES:
No. 16, Jolan Isimewa 4, Toman Perindusfrian Cemerlang CECICEDSIFIET (ZEI 2 SRS
81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia
17,775,744 17,476,137
! On 1 January 2022, the property is redesignated for the Group's ! WRoZB-—F—-R B ZWERETIE
own use, and transferred from investment property to property, ERAEEBR TEEZWE BER
plant and equipment. B
Any significant isolated changes to the inputs would result in a BWARBNEAMEFAENZICEEHAT
significant change in fair value measurement. Bt EMNEREH-
The properties’ fair value hierarchy is based on level 3, and MEANFERBRDERNE=EH BRXF
there were no fransfers between the fair value hierarchy levels W RFEBR R EERER-
during the year.
Had the properties been carried under the cost model, the e P AR ARG E - B R ) BREE 40
carrying amounts of the properties would have been the I
following:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E——
S$ s$
1 hn3 T #ThNE T
Under cost model R T
leasehold building HEEF 349,999 366,666
Freehold buildings KAEEETF 3,094,913 3,063,644
Freehold land KA SERE T 4,353,228 4,009,084

7,798,140 7,439,394
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

The Group leases leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation
for staff and motor vehicle. The lease term is in range of 2 to 30
years, some with average option to extend 2 years.

The Group has no options to purchase any of its leased assets af
the end of the lease term. Other than the leased motor vehicle,
the Group's obligations are not secured by the lessors’ fifle to the
leased assets for such leases.

14 {f)ﬁﬁ*&ﬁé (REEFERHEME

AEEERAEELH AFE BEIEERE
o HEN F2FE30F - ER O AIEE
TR 24 -

AEEREEMRGEEZREE LM
HEEE-BREEEWHIN AEEZEEY
BULHAHARAEECHEEEMARE
YRR

Leasehold Motor
land  Warehouses  Accommodation vehicle Total
HELH BE BE B @t
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
T T T T T
Group X5E
Cost: R
At T January 2022 RZZE-_—F—Hf—H 1,007,252 632,604 351,525 105,789 2,097,170
Additions NE 89 451 106,055 160,651 - 356,157
Termination of leases BIFRE - - (183,090) - (183,090)
Exchange difference [ERER - (40,108 (10,467) - (50,575
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F+-A=1+—H 1,096,703 698,551 318,619 105,789 2,219,662
Additions NE - 100,168 84,423 - 184,591
Exchange difference ERERR - (42,625) (8,968) - (51,593)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-fA=+—H 1,096,703 756,094 394,074 105,789 2,352,660
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
At T January 2022 RZE-__F—Hf—H 249,014 414,756 216,645 105,789 086,204
Charge for the year FERFX 35,270 102,317 65,693 - 203,280
Termination of leases BIEHEE - - (122,836) - (122,836)
Exchange difference ERZE - (27.216) (3,805) - (31,021)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-A=+—H 284,284 489 857 155,697 105,789 1,035,627
Charge for the year FRREY 37,639 06,977 63,141 - 197,757
Exchange difference ERER - (30,560 (1,651) - (32,211)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-A=1+—H 321,923 556,274 217,187 105,789 1,201,173
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2023 R-Z-=F+-A=1+—H 774,780 199,820 176,887 - 1,151,487
At 31 December 2022 RZE-__#+-F=+—H 812,419 208,694 162,922 - 1,184,035
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there are additions
of rightof-use assets of S$184,5901 (2022: S$356,157)
relating fo extension of existing lease contracts, increase in lease
payments and new lease of accommodation.

At 31 December 2023, the Group is commitied to S$4,750
(2022: S$4,000) for short term leases.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

14 FHAREE (AEBEEHEAEAN)
(#)
BHE_Z-_=F+_A=+—BItFE"
ARIREHAEALNER AEMNFIE M &
FIESMEA  FREEEEIISLSQ1H N
Wt (ZZT = —4F: 356,157 T) °

R-ZB-=F+-A=+—0 K&E@rE
B EFRE AL, 7505 M (ZE ==
4,000%1 N3 oc) °

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REY=
Completed
investment
property
[R5
REYE
S$
¥ o

At fair value: BATE:

Balance af 1 January 2022 RIE-_—F—A—HWER 2,078,154
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 13) BREWE BENHRE (KE13) (2,078,154

Balance at 31 December 2022 and 2023 RIEBEZ—FR-_F-_=F

T A=t A& =

On 1 January 2022, the property was redesignated for the
Group's own use, and fransferred from investiment property fo
property, plant and equipment.

RZB-_F—A—B ZWEREHNETE
REAKEER YEREME BELERE-
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mEMBImRME

31 December 2023

—E-=F+-A=+—H

16 INVENTORIES 16 #E
2023 2022
—=E-= g
S$ S$
1 h0 3% T ¥t
Raw materials R R 6,501,253 5,816,794
Packaging materials BEM K 1,398,219 1,617,449
Work-in-progress ERE 1,783,263 801,570
Finished goods BB i 1,756,038 2,052,967
11,438,773 10,288,780
17 TRADE RECEIVABLES 17 EZEWRKIE
2023 2022
—E-=F —ECCF
S$ S$
F N3 oo o
Trade receivables H 5 WG IE 11,557,873 12,242,384
As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables amounted to RZEZ—_F—A—H BEF5EKKES

$$12,818,0625.

The Group grants credit terms to customers typically ranging from
7 1o 60 days (2022: 7 to 60 days) from the invoice date for
frade receivables and certain sales require payment in cash upon
delivery. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date which approximated the

12,818,625 A3 T ©

AEERTFAESREFENEREAME

BYEPNF7EO0XK (

GORIMEEH ME THEERNRZNE

o]
aH

— = — —

=

F:7E

MRS AT RERSHRIZEZAH
(LW HER B ) 250 E 5 B UKGRIA

revenue recognition date af the end of each reporting period: B BRER D AT -
2023 2022
—E-=F ZEICF
S$ s$
#h03K T T
Within 30 days 30HMA 6,315,158 6,245,171
31 days to 60 days 3THZE60H 4,305,913 4,863,646
61 days to 90 days 61HZEQ0H 889,146 1,062,947
91 days to 180 days Q1HZE180R 38,114 70,620
181 days fo one year 181HE—4F 9,542 -
11,557,873 12,242,384
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying values of trade receivables approximate its fair
values.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limit to each
cusfomer on individual basis. Limits affributed to customers are
reviewed when necessary. The majority of the Group's accounts
receivables that are past due but not impaired have no hisfory of
defaulting on repayment. As at the end of each reporting period,
the Group does not charge inferest nor hold any collateral over
the balances.

The Group applied the simplified approach to provide the
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment
methodology is sef out in Notes 3 and 31(b).

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
assesses the impairment for its customers based on different
group of customers which share common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. There has been
no change in the estimation technique or significant assumption
made during the current reporting period.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on  hisforical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forwardlooking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The directors of the Company
considered that the expected credit loss allowance is immaterial.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

17 EZEWRIKEmw

B RYGRIRMREEEE A FEES-

REBEMHEF A AR B CIRE B EEF 4
BERFNEEEZULNBEERTFPNGE
ERE-BRTEPHNBEEELER TR
Al e NEEAE D BB AR E R IR
I EHERERCE - RERSHR AKE
A 4 A 45 ER U BRI B S A (T R 5 o

AEBEREBIR Y H RS E LSRR TE
ERBLETERBREEBRIRER-
BT EF M FE3 53 1(b) ©

ERAEBEEERREEN D A&E
AR AR RREBNARE P AR
HEFRE ARFHBRREFRIEA MK
R PT A B HIRIAEBE ) - AR &5 58
B AR T EREARRLBELEERNE
o

BEHERXIIREEFEFFRABEE
RSENXRFELMAR  UREANTH T
ERALE ARG 2 AIEEERE D
HE-ARBEERABHREEEHEREL
TEKR-
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

Hib BWRIR - RERANKE

PREPAYMENTS
2023 2022
—E_=F —E- =
S$ S$
¥ hn 3% T TN T
Current R ED
Advances to suppliers BT HERNE 545,015 419,973
Advances to staffs HTYET E’J:T/\ 862 3,000
Deposits (Note i) e (FEE ) 192,309 186,854
Prepayments TR FRIA 142,659 11,209
Goods and services tax ("GST") receivables  FEUL B & K& IRFE T
(I m R ARFER]) 44,960 53,542
Interest receivables B W FI B, 64,346 146,743
Others (Note i H (HEED) 247 1,152
990,398 922,473
Non-current EME
Deposits for purchase of property, BEVE BELREBENZRS
plant and equipment 717,631 62,083
Note: B 5
(i) The management considered that the ECL for deposits and others (i) EIRER A TR =FER T

is insignificant as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

Creditlinked note E R EE

+=A E+ EI BehEMOHRMEER

BIEILEKR

BAFEHFABRSNEHEE

BEIRAFEFABGAENEREE:

2023
—E-=F
S$

¥ hn3 T

7,774,260

S$
¥

Creditlinked nofe is classified as current as the maturity ends
within twelve months dfter the reporting period.
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20 FINANCIAL ASSET AT AMORTISED COST

Treasury bill at carrying amount

AR EE D) 3R B & 75

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

20 REMENAGTENEHEE

2023 2022
—E2-= —E-—

S$ S$

¥ h0 3% T N T

3,990,800 -

The market value of the investment carried at amortised cost as of

31 December 2023 is ot $$3,989,140.

As at 31 December 2023, the contractual and effective inferest
rate of this financial assets are 3.73% and 1.61

with a maturity date on 23 January 2024.

% respectively,

For the purposes of impairment assessment, the treasury bill is
considered to have low credit risk as the counterparties to this
investment have a minimum Aa3 credit rafing. Accordingly, for
the purpose of impairment assessment, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

In defermining the expected credit loss for this financial asset,
management has faken info taken info account the historical
default experience, the financial position of the counterparties, as
well as the future prospects of the industries in which the issuer of
the treasury bill operates obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analyst reports and considering various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in
estimating the probability of default of each of these financial
assefs occurring within their respective loss assessment fime
horizon, as well as the loss upon default in each case.

The management considered that the ECL is insignificant as at 31

December 2023.

BE_T_=F+_"A=1+—B REBHK
ARH|FRERE M ES3,989, 1405 I #

G

RZFB_=F+_A=+—B HESH
BEMNBHNERERMEDFIR3.73%%
1.61% BMBER-_T_ME-A_+=H-

OREEMS  ARZERENRZEFH
EEFRRKERACHE  FH It BEEHFWR R
1ZT)TJ—L|3M$*1EE Bt s ERFFEM S - &
BERERFNIEAEHEEEENSR

e

RETZeREENTAHREEBER 12
BEZEELEZDRS XZHF PR
RARREEERRE RO MERERE
SHBEZEIT ARE T R RRA
R W EEERIBRLEE RSB
KR(IMER) NSt ZEeREERH
EENEBRIGRKESEAZFLZHONA
B UREBEBERTELENNER

EEERAE N_E_=F+=-A=+—
B EHEEEEBLTEK-
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21 fTE€mITHE
2023 2022
—E-= Tz
S$ S$
b3 7T ¥ N T
Foreign exchange option contracts not AR &R AERES
designated in hedge accounting EEMEAFEFTED
relationships carried at fair value SMNEHRRER A
(Net settled) (CFBEER)
Current assets MBNEE 34,839 1,184
Current liabilities neaE (157,480) (20,911)
(122,641) 19,727)

During the vyear, the Group had entered into several foreign
currency option and forward contracts with banks and financial
institutions to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation risk of
sefflement from trade payables that are denominated in Australian
Dollar ("AUD") or US Dollar (“USD”). These derivatives were not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The contfracts are subject
fo net sefflement af each maturity date and were measured at fair
value af the end of the reporting period.
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21

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued) 21

The major terms of these foreign currency option and forward

contracts were as follows:

Foreign currency option contracts

Notional Amount

BRTHE

2023

—E-=

Buy AUD and sell SGD
BARTT R E HF T
AUD200,000 or AUD400,000
200,000 7£3400,0002 7T

Buy USD and sell SGD
BAETRE LMK T
UsD200,000 or USD400,000
200,000%& 7£3400,000% 7T

Buy USD and sell SGD
BAETTRE L MIE T
UsD200,000 or USD400,000
200,000 2 7T3400,000% 7T

Buy USD and sell SGD
BAETTRE LM T
UsD200,000 or USD400,000
200,000 2 7%.3400,000% 7T
2022

—F_—

Buy AUD and sell SGD
BANRTTRE L INKT
AUD150,000 or AUD300,000
150,000;2 753, 300,000)2 7T

Buy USD and sell SGD
BAZTRE LIS IT
USD200,000 or USD400,000
200,000 7T 5400,000% 7T

Foreign currency forward contracts

Notional Amount

EREH

2023

—E-=F

Nil

2022

T F

Buy USD and sell SGD
UsD200,000

BAETRE L IMFE T
200,000% 7T

Maturity Date
ZEH#A

15 July 2024
—E-WFEELATEREA

15 February 2024
—E-NE-ATAA

15 March 2024
—E-NF=A+AA

25 September 2024

—E-WNFNA=Z+AA

03 March 2023

—E-=F=A=H

16 January 2023
—E=F—HA+<H

Maturity Date
ZmA

Nil

Setilement on specific date in each

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

TTEE2/MIAEw

ZEIMNEHE N ERA NN ERGRT

SHNEMES L
Exchange Rate

xR

$$0.875/AUD
0.87 5% K TTH 1R T

S$1.295/USD
1,205 I T 15 7T

S$1.3295/USD
1.32055 K T 156 7T

S$1.346,/USD
1.3463F I3 T 135 7T

S$1.015/AUD
1.01 5% T3 18 T

S$1.35/USD
1. 35¥T BT 1= T

SHEEMEN
Exchange Rate

xR

Nil

S$1.345/USD

month from 6 January 2023 to

6 December 2023

R-EBE_=F—AKBZE

TECZF | 3M4A5F TRt

T-ARBEARERREE
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mEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved)

The fair value of derivative financial instruments has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at the end of the
reporting period by banks and financial institutions.

22 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

21 fTEERMIAw

ITEERTANAFEHERERITRER
RN HRERTET 2 BEER

22 RITHEBRES

2023 2022
—EB-=F =
S$ S$
¥ h03% 7T N o
Cash at banks RITIRE 14,824,042 12,204,941
Cash at hand FHERSe 33,720 30,108
Bank deposits RITIFEK 4,632,276 17,644,428
19,490,038 29,879,477
less: Fixed deposits with original W RBZEHBEAS=EAK LN
maturity more than 3 months JE BRTF 3K (4,081,723) (17,172,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in the MERERERANNRE R
consolidated statement of cash flows HeEEY 15,408,315 12,707,477

Other than fixed deposits of $$4,081,723 (2022:
S$17,172,000) which have maturity of between six months and
one year, the remaining bank deposits of the Group represent
shortterm bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. Other than the bank deposits which carry fixed interest
rate, the bank balances carry inferest af variable market rates as

follows:

Range of interest rate per annum: FERELE
Bank deposits RITER
Bank balances RITERR

BRoSEAZE— iﬁﬂmﬂﬂﬁ 54,081,723%
mEgrT(Z== 172,000%F hn
E)?I\’$$Iﬁi\§$fﬁﬁﬁ JIERBEIHA
BB ASARNEHRITER - BRIZETE
PR B RIBITERIN RITHERRIZA T A
BWSMEB:

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-F

2.0%to 4.2%  0.68%to 3.88%
2.0%&4.2%  0.68%%3.88%
0% to 1% 0.25% 10 1%
0%Z1% 0.25%%1%
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FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EZRHEMENRKIEA
2023 2022
—EC-= T
S$ s$
03 7T ¥ N T
Trade payables B 5 EMNFIE 4,448,421 3,926,392
Accrued operating expenses JEETEERX 1,157,547 Q75,769
Other payables: HAth A< 5R0A -
— Advances from customers —EPFEMAR 105,115 1,115
— Deposits received —Blize 62,192 20,600
— GST payables — A KRS B 187,605 168,181
— Others —Hfh 492,767 358,589
2,005,226 1,524,254
Total 5T 6,453,647 5,450,646
The credit period on purchases from suppliers is between 7 to 60 MEEARENEERR/REOR(ZE
[2022: 7 10 60) days or payable upon delivery. ZF I JREOOR) AR
The following is an aged analysis of frade payables presented NTAREREPAREZEZAHZINNNE
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period: S IR FIBERE D AT -
2023 2022
—E-= —T_—
S$ S$
03 5T AN T
Within 30 days 30BA 3,493,592 3,415,624
31 days to Q0 days 31HAE0H 928,408 510,483
@1 days to 180 days 9 THZ180H 26,421 285
4,448,421 3,926,392
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HEEE

2023 2022
—E-= Tz
S$ S$
b3 7T ¥ N T
Within one year —FR 196,907 183,459
Within a period of more than one year —FREMF RN
buf not exceeding two years 168,155 148,991
Within a period of more than two years M 1218 15 A B
but not exceeding five years 181,051 206,515
Over five years AFE 776,903 811,202
1,323,016 1350167
less: Amounts due within one year e B EE TSR
shown under current liabilities —FANEIHFIE (196,907) (183,459
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites R IERE B EIE N5 /REFIE 1,126,109 1,166,708

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard
fo its lease liabilities. Llease liabilities are monitored within
the Group’s finance function. The above represents leases for
leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation for staff and
motor vehicle of the Group. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate was 4.9% (2022: 5.2%). The Group's lease
does not contain variable lease payments and accordingly no
expense relating fo variable lease payments is included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. Certain leases of the Group
contain extension periods, for which the related lease payments
had been included in lease liabilities as the Group believes that
they will exercise these extension options.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

25 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25 RITRAEMER
2023 2022
—E=F Tz
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N T
Secured at amortised cost FEAR RBHERETE)
Bank loans RITER - 2,859,361
less: Amount due for seftlement within BT B A N EIH A E 508
12 months = (496,498)
Amount due for setlement after 12 months 7+ —{[i| A 1& B BA 45 B 5018 = 2,362,863
The above bank and other borrowings are secured or guaranteed LSBT REMERBAEEEEE T
by first legal mortgage over the Group's leasehold building, R AERE T R AEREFHE N E
freehold land and freehold building. TE RS IR B IR -
The carrying amounts of the above bank and other borrowings bt SRAT R E A 18 R R T (B R 7 LA S B
are repayable: Bt
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
S$ S$
#1037t ¥ N T
Within one year —FR - 496,498
Within a period of more than one year —FREMEANERRE
but not exceeding two years - 502,113
Within a period of more than two years GESIERTESEH!
but not exceeding five years - 1,643,690
Over five years T & - 217,060
- 2,859,361
The bank and other borrowings have been fully repaid during the RITRAMMERE R IRFENEHEE
financial year.
The effective interest rates [which are equal to contracted inferest REBRBRZEERENE (TFRENRALHFE)
rates) of the Group's borrowings are as follows: UM
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF
Effective interest rates (per annum): gﬁf () FI%x: ]Oé to 1.15%
variable-tate bank borrowings FEBRITER Nilf& 0% E1.15%
At 31 December 2023, the Group had available $$8,841,596 RZE_=F+_FA=+—H &x&EHTA
(2022: S$1,065,081) of undrawn committed borrowing FARNKRIEREEAREEERE A8 841,596
faciliies in respect of which all conditions precedent has been T (ZE =4 : 1,065,081 %7 i1 3%
met. 7T) B BRI ARG EK -
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mEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

26 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and the movements thereon:

26 BEEBIEEE
LWTAEBANEIEEEHIBEEEREE
&) :

Revaluation
of freehold
building,
freehold land

and investment  Accelerated tax

property depreciation Total
KAKERT
KAKERELH
BENMEE MEHEBEFRE #at
S$ S$ S$
T s ot ¥ T
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—F—H—H 359,103 735,890 1,094,993
Charge to other comprehensive  PASF A i, 2 T Y 2 H1BR
income for the year (Note 28) (MF7¥28) 186,131 - 186,131
Overprovision in prior year B ERBERE
(Note 8) (PfF3E8) - (102,927) (102,927)
(Credit] charge to profit or loss RER (FFAEBZ) R
for the year (Note 8) Bk (K15E8) (10,660 108,456 Q7,796
Exchange difference P& =58 (26,000 (36,695) 62,695)
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—HF+-_A=+—H 508,574 704,724 1,213,298
Charge to other comprehensive  PASF A i 2 T Y 2 H1BR
income for the year (Note 28) (MF3¥28) 1,312 - 1,312
Overprovision in prior year BEFERERE
(Note 8) (FfF3E8) - (39,756) (39,7506)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RERA (FFAEZ) R
for the year (Note 8) Bk (K15E8) (10,127) 197,345 187,218
Exchange difference PE =R (28,988 (38,548) (67,536)
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+=-A=+—H 470,771 823,765 1,294,536

The deferred tax liabilities are resulted from femporary taxable
differences arising from (1) accelerated depreciation in relation
fo capiftal allowance claims on qualified assets in accordance
with prevailing fax law in Singapore and Malaysia, and (2)
revaluation of freehold building, freehold land and investment
property in relation to the fair value uplift as computed by the
external valuers and the book value of the freehold building,
freehold land and investment property.
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FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B&
Number of
shares Par value Share capital
R EE FHE [N
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised share capital of ARANVEERA :
the Company:
At 1 January 2022, RZE-_—_F—AF—H"
31 December 2022 and 2023 ZECCFRZE=F
+=-A=+—H 5,000,000,000 0.01 50,000,000
Number of
shares  Share capital
RAER &N
S$
N T
Issued and fully paid of the Company: RARIBEETRER
At 1 January 2022, RZE-_=ZF—H—H"
31 December 2022 and 2023 ZEZZFRZF=F
+—-A=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,725,820
28 REVALUATION RESERVE 28 Eftf#EAE
The revaluation reserve records increase in the fair value of EMFEBEESKAXRIHEEFREE
freehold land and buildings and leasehold building, net of tax, BFHORFEEM(CHBRBIE) - e
and decrease to the extent that such decrease relate to increase M AR EtmEE R ENERNE —EE
on the same asset previously recognised in other comprehensive KRB -
income.
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—
S$ S$
3 N3 7T N T
At beginning of the year REA] 13,821,715 11,969,643
Increase on revaluation of freehold KAERMERBEETF
properties and leasehold building BHIEE 485,342 2,038,203
Deferred tax on revaluation of KAERYE T BIHEETRIA
freehold properties (Nofe 26) (FFaE26) (1,312) (186,131)
At end of the year RER 14,305,745 13,821,715
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29 ZEATEEIR TR R EE
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—E_=F —E- =
S$ S$
¥ hn 3% T TN T
ASSETS AND LIABILITY EEREE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB RRIZ®E 14 14
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 5,626,669 5,897,596
Other receivables H b fE Y IE 35,376 75,041
Bank balances and cash R MRS 6,254,190 6,467,030
11,916,235 12,439,667
Current liability REEE
Other payables H A &S FRIR 154,372 104,927
154,372 104,927
Net current asset RBEEFE 11,761,863 12,334,740
Total assets less current liability, BWEERRBEG DEEFE
representing net assets 11,761,877 12,334,754
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves RA R #E
Share capifal (Note 27) fEAS (Bt 5E27) 1,725,820 1,725,820
Share premium f& 10 w8 13,487,471 13,487,471
Accumulated losses REETEE (3,451,414) (2,878,537)
Equity attributable to owners of RATEEAEGER
the Company 11,761,877 12,334,754
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FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29 XA TEBBIRTERRES o
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY  (Confinved)

A summary of the Company's share capital and reserves is as RAFHRA R FEEGEENT
follows:
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
R R0 58 RitE#E Ast
s$ s$ S$ S$
IR CRIIE L e
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-ZF
—H—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (4,192,426] 11,020,865

Total comprehensive income  F A2 H Y s 425
for the year:

— Profit for the year —F A - - 1,313,889 1,313,889
At 31 December 2022 R-ESE-—F
+=—HA=+—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (2,878,537) 12,334,754
Total comprehensive loss FAZEBREEHE:
for the year:
— loss for the year —FAEE - - (572,877) (572,877)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F
+=—H=+—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (3,451,414) 11,761,877
30 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 30 EXREHE
The Group manages ifs capifal to ensure that it will be able AREFEEREEN  UERAEEKEES
fo confinue as a going concern while maximising the return fo FEEE R EBE(CEFEER ZHN
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity FERBRREREADR - BE_T_=F
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged for TZA=T—BIEFE AEEREEERRE
year ended 31 December 2023. REFTE
The capifal structure of the Group consists of equity attributable o AEBENEARBHASREER AEGEE
owners of the Group, comprising share capital and reserves. The wm(BERAMEREK -BE-_T =
Croup is in compliance with bank covenants for the years ended FR-_E-__F+-A=+—BILFE"
31 December 2023 and 2022. AREEDETIRITRE -
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

30 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The management of the Group review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management consider
the cost of capital and the associated risk with each class of
items in the context of capital structure, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. Based on

30 EXEEw

AEBEEETHRIERNRE - ERRE
H—®y BEEBEEEEARBIMEEE
AR N ER AR IR B AR R AR - S EREUE
ENERBABASENEARBE - RIEEE
EBHER ARE/BAKEEEEH 2HF

recommendations of the management, the Group will balance ifs

overall capital structure through continuity of funding of cash flows

from operating activities.

BRIREVYHEERBEARE

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 31 €I AR KRERERE
MANAGEMENT
Categories of financial instruments SRMIASE
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
S$ S$
¥ h03% T g oo
Financial assets SREE
— Amortised cost — B8
Trade receivables =Y e 11,557,873 12,242,384
Other receivables and deposits H b e FUE MR & 239,331 323,599
Bank balances and cash WITHEB MRS 19,490,038 29,879,477
Financial asset measured at amortised cost IR SEHK AT E 2 SR EE 3,990,800 -
- FVIPL — BN FEFA Bz
Financial asset measured at FVTPL BAVEHABEZEMEE 7,774,260 -
Derivative financial instruments EeMIA 34,839 1,184
43,087,141 42,446,644
Financial liabilities SEas
— Amortised cost — K
Trade and other payables B 5 M HE MM FROR 6,160,927 5,281,350
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EABIE TR - 2,859,361
- FVTPL — BN FEFAEZ
Derivative financial instruments TEeMIA 157,480 20,911
6,318,407 8,161,622
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's maijor financial instruments include trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, bank and other borrowings and derivative
financial instruments. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are sef out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

[a)  Market risk management
Inferest rafe risk management

Inferest rafe risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Manogement has assessed
there is minimal exposure of the interest rate risk on the
variable rate bearing bank balances and bank and other
borrowings. It is the Group's policy to raise borrowings at
fixed-rate or variable-rate according to business needs and
as fo minimise the fair value and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an inferest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rafe risk
exposure and will consider inferest rate hedging should the
need arise.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
over the bank and other borrowings and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s:

e Profit for year ended 31 December 2023 would
decrease/increase by S$Nil (2022: S$13,361)
This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure fo
inferest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

31 December 2023

31

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

ERTEAERUERRERw

MBRREEEERBER

REEWTE i\ﬁﬂlﬁa%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁ
Hi U RIE LIRS RITERRES

%&E@E’éﬁ%’xlﬁ‘ﬁEﬁ&Em%%ﬁ(&?ﬁE
EMTR -ZFRITANFITSNIERM
AR éﬁiEZ%‘i\mﬂlﬁi\ﬁﬁfﬁE’Jﬂ a?ﬁﬁ
SRR (MR MEBRR) EEE
KRnEE & mE R °§Dﬂﬁ¢1 EZ:HEAE’JLBZ
ERTX -EREEELREEZFRAR A
BREEE BN ITEEE G-

(a)  THIZERERE
T 7 i &7

MERBR AT HMNEEE K RE R
TRAZRAFEIREEZRENIH
Bk EERENE FBRITER
A R SR 17 B EL A 15 R H B 69 1) 2% e ez
HM-AEEZBRERRBEEBRE
BESSFIEEBEMER LRERE

NFHERREREN EER

R B3R B R R R ER R - AT
EEBERNEEAR UKL ER
Z AT R E -

SR 1T B H A AE SRR R _EFH T K
SOEEE - MAA HibEERRETE
AEME:

e HBE-—_ZETE-_=F+-A=+-—
B 1EFE 8% A g /i")JDf
Fg T (ZE 513,361
o) FEHRAEE®T
B8 % B fE FOF R R o
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(@) Market risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continved)

No sensitivity analysis is presented on the interest rate
risk on bank balances as the directors of the Company
considered that the exposure is minimal during the year.

Currency risk management

The Group fransacts business in various foreign currencies,
and has cerfain monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US Dollar ("USD"), Australian Dollar ("AUD"), Hong
Kong Dollar {"HKD"), Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR"), and Euro
("EUR") other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities, which exposes the Group o foreign currency

risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.

The carrying amounts of the significant Group’s monetary
assefs and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the end of each reporting period are as below:

Monetary assets EREE

— denominated in USD —AZETEHE

— denominated in AUD —bURITEHE

— denominated in HKD — A TTEHE

— denominated in MYR — B R EMERFEE

tRTEAERUERRERw

BHEREEEEREEm®

(a)

mERERER (@)
Fl = 2 g B FE (48)

RRARREER/AFEEE 2R
ﬁz*'ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂ S B0 2 5188
REBR ) R | B ) UK E 0 AT o

E¥m R E

REBUTNRINEETERR S I
HHEETUERT ([ET]) B (R
o) BT ([Br])  BRAEMAE
B ([HBRAEMER]) KRBT ([
7)) (MESEEEERNNEEE)
AEMNEREERBE SASERA
FR NS R o

REEBE BT ERINEERNES
EIERER -

REREPR NEEASIMNEFTED
TBEREERAGBNOKREELNT

2023 2022
—E_=F —=E-=
S$ S$
3 N3 7T s T
821,176 764,041
278,081 1,523,500
6,342,657 6,525,722
6,526 6,532

7,448,440 8,819,795
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31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(al

Market risk management (Continved)

Currency risk management (Coniinved)

Monetary liabilities EWaE

— denominated in USD —AEITEHME

— denominated in AUD —LUBITEHE

— denominated in HKD — A TTETE

— denominated in MYR — B RALEMERFETE
— denominated in JPY — A BEFHE

— denominated in EUR —ABITEHE

ERTEAERUERRERw
BEEMREEEEREEm®

o) WMZRARER @

EMREREIE &)

2023 2022

—EZ=F —T-=
S$ S$
3 03 T TN T
1,553,432 1,484,395
227,141 _
- 374
31,857 8,259
- 11,199
711,117 663,230

2,523,547 2,167,457

The Group comprise of a number of investments in foreign
subsidiaries, whose net assefs are exposed fo currency
translation risk. The Group does not currently designate its
foreign currency denominated debt as a hedging instrument
for the purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign
operations.

Further details on the forward exchange derivative
instruments are found in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

AEBEBINMBRAREAZERE
M FEIN B R AR EEFEMER
EEIE SRR - AN R BIRE I E ST
ONETEMESIERE T T A X
$ O LB IR TS RO B L RS

ARESNENTE TAZ S — S
BB BB TS R B 5521
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mEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(@) Market risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the relevant foreign currencies against
the functional currency of each respective group entity.
10% is the sensitivity rafe which represents managemenf's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensifivity analysis
includes external loans where they gave rise to an impact
on the Group's profit or loss.

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against
the functional currency of each Group entity, Group's profit
or loss during the year will increase (decrease) by:

Profit or loss BB
- USD impact —XTHE
— AUD impact —RTHE
— HKD impact —BILHE
— MYR impact — 5 R P8 S R S
- JPY impact —BHEFZ
- EUR impact —B e

4

2

31 e TERMKERREREw

BHEREEEEREEm®

(a)

2B
=

mERERER (@)
BN ST

TREMAARINE X5 EME RO
b ST HE RS | OB BT -
10%2 U E L R K & S8 B Y E R
T A BB Y S U
ST BIEREH 2 NS E R E
B R ERIRI 0% B R BB
B M E R AR B RN E
BE ASBES T RENBER

EERE N O d) -

2023 2022
—E2-= =~

S$ S$

¥ h03% T s o

57,876 57,901

(4,026) (122,457)

(501,314) (524,501)

2,002 139

= Q00

56,206 53,310
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(al

(b)

Market risk management (Continved)
Sensitivity analysis (Continved)

A 10% strengthening of relevant functional currency
against the above currencies would have had an equal
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain

constant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Oither price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
derivative investments in foreign currency forward and
option contracts. The foreign currency option and forward
confracts change with the exchange rafe and no sensitivity
analysis on such risk has been prepared as the directors
of the Group considered the carrying amount of derivative
instruments are insignificant fo the Group.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that o counterparty will default
on its confractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. At the end of reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure fo credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due fo failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assefs as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2023 on frade receivables from the Group's fop
five major customers accounted for 76% (2022: 76%) of
the Group's frade receivables. The major customers of the
Group are cerfain reputable organisations.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

31 e TEAERUKRRERE w

BEEMREEEEREEm®

(al

(b)

mZRRER (@)
B Z T ()

REMAEELMEEERTE HEED
BEERN D EBIEI0%EH X
IRERRELSRERRNTE -

w3

3

EEERR ARFERNINER R
WA RRRAFE B ER 8
GURE DT T RER R E B HMNE R -

H 1 1815 )7

REE R BIME R S NITER
& i [ B 2L (B AR L B o S B HR A %
ERANEEZRES ARARAE
ERR/TETANEEESAEEM
BXATEXR BAEEERRGR
BURRE DA

EERRER

EERREHFHERGHAEER
AEBEFBERANER RREHK
AEBAEE S ERAKEEALT
AEBTEEMELEMBERNRES
EERE TIRANGE B BMREK
PROI S IRC R 2 SR EERE(E -

RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H K&
EEBErEAEERARFPNES
W GENESREERRE  HERE
EAREEESERREN/OL(ZF
ZZF76%) AEENEIERFA
BTHZMEE-
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31 December 2023

31

—E-=F+=-HA=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk management (Continved)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company has delegated ifs finance team to develop and
mainfain the Group's credit risk gradings fo cafegorise
exposures according fo their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own historical repayment records fo rafe
its major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure
and the credit rafings of its counterparties are confinuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises
the following categories:

31

tRTEAERUERRERw

BHEREEEEREEm®

(b)

FERBRERE &)

REAREREEFERR ARARE
SERREMBNDEERGEFAE
B e (E B R FRAREE QR RIZ
EYHEBETOE UK PEERR
A SHMMBERRARE A S BE
ERCHHETIBEP MMEBAETT
FR-AEERBERABEERS
HBFNEETERBEERR HHE
BEREREZXSHFRETOH-

AEBEREFNEERRFRERH A
TR :

Basis for recognising ECL

BRARHBEEERNEE

12-month ECL (other than trade
receivables without significant
financing component)

12 AEHEERE (TEE
REEK D E 5 R IR
BRI

Lifetime EClnot creditimpaired

E2HEHREERRE-BEER
{i=1

Category Description

Eba]l it

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any pastdue amounts.

R&f RS FEHARE W 8RR KIEA

Doubitful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

] &t B R - E AR E N

In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired.

ER ERRERAEELREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.

Z3H BEPRRPABHEABABRENMBRE B ALE

Y Bl IR 1) 7 RS
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FEMFHmTMEE

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
[b)  Credit risk management (Confinued)

The tables below defail the credit quality of the Group's
financial assets, as well as the Group's moximum exposure
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

Internal credit

31 e TEAERUKRRERE w

BERREEEERBE®w

b) EERBRERE®)

TRAVAKESREENEEER
AR REERBFRE DOHAEE R

EXE

Gross carrying

Note  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount !
ME RABEETR 12BAR2HEHEEEFE AREAE
S$
3 3K T
2023
—EC=F
Trade receivables 17 (q) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 11,557,873
g5 RN (a) 2HAMEESE (BLRE)
Other receivables and deposits 18  Performing 12m ECL 239,331
Hth e TR R IR & R 2R RBEERE
11,797,204
2022
—ZE-=
Trade receivables 17 la Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 12,242,384
g5 RAFR (a) THRGEEEE (BLhE)
Other receivables and deposits 18 Performing 12m ECL 323,599
Hth e IR R IZ & R 12 AFEHEEEE
12,565,983

m The gross carrying amount is equivalent to the net carrying
volue as the Group has no loss allowance for the year

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

m AR AEBARBE-_T_=FKk=
T —HF+_A=+—HIEFEL
EEREEG NEARLESNER

FREE
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)  Credit risk management (Confinued)

(a)  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in IFRS @ fo measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using an
analysis of assefs by risk level of customers, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic condifions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
af the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For other receivables and deposits, the Group has assessed
the credit profile and background of the counterparties and
concluded that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of the counterparties since initial recognition. The ECL for
these financial assets is measured at 12-month ECL, which
is considered to be insignificant based on the Group's
assessment on the risk of default of that counterparty.

Other than concentration of credit risk on bank deposits and
balances placed in 4 banks in which the counterparties
are financially sound and on trade receivables from top 5
customers, the Group has no other significant concentration
of credit risk on other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulties in meeting ifs financial obligations as and when
they fall due. In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Non-derivative financial assets

All the non-derivative financial assefs are repayable within
one year and non-interest bearing, except for shortterm
fixed deposits (Nofe 22) which are relatively insignificant
to the Group and the Company.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The following tables detail the remaining confractual maturity
for nonderivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabiliies based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required fo pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. The adjustment column
represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the
instrument included in the maturity analysis which is not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

31 December 2023

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

31 e TEAERUKRRERE w

BEEMREEEEREEm®

(c)

nBETRAREE

mBELERIEAEERETEED
U BEERER N EAR-RE
BERDESARE AKEERRS
EBREFEEBWKE UHEEFEE
BERBRMHKFE ARSI ANEE

VEEMS  TEERSRENBH
=2 &

HITEEMEE

FIBEHRNTESRMEERAR —FRNEE
ARG E EEAKRERARAME
MEE WA EAWEHE BFR (6
22)BRShe

FUTELT A E

TRFMFTEERBELREEAR
BRTEWIHBBER -ZRIREAE
EAENERABERFZANRKR
REREMBE - ZXRBEMELEAR
THRERE -ABE-WEINHBRD
e B T AEERKAERESRE
HUY | AGZEMBRARRNESHE
BEREER-
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

tRTEAERUERRERw

BHEREEEEREEm®

[c)  Liquidity risk management (Confinued) (c) RBETEREIR )
Non-derivative financial liabilities (Continved) HrTEZLHE E (&)
Weighted
average
effecfive  On demand or Within 2 fo Carrying
inferest rate  within 1 year Syears  After 5 years Adjustments amount
MERH BRERY
ERF= RMIER 2858 SE# Eil REE
5§ 5§ s$ s$ 5§
b b KT KT s
31 December 2023 RZBZ=#+ZfA=+-H
Fixed rate - lease lidblliies EEME-HEARE 4.9% 254,182 507,110 1,067,144 (505,420) 1,323,016
Trade and ofher payables BA LR A - 6,160,927 - - - 6160927
Tool s 6,415,109 507,010 1067144 (505420) 7,483,943
31 December 2022 R=B-ZZ#+=h=+-H
Floating rate = bank and FRHE-RIREMR
other borrowings GES 1.23% 526200 2212610 218,205 97,714) 2,859,361
Fixed rate - lease liabilities BEf=-HE8E 5.20% 244,042 526,211 1,135,623 (555,709 1,350,167
Trade and oher payables ZHREMEMNFE - 5,281,350 - - - 5,281,350
Total &t 6,051,652 2,738,821 1,353,828 (653,423) 9,490,878
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

[c)

(d)

Liquidity risk management (Confinued)
Non-derivative financial liabilities (Continved)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates
of interest rafes defermined at the end of the reporting
period.

Derivative financial liabilities and assets

All derivative financial liabilities and assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are due
within one year. Details of derivative financial liabilities and
assefs are as disclosed in Note 21.

Fair value

Fair valve of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair valve on recurring
basis

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate fo their fair values.

31 December 2023

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

31 e TEAERUKRRERE w

BHEREEEEREE®

[c)

(d)

mEPELRRERE @
HITELHBEE (#)

18557 B I 2 5 B BL 3R 4 MK
2 EFIE TR BISA L4 R
B2 TRRETA L SETEEH
REH-

rTHETHEEREE
RZBE-_=ZF+-_A=Z+—HEZ=Z
T oF+ A=+ —HAKEEBENMA
METHBEEREER —FREIE-
MTESHBEREE ZFBEERH
21 o

AT

AT M REU 1 FlEGT BRI
KETHEERTHEENLFE

AEEEEERS REMBHRT
REERATIENEREERERA
EREREEELAFERE-
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 31 ¢ TERUMERBREE &
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEREEEERBEE @™

(Continued)

(d)  Fair value (Continued) d)  RFE@
Fair valve of the Group's financial assets and financial A (B EL 2N FEFE R A E
liabilities that are measured at fair valve on recurring basis THEERTFEE BN FE
Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities KEBIENERMEERSRHABENS
are measured at fair value af the end of each reporting WEMRIEATETE TREHIEB
period. The following table gives information about how the BUMEETESRTENATELZ
fair values of derivative financial instruments are determined ER(CHEZEREERN LG
(in particular, the valuation techniquel(s| and inputs used). AEIE) -

Fair value as at

RT3 BHz2AVE Significant
31 December 31 December  Fair value unobservable
2023 2022 hierarchy Valuation technique(s); and key input(s) input(s]
—EC-=& —EC-CF
t=A +=A EXFTABRBA
=t—-H =t—H0 AVEE# HERTREREARE HE
$$ s$
HnR T AT
Assets: Assefs:  level 2 Fair value is based on spot exchange rates (from observable — N/A
Current - Curent- FZ# spot exchange rates af the end of the reporting period) and &M
34,839 1,184 contracted forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
BE: BE: credit risk of various counterparties.
hE- mE— RFELRAORER (RERSHROTERNAEE) LY
34,839 1,184 TEAEXHE YRRBERFEFEERBNMEE
|
Liabilifies: Liabilifies:
Current - Current -
157,480 20,911
af: afE:
wE- mE—
157,480 20,911
There were no transfers between levels of the fair value RERN AFEER BT ETIRE
hierarchy during the year. %o
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Some of the Group's transactions and arrangements are with
related parties and the effect of these on the basis determined
between the parties are reflected in these financials statements.
Related parties refer to entities in which directors of the Group
have a beneficial interest in it.

The Group entered into the following fransactions with related

FEMBImRME

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H

32 BBMARS
AEBETRZRLZHE T EREB TR
BN EEEETINZER I NLH

VR ENAMIERARNRER - BB T A K
BEFNETHRAESERNER-

ANEE BB ST I T RS

parties:
2023 2022
—E-=F ZECF
S$ s$
03 7T AN T
Transactions with related parties BB A 5
Rental charged (Note) B@EE (M) (109,579) (116,621)

Note:  This perfains to rental paid to Tai Sun Lim Kee Trading Sdn. Bhd.
The Group leases warehouse buildings for an average lease
term of 2 years with an option to extend another 12 months.
In current year, the rental charged amounting to S$109,579
(2022: S$116,621) pursuant to the lease agreements. Under
IFRS 16, the Group recognised ROU asset of $$199,818
(2022: S$208,694) and lease liability of $$205,352 (2022:
S$218,602) as at 31 December 2023. Correspondingly, a
depreciation of $$96,977 (2022: $$102,317), finance cost of
$$12,204 (2022: S$17,750) and gain on lease modification
of $$3,506 (2022: $$3,448) were recognised during the

current year.

MizE:  BE8MESEMN Fai Sun lim Kee Trading
Sdn. BhdW i B -AEEHER
EEFHTFHHBARMF WA RE
BOTEPIEAA - RAFE BEM
EMED AL B109,579% ik T
(ZZ2-—F: 116,621 MK T) -
RIE BRI RS ERIB165 A&
ER—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HER
FERAEEEIQSI8H M T (ZF
208,094 T) RTHE SR
BE205,3528 M e (Z 2 ==
218,602% 1 M3 L) © FRFEHE R EE RN
RNEERERITEQS, Q775 kT (—F
ZZF 02,3178 IT) C BE KA
12,2048 gL (=T = =4 17,750
g o) R A &8 s a3, 506% N
Wt (ZZ = —F: 3,448 ML) °
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mEMBImRME

31 December 2023

32

33

—E-=F+=-HA=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (confinved)

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the years were as follows:

32 BEBARSZ ®

EELEMEBEE AR MEFENF
B 5T

2023 2022

—E-=F —F-—
S$ S$
03 7T T
Shortterm benefits 52 HR 1@ A 5,057,002 5,041,575
Postemployment benefits BEEg 1248 A 101,793 74,591
5,158,795 5,116,166

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As prescribed by the Central Provident Fund Board of Singapore
and Employees Provident Fund of Malaysia, the Group's
employees employed in Singapore and Malaysia respectively,
who are Singapore Citizens or Permanent Residents and
Malaysian Citizens or Permanent Residents, are required fo join
the CPF and EPF scheme respectively. For the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, the Group confributes up to 17%
and 13% of the eligible employees’ salaries to the CPF and
EPF scheme, with each employee's qualifying salary capped af
S$6,300 per month and no cap respectively.

The total costs charged to profit or loss, amounting to
S$587,770 for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
S$552,412), represent contributions paid to the refirement
benefits scheme by the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, contributions of $$230,081 (2022:
S$136,920) were accrued. The amounts were paid subsequent
fo the end of the period.
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33 REFEE

FMEFRRAEEREERATREATE
ST ANEEEFIE R G RATERN
EENBHIMFE ARSI KABREE KA
DARBKABR  pHALEPRANTES
ENEELAESHE -BETE_=FK
—E-F+-A=+—BHIEFE AEE
RERARNFEEREEAESTEIE THHE
HHERZONBEEREBETSMI7%
R13% BRFINERENEERGTE LR
ERE RO 300F ML HRAEEESD
RERFEWELR-

HE-_Z-_="F+_A=+—H1tFE"
ST AR A B587, 7705 ME T (=
T F 5524128 oT)  TIARKEE
BRI BFFTEIE AR

N-ZE-=ZF+-_fF=+—H" EiEtRA
230,081 M T (=T = =4 :136,920
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023

34 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 34

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

the Group's consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

METBMELEEENYHE

TREJAKEERELDIELAEN
HEHFE BRASMIFRSEY -HER
PRELABERERARRNAEEREAR
ERERNDBABRERDMELRSRE
MIRERERAKREREZAE

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITER HEAE et
S$ S$ S$
s T s ot s o
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-_—_F—HF—H 3,789,724 1,267,276 5,057,000
Financing cash flows MERESRE (972,529) (259,846) (1,232,375)
Non-cash changes FREBE
New lease liabilities HHEas - 205,903 295,903
lease modification gain HE B = - (7,384) (7,384)
Finance costs recognised (Note 7) EERBERA (M) 42,166 74,655 116,821
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 - (20,437) (20,437)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+—-_A=+—H 2,859,361 1,350,167 4,209,528
Financing cash flows MERERE (2,893,864 (250,157) (3,144,021)
Non-cash changes FHREEE
New lease liabilities HHEAE - 184,591 184,591
lease modification gain HEBHR K= - (3,500 (3,500)
Finance costs recognised (Note 7| EERMEKAN (HFE7) 34,503 62,077 96,580
Exchange difference EH =% - (20,156) (20,1506)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H - 1,323,016 1,323,016
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FEMFBHRTRMEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-F=+—H

35 PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 35 B A S
Defails of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RARR_B_=FR-_ZFT-__F+_A
Company as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are sef out ST -HEERMERBEOHRBARFE
below. T -

Place of
incorporation/ Group's effective Held by the
Name operation Paid up issued capital interest Company  Principal activifies
AR FEE NG|
28 Eenwk HBREBOTRE ERER HEER THER
Tai Sun Holding Limited BVI us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
["TSH')
Tai Sun Holding Limited RERLES 10%£7T REER
(TTSHI)
78S Singapore $$300,000 100% - Packing and refailing of food products
AILR @ s 300,000 i3 7T RmBENEE
TSF Malaysia MYR 2,300,000 100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dealers in nuts
TSk BRAER 2,300,000 BREED HEARZHE
SRATHE R
TZF Malaysia MYR 500,000 100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dealers in chips
TZF HRAED 500,000 ERAER BEENRSHE
HRAEHER
TS Group Investment Limited ~ BVI US$1 100% - Inactive
("TSGI")
TS Group Investment limited  EBE XA S B EmeE
(I75GI1)
ZC China Limited ["ZCC’")  Hong Kong HKD 1 100% - Inactive
ZC China Limited &t 1B EELE
(fzcch)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the BHEFRK BEMBRARZETEMNEHE
end of the year. Fo
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-=F+-AF=+—H

BANKERS" GUARANTEES 36 SRITER
2023 2022
—EB-=F g
S$ S$
¥ b T ¥ o
Bankers' guarantees with cusfomers RITHEPAER 467,924 117,739
The balances represent the performance guarantee provided by EREBEASEUNETRP R ARH
the Group in favour fo its customers. RIBAER-
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 37 BRESE

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written
resolution passed by the shareholder of the Company on 20
December 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant options fo eligible direcfors of the Group, eligible
employees of the Group and other selected participants, for the
recognition of their confributions, fo subscribe for shares in the
Company with a payment of HK$1 upon each grant of options
offered, within the period of 10 years after the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share opfion will be not less than the
highest of:

[i)  the closing price of the Company's shares as sfated in the
Stock Exchange'’s daily quotation sheet on the date (the
"Offer Date”) of grant of the particular option, which must
be a business day;

[i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the
option; and

liii)  the nominal value of a share on the Offer Date.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period
of not more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject o
the terms and condifions of the Share Option Scheme, or any
conditions sfipulated by the Board of Directors.

BEARFABRRR-_ZE-NF+_A-+
38 38 B & DR 3 5 P HE A B0 B IR AT B
(MERERT ) ARRRERE 8K
MAHREF T FARTRAARBEERES
REREEREMETZ2EER L BERE
NRBARRERD  EABERSNER

REREMPTR DB AN BT

BREZITEENEERATES

) REOSEBEREZA ([ZHEH] -
AREXB)EMAERARERN
WK R AU E

(i) EXBEBREEHEHHMAELZXAHE
B3 P B B R TR RO FH K
mE: &

i) MEXHBHOBRMDEE-
RIBEEERT S 2 R IR NESEA

FUE RO R - AR AT R B B AR R
THRIB 1 F 2 AR A BERF 1T o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBImRME

31 December 2023

—E-=F+=-HA=+—H

37 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

38

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares
of Company. Unless further shareholders’ approval has been
obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Share Option
Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which, if all the
options granfed to the person (including both exercised and
outstanding options] in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
entilement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of
Company.

Up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, no options have been granted or agreed fo be
granted pursuant fo the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share opfions
have been granted nor exercised and there is no outstanding
share option of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

37 BRETE w

AR B A H e BRI AT R i) BB
FRAGBBARTRMEEI0% RIS
R B B RT 8P 51 R 1 55 17 BV AR HHE
BRI REER G A BE T 21E A 823
A HWETF-—BALTHNBERE (BEDTT
EREARITENERE) E2HTESENR
HBANTERBD ERBARNAREELT
BRDEB 1% BRI M ZE A TR D BR
f#o

BEERGAMBHRERTNERD REREE
PR IR SRR B R LA B R -

HE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—H1FE"
BMEEREEERHNKITE MR=2F==
F+-AZ+—H ARQRABENKTEN
FERR#E -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38 BEARAIE
2023 2022
—E-=F Tz
s$ s$
3% T TN T
Commitments for acquisition of property, WHE % B Kkt o AR
plant and equipment 537,193 110,073
Commitments for renovation of B g T 2 AR
factory building - 150,703
537,193 260,776
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